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Chairman's Statement

Dear Shareholders,

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited (the "Company") made
further progress on implementing strategic initiatives under our business
plan in 2020. During the year, we completed the disposal of the Chicago
project, our last overseas property development project. We have also
achieved our business transformation to focus on fee-based businesses.
Our financial position has been improved with stable cash flow and net
cash position as at 31 December 2020.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia (COVID-19) (the
"Pandemic") presented unprecedented challenges for the global
business environment, particularly the hospitality sector, in 2020, owing
to the ensuing travel bans and lockdowns across China. This has
impacted our hotel business severely. Nevertheless, the Company has
adopted timely and effective initiatives and we noticed that demand for
travel shows resilience and recovery in previously affected cities. Our
performance started to recover steadily during the second half of 2020
with our occupancy rate during the October Golden Week Chinese
National Holiday in 2020 exceeding the corresponding period in 2019.

While economic recovery will continue in 2021 due to roll-out of
vaccine, we expect that our operating environment will still be rife
with uncertainties in 2021. While the Group will stay vigilant in our
cost discipline, with support from our parent company, Dalian Wanda
Commercial Management Group Co., Ltd. ("DWCM", together with its
subsidiaries, "DWCM Group"), we will continue to keep our eyes on
attractive investment opportunities with the objective of expanding our
revenue sources as well as improving our profitability, thus laying a solid
foundation for its long-term development.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, directors, management team,
staff, business partners and all others who have rendered their unfailing
support and contribution to the Group.

Ding Benxi
Chairman

17 March 2021
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During 2020, the Group’s principal businesses are divided into the
following three business segments: —

Hotel business 1. Hotel management and operations
2. Hotel design and construction
management services
Property business 3. Investment properties leasing

HOTEL BUSINESS

During 2020, the Group’s hotel businesses have been operated by
Wanda Hotel Management (HK) Co., Ltd. (“Wanda Hotel Management”),
which is a leading hotel services provider in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and is principally engaged in the business of
hotel management and operation, hotel design, hotel construction
management and related consultancy and other ancillary business, with
comprehensive capabilities in hotel management and operation.

Hotel management and operations

As of 31 December 2020, the hotel network under the Group’s
management consisted of 94 hotels with 25,473 rooms in operation
covering 71 cities in the PRC, and an additional 106 hotels were
contracted to be managed by Wanda Hotel Management but are still
under development and have not commenced operation yet.
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Business Review
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Wanda Hotel Management currently manages hotels under the following
brands that are designed to target distinct segments of customers: —

REETNRANEFE  BEEERERERERE
AT @ HpBESE - —

Hotel Brand Brand Positioning Service Features

BIE A b TE AT R4S

Wanda Reign o Luxury An ultra-luxury hotel brand for luminaries and the social

BERE o  EERE elites that delivers supremely personalized services and
transcends every expectation.
RHEEERRBEAL  RHBEBOEM(CR DR
% WITERBEEBRNEERERE -

Wanda Vista ° Deluxe A luxury hotel brand for distinguished guests who relish

BENXE o  RIEMM extraordinary services in Oriental elegance that seamlessly

Wanda Realm
BERE

Wanda Jin
B

Wanda Vi

ey

BiERgE

° Upper Upscale
e HERiHmE

° Upscale Select-service
s  EWMEEMME

° Upscale

s Simm#
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blends with local culture.
AEHMEEENEEER  REMGRSTHBEEEHEA
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A premium hotel brand built upon quality service from
superb international standards for business and leisure
travelers.

REBRTRABERERESR  RHMEER - SWEFEN
EACRRTS » W T AR O AT R SRS ME o

A premium and select service hotel brand built upon
boutique design and quality service offering a balanced life
experience for business and leisure travelers.

REABRITRABERESR  REFGIXAEEREER
% - WEETERAFTE T ERROSIHEEEERE -

A premium high-end lifestyle hotel brand offering distinctive
design, imaginative and livable space to travelers seeking
lives” exquisiteness and surprises.
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Hotel Brand
S mAE

Brand Positioning
A W RE (L
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Service Features

R E

Wanda Moments

Upper Mid-scale

A high-end midscale hotel brand dedicating to quality

BEXE izl oty e design and select services for the ultimate comfort of
business travelers.
BMARARBARK  BEEXEE - BRTREBRONIK
Bt REER IR B D RS S o
Wanda Yue Mid-scale A midscale hotel brand offering intimate services to business
EENE AR ity o h travelers who are highly individual and willing to experience
the trendy.
BORABREEN R E8RITANERBEE - BHED
AR5 & i B JE R A o
The following table sets forth a breakdown by hotel brands and TREYVEE—_E-_TEF+-_B=+—H " %
operational model of hotels in operation managed by Wanda Hotel HE RN R B ERE AR EETE
Management as at 31 December 2020: — BB ERRAN - —
Leased-and-
Operated Managed Franchised Number of
Hotels Hotels Hotel Room
EEHE BIE ®EHE
Wanda Reign BIENE 3 — 845
Wanda Vista BENE 25 — 6,241
Wanda Realm BiERE 49 2 14,997
Wanda Jin HIEIRE 5 — 1,542
Wanda Yi SERE 1 - 346
Wanda Moments EERE 4 — 1,152
Wanda Yue BIENE 1 — 81
Others Hth 1 - 269
Grand Total B 89 2 25,473
\/JN-
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Business Review
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Leased and operated hotels

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had three leased-and-operated
hotels, accounting for approximately 3% of our hotels in operation.
Under the leased-and-operated hotels model, the Group leases hotels
from hotel owners and manages and operates these hotels with all of
the accompanying expenses borne by the Group.

For our leased-and-operated hotels, we are responsible for recruiting,
training and supervising the hotel managers and employees, paying for
leases and costs associated with construction and renovation of these
hotels, and purchasing all supplies and other required equipment. The
terms of our leases typically range from 15 to 20 years, with an initial
two to 15-month rent-free period. We generally pay fixed rent on a
quarterly or biannual basis for the first three to five years of the lease
term, after which we are generally subject to a pre-determined rent
increase annually. Our leases usually allow for term extensions by mutual
agreement. As of 31 December 2020, none of our leases were expected
to expire in 2021.

Managed hotels

As of 31 December 2020, we had 89 managed hotels, accounting for
approximately 95% of all of our hotels in operation. Under the managed
hotel model, we license our relevant brand to hotel owners, manage
hotels through the on-site hotel management teams who we appoint
and we charge and collect management fees from hotel owners.

For our managed hotels, we offer hotel owners the right to use our
brand name, logo, operating manuals and procedures. These hotels
will be operated in accordance with our brand standard, including
converting the hotel property such that it conforms to the standard
design and layout of the corresponding brand offering under our
supervision, becoming integrated into our central reservation system and
hotel management IT system, and being included in our consumable
goods procurement system. The property owners are responsible for
the costs of developing and operating their hotels, including the costs of
renovating the hotels to meet our standards.
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Franchised hotels

As of 31 December 2020, we had two franchised hotels, accounting for
approximately 2% of all of our hotels in operation. Under the franchised
hotel model, we license our relevant brand to hotel owners similar to the
managed hotel model, but we provide training, reservation and support
services to the franchised hotels and collect fees from franchisees and
do not appoint on-site hotel management personnel.

For our franchised hotels, we offer hotel owners the right to use our
brand name, logo, operating manuals and procedures and convert the
franchised hotels in accordance with our brand standard similar to our
managed hotels. However, as opposed to appointing hotel managers
to manage the hotels on-site, we provide training to hotel staff and
offer reservation and support services to the franchised hotels. In order
to ensure that services offered by the franchised hotels are of quality
consistent to other hotels managed by us, the Group carries out periodic
assessment and report on various aspects of the operation of the
franchised hotels.

Key performance indicators

Revenue per available room (“RevPAR”) is the non-financial key
performance indicator which the senior management reviews frequently.
It is a key performance indicator commonly used in the hospitality
industry and is defined as the product of average occupancy rates and
average daily rates per room achieved. Occupancy rates of our hotels
mainly depend on the locations of our hotels, product and service
offering, the effectiveness of our sales and brand promotion efforts,
our ability to effectively manage hotel reservations, the performance of
managerial staff and other employees of our hotels, as well as our ability
to respond to competitive pressure. We set the room rates of our hotels
primarily based on the location of hotels, room rates charged by our
competitors within the same locality and our relative brand and product
strength in the city or city cluster.
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The following table sets forth our RevPAR, average daily room rate and
occupancy rate for our hotels for the year ended 31 December 2020: —

TRILETHRABE-T-SE+-A=+—
AILERHTEENTETHEEERA - T4
SREBRALE : —

For Year Ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019

—BECEF =%
Occupancy rate (%) AEE (%)
All hotels FiBEBE 44.2% 61.8%
Upscale and above hotels =umEL A BB S 43.8% 62.0%
Midscale hotels iR s 53.8% 49.0%
Average daily rate (RMB) THEHREE(ARK)
All hotels FB MBS 519 544
Upscale and above hotels =i B LA _EOE I 530 547
Midscale hotels A P 268 268
RevPAR (RMB) FHAHEERERA (ARE)
All hotels FBB S 230 336
Upscale and above hotels = ER A _FOB S 232 339
Midscale hotels H o B & 144 131

Impact of COVID-19 coronavirus (the “Pandemic”)

The outbreak of the Pandemic since the first quarter of 2020 has taken
its toll on the Group’s hotel management and operation business which
operates mainly in the PRC. The occupancy rate of the hotels managed
by the Group, which are principally located in the PRC, has substantially
declined to approximately 24% during the first quarter of 2020 from
approximately 54% in the corresponding period of 2019. Such decline
in occupancy rate was mainly due to the travel advisories or restrictions
in the PRC during the Pandemic. In response to the difficult business
environment as a result of the Pandemic, the Group has sought to
reduce costs, mitigate operational risk and enhance operation efficiency
as counter-measures. With all these efforts the performance of our hotels
continued to improve, with our occupancy rate reaching approximately
70.8% during the October Golden Week Chinese National Holiday in
2020, exceeding the corresponding period in 2019 of approximately
66.7%.
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Hotel design and construction management services

The Group’s hotel design and construction management services
business targets the same client base as the hotel management and
operation business. Our hotel design business mainly provides interior
and mechanical, electrical and plumbing design services (including
interior, furnishing, lighting, early and later stage design services,
mechanical and electrical parts design, kitchen and back-of-house
design) and charge design fees with reference to the building area of the
hotels on a per square meter basis, depending on the type of design
service rendered. Our hotel construction management business offers
consultancy and project management services to hotels managed by
the Group to ensure that the projects are completed according to the
agreed specifications in terms of cost, time and quality. The service fees
charged are based on a percentage of the total costs of the relevant
project with certain incentives for achieving cost-savings (against budget)
targets.

PROPERTY BUSINESS
Guilin Project, the PRC

In February 2014, the Company acquired a piece of state-owned land
in Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC with Wanda
Commercial Properties (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (“Wanda HK”) in the
form of a joint venture, in which the Company holds 51% and Wanda
HK holds 49%. The project (“Guilin Project”) is located in the central
area of Guilin High-tech Zone, with planned total gross floor area of
approximately 330,000 sg.m., including 153,000 sg.m. of shopping mall
and 177,000 sqg.m. of retail, residential and other properties for sale.

All saleable residential and retail properties of the Guilin Project have
been sold. The shopping mall opened in September 2015. With
satisfactory commercial leases and operating conditions, the shopping
mall has become a supreme landmark business centre in Guilin.
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Business Review

E 3 ACI]

Chicago Project, the United States of America ("USA")

In July 2014, the Company formed a joint venture with Wanda HK to
establish a joint venture platform in the Americas, in which the Company
Holds 60% and Wanda HK holds 40%. Wanda Chicago Real Estate
LLC (“Wanda Chicago”), a wholly owned subsidiary of this joint venture
platform, subsequently acquired a property project in Chicago (“Chicago
Project”) jointly with Magellan Parcel C/D LLC (“Magellan”). The Chicago
Project was held as to 90% by Wanda Chicago and 10% by Magellan.
The Chicago Project, a commercial and residential property project,
located in the heart of Chicago adjacent to Millennium Park and the
Chicago CBD, commenced construction in August 2016 and was
expected to be completed by the end of 2020.

In line with the Group’s strategy to focus on fee-based businesses
and reduce leverage, on 24 July 2020, Wanda Chicago as seller and
Magellan as purchaser entered into an agreement in respect of Wanda
Chicago’s disposal of the 90% interests of the Chicago Project. The
disposal was completed on 24 November 2020 (US time) and as from
completion date, the Company no longer has any interest in the Chicago
Project.

12 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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OUTLOOK

The disposal of the Chicago Project completed the Group’s monetization
of prior overseas property investments. The Group will focus on fee-
based business and capitalize on its hotel management expertise
where the Group can potentially develop into an industry leader in the
PRC. Consistent with such objective, the Company is looking into an
opportunity to dispose of its interest in the Guilin Project.

With effective pandemic control measures implemented by the
Chinese government, the economy in the PRC rebounded strongly as
the government introduced various policies to encourage domestic
consumption. As the Pandemic came under control gradually since
the second half of the year, we saw a sustained recovery in domestic
tourism and business. The overall occupancy rate of hotels in the
PRC has bottomed out since the first quarter of 2020 and recovered
to approximately 90% of 2019 by the fourth quarter. The Group
expects such recovery will continue in 2021 and the Group will seize
this opportunity to optimize our brands, products and technology to
capture domestic travel demand. Moreover, the Group will continue the
expansion of its hotel business and plan to operate and manage 10-15
new hotels in 2021.

The Group will continue to prudently seek profitable investment
opportunities, further expand the Group’s sources of revenue, enhance
the Group’s profitability and maximize return for its shareholders.
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Financial Review

Ly A

Despite a challenging operating environment as a result of the Pandemic
during 2020, the Group reported a profit of approximately HK$230.2
million on the revenue of approximately HK$655.4 million, as compared
to the loss of approximately HK$388.6 million on the revenue of
approximately HK$812.9 million in 2019.

BE_T_TFRBENCERBERIE -
2 52 B 173 B8 8% 15 ' F1) 49230,200,000 78 T ¥
W 2 49 655,400,000,%5 T MR T —hE
Bl £ 15 /&5 18 #9388,600,0007# JT ¥ W 25 49
812,900,000 7T °

Revenue g
The Group revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 REBEE-_ZT-_TFR_FE-NF+A
can be analyzed as below: — —t+—HIFEZWEmSITWOT
2020 2019 Changes
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FET FET FET %
Hotel operation and BE 2 E R E AR
management services 378,044 471,229 (93,185) (19.8)
Hotel design and construction BIE AT R
management services EREIEIRS 173,722 192,601 (18,879) (9.8)
Investment properties leasing REMERE 103,653 149,118 (45,465) (30.5)
Total st 655,419 812,948 (157,529) (19.4)
Hotel operation and management services revenue decreased to i i & B 1R AR S U s Rk & #) 378,000,000

approximately HK$378 million as compared to approximately HK$471.2
million in 2019. Lower management fee income was received due to
the RevPAR of the operating hotels managed by the Group dropping to
RMB230 in 2020 from RMB336 in 2019, resulting from sharp decline in
occupancy rate amid the Pandemic.

Hotel design and construction management services revenue decreased
to approximately HK$173.7 million as compared to approximately
HK$192.6 million in 2019, mainly due to slowdown of work progress as
a result of delay of construction works during the Pandemic.
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Investment properties leasing revenue decreased to approximately
HK$103.7 million in 2020 from approximately HK$149.1 million in
2019, primarily due to lack of rental income contribution from the
Hengli City Project after the completion of its disposal in 2019. For
further details of the Hengli City Project and its disposal, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 13 December 2019, 27
December 2019 and 25 March 2020.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group decreased by 3.6% to HK$264.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 from HK$274.2 million for 2019
primarily due to a drop in sales resulting from the Pandemic.

Gross profit and margin

Gross profit was approximately HK$391.2 million in 2020, as compared
to approximately HK$538.7 million in 2019. Gross profit margin
decreased to approximately 59.7% in 2020 from approximately 66.3%
in 2019. Such profit margin drop was attributed to slight decline of
profitability from hotel management services as a result of lower RevPAR
and occupancy rate of hotels under management as mentioned above.

Other income and gains, net

Net other income and gains of the Group rose to approximately HK$55.4
million in 2020 from approximately HK$14.8 million in 2019. Such
increase is mainly due to 1) net foreign exchange gain of approximately
HK$21 million and 2) interest income on long-term receivables of
approximately HK$10.7 million arising from the deferred amount of
the disposal of Parcel C LLC (“Parcel C”), a project company holding
Chicago Project.

Net valuation loss on investment properties

Net valuation loss on investment properties of the Group significantly
decreased to approximately HK$34.5 million in 2020, as compared to
approximately HK$788 million in 2019. Such valuation loss decreased
because Hengli City Project, which had incurred valuation loss of
approximately HK$788.6 million, was disposed of in 2019,
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Ly A

Selling and Administrative expenses

Selling and Administrative expenses decreased by 18% and 22% to
approximately HK$27.7 million and HK$137 million respectively in 2020
from approximately HK$33.8 million and HK$175.6 million in 2019,
primarily attributable to cost-cutting measures implemented by the
Group to cope with the difficult business environment as a result of the
Pandemic.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by 26.8% to approximately HK$111.9 million
in 2020 from approximately HK$152.9 million, primarily attributable to a
decrease of interest payment on loans from Wanda HK, an intermediate
holding company of the Group, of approximately HK$40.8 million, as a
result of fluctuations in interest rates and repayment of such loans during
2020.

Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations
As a result of the foregoing, the Group reported profit before tax from

continuing operations of approximately HK$135.5 million, as compared
to loss of approximately HK$596.7 million in 2019.
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Segment results

The following table illustrates the segment results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 respectively: —
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PO

TAMGRMANNEE-F-2FR=F
—hE+=B=+— BN BER  —

2020 2019 Changes
i —NEF g
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 %
FET FET FET %
Hotel operation and BE 8 MBI RS 92,958 176,162 (83,204) 47.2)
management services
Hotel design and construction BIE AT R
management services EREIEIRS 51,102 57,037 (5,935) (10.4)
Investment properties leasing WEWMERE 53,062 (666,196) 719,258 N/A
N R
Total st 197,122 (432,997) 630,119 N/A
NiEMA

The measure used for reporting segment results is adjusted profit/(loss)
before tax from continuing operations.

Hotel operation and management services segment profit decreased
to approximately HK$93 million in 2020 from approximately HK$176.2
million in 2019, primarily due to slight decline of profitability from hotel
management services as a result of lower RevPAR and occupancy rate
of hotels under management as mentioned above.

Hotel design and construction management services segment profit
decreased to approximately HK$51.1 million in 2020 from approximately
HK$57 million in 2019, primarily due to lower revenue in 2020 as a result
of slow-down of work during the Pandemic.

Investment properties leasing segment reported profit of approximately
HK$53.1 million in 2020, as compared to loss of approximately
HK$666.2 million in 2019 primarily due to no further valuation loss for
Hengli City Project was recorded after it was disposed in 2019.
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Financial Review

Ly A

Income tax expense

The Group reported income tax expense of approximately HK$39.4
million in 2020, as compared to approximately HK$78.6 million income
tax credit in 2019, primarily due to reversal of deferred tax previously
provided for the revaluation of properties in Hengli City of approximately
HK$153.6 million in 2019.

Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations

As a result of foregoing, the Group reported approximately HK$96.1
million profit from the year from continuing operations, as compared to
loss of approximately HK$518.1 million in 2019.

Profit for the year from discontinued operations

Profit from discontinued operations increased to approximately
HK$134.1 million in 2020 from approximately HK$129.4 million in 2019,
primarily attributable to 1) approximately HK$149.8 million gain on
disposal of Parcel C; and 2) the discontinued business of development
and sale of properties no longer contributing any profit in 2020.
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Profit/(loss) for the year and profit/(loss) attributable to REERR, () RAD RS
equity holders of the Company BAEMER (EE)

As a result of the foregoing, the following illustrates the Group’s profit/ MR LEMEE TREBLEAEE 2 AFE
(loss) for the year and profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the wmH (1B URARRERIEE ADBIR

Company for 2020 and 2019 respectively: — —ETFERT-NFZEGERN (B
') —
2020 2019 Changes
= —TNEF &
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTaET FHEL FAT
Profit/(loss) attributable to: — AT EIBRENG
wAl/ (E1) - —
— Equity holders of the parent — RN RARERFBA 165,131 (150,387) 315,518
— Non-controlling interests — IR 65,025 (238,237) 303,262
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF/ (HE) 230,156 (388,624) 618,780
Net assets and equity attributable to equity holders of the EEFERSARERITE ARELE
parent ity

Net assets and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent of the AREBZBEFBELES A RERTE ARG

Group are summarized as below: — =B - —
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
—T-%F —TNF
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEET
Total assets EEE 6,568.8 9,593.0
Total liabilities FEY=Fr 3,782.2 6,949.7
Net assets BETE 2,786.6 2,643.3
Equity attributable to equity BARERFE ARGERE
holders of the parent 2,220.0 1,921.5
~
J’f \{

BEEOERRERAF 19
“ERCREFH e



Financial Review

Ly A

Liquidity, borrowing and financial resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash amounted to approximately
HK$2,375.3 million as compared with HK$2,422 million as at
31 December 2019. Below set out the analysis of cash by currency
type: —

RBES - ERR

BB ER

RIZBE-ZTF+-_A=+—H AEBEZRS
#9/42,375,300,0008 70 M—_Z— &+ =
A=+—H8142,422,000,000/ 7T » LA ~&

SR EHRRED B ZRENN

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2020 2019

—E-FF —NF

(% of total cash) (% of total cash)

(FELBE%) (HR2BE%)

Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE(TAR®]) 94 86
Australia Dollar (‘AUD”) BT (DRt )) 4 11
United States Dollar (“USD”) EM(Ev)) 1 2
Hong Kong Dollar BT 1 1
100 100

As at 31 December 2020, the current ratio, which is the quotient RZZEZTF+H=+—H ' R E(A

arrived at by dividing current assets by current liabilities, was 0.9 as
compared with 1.19 as at 31 December 2019, primarily attributable to
approximately HK$1.6 billion of partial consideration in relation to the
disposal of Parcel C having been deferred by three years and classified
as long-term receivables.
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REE 2 BB MEFAE 2D RBEREIIM
as below: — T:—

The maturity profile of total debt and borrowings of the Group is set out

As at 31 December

W+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEH —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Debts and borrowings B R EK
Interest bearing: ETA
Loan from a financial institution DEAFEHEZ
classified as held for sale —IBSRMEE R - 973,475
Loan from an intermediate —EPEERARIER
holding company 873,000 3,513,166
Non-interest bearing TEHE
Loans from an intermediate —fREIER AR ER
holding company - 674,416
Total debts and borrowings (UL AEE 873,000 5,161,057
Repayable: B
Within one year —FK 873,000 4,187,582
After one year but within two years —FEBRFEN - 973,475
After two years but within five years MERBREFNA - —
873,000 5,161,057
~
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The gearing ratios of the Group is calculated as below: —

AEBZEXREEL

EEHEMT : —

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2020 2019
T_EF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Total debts and borrowings BT R iE R 4B5E 873,000** 5,161,057
Less: Total cash and bank balances pa fﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ%@ 5 2,375,300 2,453,880*
Net (cash)/debts (BR&) B FE (1,502,300) 2,707,177
Total equity BRELS 2,786,593 2,643,310
Total assets BEE 6,568,754 9,592,979
Gearing ratios: BEREELE
Net debts over aggregate of BTG FREkR AE TS FRE
net debts and total equity HA 4B 2 2 AN Net cash 50.6%
REFE
Net debts over total assets B FRER A B EE Net cash 28.2%
REFE

million respectively.

*k

The amount included cash and bank balances and restricted bank deposits
classified as held for sale of approximately HK$28.5 million and HK$3.4

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group derecognised certain
loans from an intermediate holding company of $1,329 million on the
due dates and transferred them to amounts due to intermediate holding

company, which were not settled as at 31 December 2020.
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Foreign currency and interest rate exposure

The Group’s business is principally conducted in RMB and USD. The
functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC and the USA,
are RMB and USD respectively and these subsidiaries do not have
significant monetary assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other
than their respective functional currencies. The functional currency of the
Group’s other subsidiaries is Hong Kong Dollar. The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily through loans that are denominated in USD. The
Group maintains a conservative approach on foreign exchange exposure
management. During the year, the Group did not use any financial
instruments to hedge against foreign currency exposure and the Group
did not have any hedging instruments outstanding as at 31 December
2020.

As at 31 December 2020, all interest-bearing borrowings of HK$873
million of the Group were on a fixed rate basis. Accordingly, the Group’s
cost of borrowing was not subject to interest rate risks. This is the
Group’s policy to monitor the suitability and cost efficiency of hedging
instruments and consider a mix of fixed and floating rate loans in order
to manage interest rate risks, if any. The Group will prudently consider
entering into currency and interest rate hedging arrangements to
minimise such exposures if and when appropriate.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no pledge of its assets.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group pledged certain of its assets to
a financial institution in the PRC to secure the loan of approximately
HK$973.5 million granted by that financial institution. The aggregate
carrying value of the pledged construction in progress, freehold land
and properties under development as at 31 December 2019 amounted
to approximately HK$864.1 million, HK$158.2 million and HK$3,878.8
million respectively.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

There are no changes in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had provided guarantees in an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$1.5 million (2019: HK$25.8
million) to banks in favour of its customers in respect of mortgaged loans
provided by the banks to these customers for their purchase of the
Group’s properties. Each of these guarantees would be released upon
the execution of individual purchasers’ collateral agreements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANY

On 24 November 2020, the Group completed the disposal of its equity
interest in Parcel C for a cash consideration of US$270,000,000 (“the
Disposal”). Further details of the Disposal have been set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 30 July 2020, 17 August 2020 and
25 November 2020, the Company’s circular dated 29 September 2020.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No Director has the right to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had around 526 full time
employees, who are located in the PRC, Hong Kong and the USA.

During the year, the Group remunerated its employees based on their
performance, experience and the prevailing market salaries. Performance
bonuses were granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
included insurance and medical cover, and subsidized educational and
training programs.

DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than the matters outlined elsewhere in this report, there have
been no matters that have occurred subsequent to the reporting date
which have significantly affected, or may significantly affect the Group’s
operations, results or state of affairs.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSHNEEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ding Benxi, aged 66, has been a Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Board since July 2013. He was also an executive
director of DWCM and served in various positions of DWCM Group from
December 2009 to February 2020. He was also a director of Dalian
Wanda Group Co., Ltd. (“Dalian Wanda Group”) until September 2020.
Before joining DWCM in December 2009, Mr. Ding served in various
positions of Dalian Wanda Group, including president, chief executive
officer and vice president.

Mr. Ding completed the correspondence course of Renmin University
of China (FEIARAE) in July 1998. He became a senior engineer of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation (FF Bl &£ T2 4272 A))
in August 1997.

Mr. Zhang Lin, aged 49, has been a Non-executive Director since
November 2017. He has also been serving as the director of Dalian
Wanda Group since February 2011. Mr. Zhang has been serving as
the director of Wanda Industry Investment Co., Ltd since January
2021. Since October 2020, he has also been serving as the President
of Wanda Investment Group. Mr. Zhang was concurrently acting as
the chairman and a director of Wanda Film Holding Co. Ltd (BZEE &
% B FR A a) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 002739.S7) from November 2006 to December 2020;
the chairman and a director of AMC Entertainment Holdings, Inc. (a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, stock code: AMC)
from August 2012 to 12 March 2018 and from December 2019 onward;
the chief executive officer of Beijing Wanda Cultural Industry Group Co.,
Ltd Jt mEEUbEXEE AR A F) (“Wanda Culture”) from December
2012 to July 2020; the president of Wanda Culture from January 2014
to July 2020; the chairman of the board of Infront Holding AG from July
2015 to September 2020; the chairman of World Triathlon Corporation
from November 2015 to July 2020; and the chairman of Wanda Sport
Group Company Limited (a company listed on the NASDAQ in the form
of American Depositary Receipts) since November 2018. In addition,
Mr. Zhang had also been a non-executive director of DWCM since
December 2009 to 29 January 2016. He joined Dalian Wanda Group in
March 2000 and formerly held various positions, including but not limited
to the vice president of Dalian Wanda Group and the finance director
of Dalian Wanda Group and general manager of project companies in
Chengdu, Shenyang and Nanjing respectively. Mr. Zhang has extensive
experience in financial management and operation management of
large property development, property management, and entertainment
corporations, especially in corporate strategy and investment.

26  Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

FHTES
THRBEE 665 BT =—FLAEE
EHFATEEREZEETF B -_TTIF
T-AZE-Z-TF R REAKETES
EREERNTEEIRNERERXEERE
ZERT - WRBREEXRESERERNER
AR([REBEEHEDEFEE_T-_TFN
HeRZZZNF+ - ANMAKEEZMEE
2R TRAEBEENERZRES @R -
BIRRE - ITH

BEL & BB, -
THRAER—NANNFLABEFEARKED
BRI - R —NNEF AR BT EEE
TRARRRMAIIZE -

FEE O BT —tHF T HARE
Eé‘Fiﬂﬁ%? BE-Z——F A HEIE
FREBEEEEFE - GF_—F— A
RAEFETEEEXEREBRARES B
TEEFTARECEERESBEEH -
H-ETEAF+—AEZZT_TF+=A"
%E?Eiﬂ%ﬂ*&ﬁﬁi%%ﬂxfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ(*F'EEJ

ANEBEEHFR S ETH AR - RO :
002739.82)2§$%FE§$ B-ZE—_—F
NAZEZZE—N\F=ZA+=-HREZZ—NF
+ = A - PE(EEEAMCIREAIT R A &) (AMC
Entertainment Holdings, Inc.) ( — & R 4l 49 75
HER G EMHAR] - RO - AMC)EE
EREF AT —F+-_A2_ZT_F
FLA EREREEVEXESEEESRA
ﬁ(f%iWKEEJ)ﬁﬂi@ﬁ' =T
F-AET_FTF LA EEEELEH
B, EE_7 ﬂitﬂi_Y_yijLﬂ
& {TInfront Holding AGE S &€ XJF : B - %
—hFET+—AZZZZF LA - EFEWorld
Triathlon CorporatonE =&+ KEZZ— N\
F+—ARE EEEEEESEEERAR(—
RIEEBPNETZE R A BHIELBF R LT
RENESER - WHN BZZETNFTZAE

ZE-RNF-AZ+NA  REETEFRE
BENETENIERNTES - FR_ZTTF
ZAMAREREEE G'EHIJTJ%’TE;TIHEJ%
il » BREETRAKESEEERBE R AE
BEEEMBBEARD %“JEEX%B &5
RE9IEH QBRI AR - (RIEER AR YE
- MEBERMRECENTEEEREE
BE BRRCERBREEAEHELYEK



Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
(RALEF £ RE) in July 1994 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accounting. In January 2012, Mr. Zhang received an Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from Beijing University (1t XA E2). Mr.
Zhang is a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a non-practicing member of the China Certified
Tax Agents Association.

Mr. Han Xu, aged 50, has been a Non-executive Director since March
2019, has extensive experience in finance and general management.
From February 2020, Mr. Han has been serving as the Senior Vice
President of Dalian Wanda Group, a joint stock company incorporated
in the PRC with limited liability, and a controlling shareholder of the
Company and is responsible for overseeing all financial operations
of Dalian Wanda Group. Prior to that, since his joining of the Dalian
Wanda Group in 2002, Mr. Han served in various roles including General
Manager of Finance Department of DWCM (formerly known as Dalian
Wanda Commercial Properties Co. Ltd.), General Manager of the Group
Financial Management Center, President Assistant, Senior President
Assistant, and Vice President within the Dalian Wanda Group. He holds
a Master degree in Business Administration in Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ning Qifeng, aged 55, has been an Executive Director since
November 2017. Mr. Ning is also a first vice president of DWCM and
the president of Wanda Hotel Management (Shanghai) Co. Limited (&
EREEE(EE)BRAR). Mr. Ning had been a vice president of
DWCM from December 2009 to June 2015 and had been a senior vice
president of DWCM from June 2015 to July 2017. Mr. Ning formerly
also served as a first vice president of DWCM,; a vice president and an
assistant to the president of Dalian Wanda Group; the general manager
of Wanda Hotel Construction Ltd. (& )8 /5 £ :% 8 R A 7)) and the dean
of Wanda Commercial Planning and Research Institute (&% 2
ft2eht ). Mr. Ning has extensive experience in property development
and property management (including hotel development and hotel
construction management).
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Directors and Senior Management

EENREER

Mr. Ning obtained his bachelor’s degree in engineering from Northwest
Architecture Engineering Institute (Fa3b25ETH2E0T) in July 1986,
a master’s degree in engineering from Northwest Metallurgical
Construction Institute (F1b)A & 2ZEZ6T) in July 1992 and a Ph.D in
engineering from Tongji University (B AE2) in May 2004.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. He Zhiping, aged 57, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since March 2018. He studied at the China Textile University
(currently known as Donghua University) in Mechanical Engineering
in 1979 and graduated with a master degree in engineering in 1986.
Since 1987, Mr. He has previously served as the assistant to the general
manager of the United Rail Ltd, Shenzhen Branch of China Nonferrous
Metals Company (FEIAEEERIIEE AR NEERAF), the
assistant to the general manager and vice general manager of Hainan
Sanya Huaya Enterprise Group Corporation (4 5 = 2pfE a5 (> 2 £ E A 7))
and a director of China Great Wall Securities, LLC (EWZEHERE TR
7). He was a non-executive director of AviChina Industry & Technology
Company Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2357) from August 2016 to May 2019. He has been the
chairman of the board of directors of China Wall King Holding Co., Ltd
(FPEE R EIEIRAR A F]) since March 2003. From December 2019
onward, Mr. He has also been serving as a director and a vice chairman
of JA Solar Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002459). Mr. He also serves social
positions such as executive vice president of Gan General Chamber
of Commerce, executive president of Shenzhen Jiangxi Chamber of
Commerce and the Council of Donghua University.
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Directors and Senior Management

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng, aged 50, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director since March 2019. He is experienced in mergers and
acquisitions and strategic management. From January 2017, Dr. Teng
has been serving as an independent non-executive director in Haisco
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (BERIEEEBR(HERAT), a
company whose shares are listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002653). He has been an independent non-executive
director of Aoshikang Technology Co. Ltd. (B+ERERMDER A
7)), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002913) since November 2018. He has been an independent non-
executive director in Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited
Company, a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 6869) since January 2020. He has
been an independent non-executive director in Litian Pictures Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 9958) since May 2020. Prior to that, he
was an independent non-executive director of (i) Shandong Gold Mining
Co., Ltd. (LE=E&BEEBRHBRAR]), a company whose shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 1787)
in 2018 and The Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600547) in
2003, from 2014 to 2017; and (i) ZTE Corporation (F Ei@BEIAL D

fR /A 7]), a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (stock code:763) and The Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000068), from 2015 to 2018. Dr. Teng served
as an assistant professor and then associate professor of strategic
management at The George Washington University from August 1998
to December 2006. He then joined Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business (K)TZPx) in January 2007 as an associate professor
and was promoted as a professor in February 2017 and has been the
associate dean there since April 2009. Dr. Teng holds a doctorate of
strategic management degree from City University of New York.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENREER

Dr. Chen Yan, aged 59, has been an independent Non-executive
Director since March 2019. She has extensive experience in accounting.
From July 2005, Dr. Chen has been a professor in accounting at the
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (R1t814E X E3). She is
also an evaluation expert in financial accounting of the China Scholarship
Council (BAREBEHEELZEEE) since 2015, and an internal control
specialist and financial advisor at Dalian Fang Yuan CPA Co., Ltd (X
#EHEgFHANEB AR A R]) since 2017. From 2014 to 2017, she
was involved in the risk assessment and review of the internal control
systems of various research institutes and organizations for and on
behalf of the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics. She was a
deputy director of the Accounting Department from 2003 to 2007 of the
same university. From March 2018, Dr. Chen has been serving as the
independent director of Liaoning SC Technology Co., Limited (% &
SVEHERR D AR A A), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability. Dr. Chen holds a Doctor of Business Administration degree in
Accounting from the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (3
1ELEFEE K E) and is a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (FEIEfl & &A% E) and a senior
member of the Accounting Society of China (T El€:t£2%). She was
also a former member of the American Accounting Association and the
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners, respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley, aged 53, joined the Group in December
2000. She is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is responsible
for the company secretarial affairs of the Group. Ms. Hui has over 21
years of professional experience in public accounting and corporate
finance. She is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. She is also a member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors and the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Mr. Chan Wan Woon, aged 36, joined the Group in June 2016.
He is the Deputy Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. Chan
holds a Master of Corporate Governance degree from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He is an associate member of The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. He has more than 12 years of professional
experience in accounting and auditing.
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The Directors are pleased to submit the annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and the Group are investment
property leasing, hotel operation and management, hotel design and
construction management services in the PRC during the year. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2020
is presented in Chairman’s Statement, Business Review and Financial
Review on page 4, pages 5 to 13 and pages 14 to 25 respectively. The
Financial Review also includes an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 in terms of financial
key performance indicators on page 20. Likely future developments
in the Group’s business are disclosed in Chairman’s Statement and
Outlook section of Business Review which forms part of this Directors’
Report on page 4 and page 13 respectively. The geographical analysis
of the Group’s revenue and operating profit is set out in note 4 to the
financial statements. The particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since 31 December 2020 (including but not
limited to transactions in relation to subsidiaries) are set out in Financial
Review on page 25.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found in
Business Review and note 36 to the financial statements on pages 5 to
13 and pages 263 to 271 respectively, with financial risk management
policies and practices of the Group covered under the aforesaid note 36
to the financial statements.
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The Group is committed to the sound performance of its corporate
social responsibilities and believes that a high standard of performance
is very helpful for maintaining sound relationships between corporate
and society as well as promoting staff confidence. The Group is a
keen supporter of environmental protection and takes the protection
of ecological environment and promotion of sustainable development
as its goal. We have introduced eco-friendly measures in our business
of investment property leasing. For instance, we have reduced our
carbon emission by implementing green building and energy-saving
measures. We have also reduced the potential impact of our business
on the ecological environment through proper waste disposal. Further
discussion of environmental, social and governance matters, covering the
Group’s environmental policies and performance is set out in Corporate
Governance Report and Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 59 to 81 and pages 82 to 116 respectively.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with rules and
regulations and the impact of non-compliance with such rules and
regulations on the business. The Group has been allocating system and
staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations
and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators through
effective communications. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with all relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.

The Company strives to achieve corporate sustainability through
providing quality services for our customers and collaborating with our
suppliers. To enhance customer satisfaction and promote a customer-
oriented culture within the Company, we take ‘Customer First’ as one
of our core values. We value feedback from customers and have also
established the mechanism in handling customer service, support and
complaints. We also proactively collaborate with our suppliers and
contractors to deliver quality and sustainable products and services. We
have developed certain requirements in our standard tender documents.
These requirements include regulatory compliance, labour practices,
anti-corruption and other business ethics.

The Group values its employees and encourages its staff to achieve
a good work-life balance. The Group continued to devote resources
to improve staff benefits with a view to improving staff morale as well
as attracting and retaining talents. We have established fair, open and
comprehensive employment policies to attract talent.
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The applicable discussion and analysis as cross-referenced above shall
form an integral part of this Directors’ Report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 124 to 127 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable, stable and continuing dividend policy. The Company’s
dividend policy aims to strike a balance between allowing Shareholders
to participate in the Company’s profit and allowing the Company to retain
adequate reserves for business operations and future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider in
accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company and applicable laws
and regulations, with various factors including (i) the earnings per share
of the Company; (i) the reasonable return in investment of investors and
Shareholders in order to provide incentive to them to continue to support
the Company in its long-term development; (iii) the financial conditions
and business plan of the Company; and (iv) the market sentiment and
circumstances. Compliant with the conditions under the dividend policy,
the Board may propose final dividends, interim dividends or special
dividends distribution as the Board considers appropriate based on the
profitability and capital requirements of the Company. The Company
shall review and reassess the dividend policy and its effectiveness on a
regular basis or when necessary.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has made donations of approximately
HK$350,000 in total.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 62.8% of the Group’s total sales in
2020 while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 31.4% of the Group’s total sales in 2020.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers comprised approximately 55.1% of the Group’s
total purchases while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier was approximately 51.5% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had any interest in the five largest suppliers or
customers of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements,
is set out on pages 274 to 275. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the Group
are shown on page 276 of the annual report.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme in Hong Kong
and certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to pension schemes operated
by the respective governments. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the pension schemes is to pay the required ongoing
contributions.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Ning Qifeng

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Lin

Mr. Han Xu

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED"):
Mr. He Zhiping

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng

Dr. Chen Yan
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In accordance with clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or, if their number is not three or a multiple by three, then the number
nearest one-third, shall retire from office by rotation save any Director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director. The Directors to retire
in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their
last election but as between persons who became Directors on the
same day shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
The Company at any general meeting at which any Directors retire may
fill the vacated offices.

In accordance with code provision A.4.2 in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
Every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All of the directors of the Company have entered into services contracts
with the Company. The term of appointment of Mr. Ding Benxi is 3 years
from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016; the term of appointment of Mr. Ning
Qifeng and Mr. Zhang Lin is 3 years from 17 November 2017 to 16
November 2020; the term of appointment of Mr. He Zhiping is 3 years
from 29 March 2018 to 28 March 2021; the term of appointment of
Mr. Han Xu is 3 years from 14 March 2019 to 13 March 2022; the term
of appointment of Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan is 3 years
from 21 March 2019 to 20 March 2022; each of which is renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from
the date next after the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party. None of the above service contracts is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the ordinary shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordnance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchange, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”), were as follows:

(1) Interests in shares of DWNCM (Note 1)
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(1) AREBEBXREERD T 2E
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Approximate

Long percentage of

position/ the issued

Short Capacity/Nature Interest in share capital

Name of Director position of interest Shares of DWCM of DWCM

HREEE

RREEE BXEEE

BEEE ERITREZ

EEnR BR/ KR B4 ERtE IR 2 R BMAOBESH

Mr. He Zhiping Long Beneficial owner 25,000,000 0.55%
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(2)

38

Interests in underlying shares of DINCM (Note 1)

(2)

RAEBEBXEEEBRO D

2R (fRE1)

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Long position/  Capacity/Nature Interest in underlying share capital of

Name of director Short position of interest shares of DWCM DWCM

HREEE

RREBERXER BMEEEERT

BEEnE HRE KR 54 EnitE HBERGOP 2ER BRARZHBABE DL

(Note 2)

(MHzE2)

Mr. Ning Qifeng Long Beneficial owner (Note 3) 6,000,000 0.13%
BIRIELE TR B&EEA A (PHE3)

Mr. Zhang Lin Long Beneficial owner (Note 4) 10,000,000 0.22%
R oY) EmEA A (Mt 4)

Mr. Han Xu Long Beneficial owner (Note 5) 1,600,000 0.035%
RIS Sy EmbEA A (7E5)

Notes: BT

Q)

DWCM, being an indirect holding company of the Company, is an
associated company of the Company under Part XV of the SFO. The
calculation is based on the total number of 4,527,347,600 shares in
issue as at 31 December 2020.

The percentage represents the number of underlying shares
interested divided by the number of DWCM'’s issued shares as at 31
December 2020.

Mr. Ning is interested in the underlying shares of DWCM through
his 12.02% interest as a limited partner of a limited partnership that
beneficially owns those shares in DWCM.

Mr. Zhang is interested in the underlying shares of DWCM through
his 5.18% interest as a limited partner of a limited partnership that
beneficially owns those shares in DWCM.

Mr. Han is interested in the underlying shares of DWCM through
his 0.83% interest as a limited partner of a limited partnership that
beneficially owns those shares in DWCM.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which have been notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief executive
of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or which have been entered in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or which have been
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Company did not have any effective share option scheme during the
year ended and as at 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and
neither the Directors nor chief executive, nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right.
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DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to the Company, the

following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the

Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying

shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant

to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, or were, directly or indirectly,

interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share

capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of

any member of the Group were as follows:

RIEFE KBS IROIRREA

Wz Em MR R

R-ZZ_TFE+-_F=+—H mARAFH
H: U TAL(BEZEARAEETHRAER
SN R MR D R A RIEES KBRE
RBIE XV B 336 5B M AN A A K 5 2 2
SRR - SKE RSk MR A AT A
BRTRAEETAKE AR ZRERS L&
= 2 BB A 5% sk A - 2 S 80K
BT

Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
Short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RAAT A NN
B3 B 468 S2EITREZ
e/ LB HRe/ KE 51 fEmHEE Rz R BAE DL
Wanda Commercial Long Beneficial owner 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Properties Overseas
Limited
(“Wanda Overseas”)
BENEMEGINGRAR FAE EREAA
(I&EEIN)
Wanda Real Estate Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Investments Limited corporation (Note 1)
EEMERERRAT e NRIEHER 2 s
(MFE1)
Wanda HK Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 2)
BERE e NEEHER 2 s
(MizE2)
DWCM Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 3)
RNEEEMFEEE A NEEHER 2 s
(ME3)
Dalian Wanda Group Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 4)
RNEBEEE A REEHER 2 s
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EEgHREE
Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
Short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RARAF EARAF
i1 K 4888 ERTREZ
rE, EH ) 5t Wi Rt oh 2 BREA
Dalian Hexing Investment Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Co., Ltd. corporation (Note 5)
(“Dalian Hexing”)
RNERERERR AT "R IREPEHDER 2 #Es
(TREAHE]) (M4 5)
Mr. Wang Jianlin Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 6)
FhMmELE HE MEEEDERE 2 s
(KizE6)
Mr. Chen Chang Wei Long Beneficial owner 278,098,230 5.92%
(“Mr. Chen”) and held by controlled
corporation (Note 7)
BRRE L e BmEa AR
(MBR5E&D) BXIEHEE
A (FE7)
Long Interest of spouse 23,600,000 0.50%
(Notes 7 and 8)
"R [iRREE
(MizE7 % 8)
Ms. Chan Sheung Ni Long Beneficial owner 23,600,000 0.50%
BRI 22+ A BEmEaA
Long Interest of spouse 278,098,230 5.92%
(Note 9)
A fo B (FizE9)
Ever Good Luck Limited Long Beneficial owner 73,860,230 1.57%
(Note 10)
Ever Good Luck Limited g EmlEA
(KzE10)
Long Trustee 204,237,800 4.35%
R HFEA
% g g &)
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Notes:

42

Wanda Real Estate Investments Limited holds more than one-third of
the issued shares of Wanda Overseas and is therefore deemed to have
an interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which
Wanda Overseas is interested.

Wanda HK holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda Real
Estate Investments Limited and is therefore deemed to have an interest in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which Wanda Real
Estate Investments Limited is deemed to be interested. Mr. Ding Benxi,
being a non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board, was a director
of Wanda HK until 17 February 2020.

DWCM holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda HK and
is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company in which Wanda HK is deemed to be interested. Mr. Ding
Benxi, being a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, was
an executive director and the chairman of the board of directors of DWCM
until 10 February 2020. Mr. Ning Qifeng, being an Executive Director, is a
chief vice president of DWCM.

Dalian Wanda Group holds more than one-third of the issued shares
of DWCM and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which DWCM is deemed to
be interested. Mr. Ding Benxi, being a Non-executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board, was a director of Dalian Wanda Group until
September 2020. Mr. Zhang Lin, being a Non-executive Director, is a
director of Dalian Wanda Group.

Dalian Hexing holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Wanda Group and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Wanda Group is
deemed to be interested.

Mr. Wang Jianlin holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Hexing and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Hexing is deemed to be
interested.

As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Chen was deemed to have a long position of
301,698,230 Shares, of which (i) 200 Shares were beneficially and legally
owned by him, (i) 204,237,800 Shares were held on trust for him by Ever
Good Luck Limited (“Ever Good”), (iii) 73,860,230 Shares were beneficially
owned by Ever Good, and (iv) 23,600,000 Shares were held by his spouse,
Ms. Chan Sheung Ni, as beneficial owner.
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8) Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen.

9 Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen. Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company in
which Mr. Chen is interested.

(10)  The entire issued share capital of Ever Good Luck Limited is ultimately
owned by Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen is the sole director of Ever Good Luck
Limited. See note (7) in the section headed “Discloseable interest and short
positions of shareholders under the SFO” in this Directors’ Report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Group has conducted the following connected transactions during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Disposal of Chicago Project

On 24 July 2020, Wanda Chicago, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, as seller, and Magellan, as purchaser, entered into a
membership interest purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) in relation to
the disposal of 90% of the issued and outstanding membership interests
of Parcel C, which directly held 100% interest in the Chicago Project, (the
“Disposal”) at the consideration of US$270,000,000 and repayment of
the debt in the amount of US$281,370,000, among which the payment
of US$200,000,000 was deferred (the “Deferred Amount”). The Deferred
Amount was increased by US$3,500,001 according to the Agreement
since Magellan elected to extend the initial scheduled closing date from
22 October 2020 to the final completion date of 24 November 2020 in
accordance with the Agreement.

Immediately prior to completion of the Disposal, Parcel C was an indirect
subsidiary of the Company and was owned as to 10% by Magellan.
Therefore, Magellan was a substantial shareholder of Parcel C and a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level.

Further details of the Disposal are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 30 July 2020, 17 August 2020 and 25 November
2020, and the Company’s circular dated 29 September 2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted the following continuing connected
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Leasing of premises for children entertainment, playground
and related business (“Kidsland Tenancy Agreement”)

Pursuant to the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement dated 8 June 2015 entered
into between Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza Co., Ltd.* (“Guilin Project
Company”) as landlord and Wanda Kidsplace Group Co. Limited*,
formerly known as Wanda Kidsland Co. Limited (“Wanda Kidsland”) as
tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC,
was leased for a term of five years commencing from 12 September
2015 to 11 September 2020 for the operation of children entertainment
and playground business and other related business, including the sale
of kids clothing and food and beverage. A supplemental deed dated 2
August 2019 was entered into by the same parties to amend the size of
the area leased under the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement.

On 7 September 2020, Guilin Project Company entered into a
new Kidsland Tenancy Agreement with Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Kids
Entertainment Co., Ltd*, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wanda Kidsland
to renew the existing lease for a further term of 15 years commencing
from 12 September 2020 to 11 September 2035 (both days inclusive).

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Wanda Kidsland and Guiliu Gaoxin Wanda Kids
Entertainment Co., Ltd are indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Jianlin
who is a controlling shareholder of the Company, they are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The cap for the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company under
the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement dated 8 June 2015 (as amended by
the supplemental deed dated 2 August 2019) for the period from 1
January 2020 to 11 September 2020 was RMB1,034,000 and the actual
amount incurred was approximately RMB752,000.
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The cap for the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company under
the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement dated 7 September 2020 for the period
from 12 September 2020 to 31 December 2020 was RMB458,000 and
the actual amount incurred was approximately RMB456,000.

Leasing of premises for operation of cinema and related
business (“Cinema Tenancy Agreement")

Pursuant to the Cinema Tenancy Agreement dated 8 September 2015
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Wanda
Film Holding Co., Ltd* (formerly known as Wanda Cinema Line Holding
Co., Ltd) and Nanning Wanda International Movie Mall Company
Limited* as tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin
City, the PRC, was leased for a term of 20 years commencing from 12
September 2015 to 11 September 2035 for the operation of cinema
business and related business, including sale of food and beverages.
Pursuant to a deed of novation between Wanda Cinema, Nanning
Wanda International Movie Mall Company Limited (“Nanning Wanda
Cinema”) and Guilin Project Company dated 2 August 2019, Wanda
Cinema agreed to transfer and Nanning Wanda Cinema agreed to
assume all of Wanda Cinema'’s rights and obligations in and under
the Cinema Tenancy Agreement for the remaining term of the Cinema
Tenancy Agreement as from 2 August 2019 and Guilin Project Company
agreed to such novation.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Wanda Cinema and Nanning Wanda Cinema are
indirectly wholly-owned by Dalian Wanda Group which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, Wanda Cinema and Nanning Wanda
Cinema are connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Cinema Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2020 was RMB3,372,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB600,000.
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Leasing of premises for children entertainment, playground
and other related business under the brand of “Wanda
Kidsplace * (B2 B £ )" ("Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement")

Pursuant to the Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement dated 29 June 2018
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Guilin
Gaoxin Wanda Kids Entertainment Co., Ltd (“Guilin Wanda Kids”) as
tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC,
was leased for a term of ten years commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30
June 2028 for the operation of children entertainment and playground
business and other related business, including the sale of kids clothing
and food and beverage, under the brand of “Wanda Kidsplace * (& %
Z B T)". Supplemental deed dated 2 August 2019 was entered into
by the same parties to amend the size of the area leased under the
Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Guilin Wanda Kids is indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Wang Jianlin who is a controlling shareholder of the Company, Guilin
Wanda Kids is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project
Company under the Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2020 was RMB83,000, and the actual amount incurred
was approximately RMB69,000.

Leasing of premises for kids experience business under the
brand of "Wanda Kidsplace International Early Education Club*

(BEEE B TEBRRZELER)" ("Early Education Tenancy

Agreement”)

Pursuant to the Early Education Tenancy Agreement dated 29 June
2018 entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and
Horgos Wanda Education Technology Co., Ltd Guilin Branch (“Horgos
Wanda Education”) as tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza
in Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of five years commencing
from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2022 for the operation of kids experience
business under the brand of “Wanda Kidsplace International Early
Education Club * (EiEE H TEIRFZIELEES)”. A supplemental deed
dated 2 August 2019 was entered into by the same parties to amend the
size of the area leased under the Early Education Tenancy Agreement.
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Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Since Horgos Wanda Education is indirectly wholly-owned by
Dalian Wanda Group who is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
Horgos Wanda Education is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Early Education Tenancy Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2020 was RMB717,000, and the actual amount incurred
was approximately RMB265,000.

Leasing of premises for carpark business (“Carpark Tenancy
Agreement”)

Pursuant to the Carpark Tenancy Agreement dated 28 June 2019
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Guilin
Wanda Shopping Plaza Business Management Co., Ltd (“Wanda Plaza
Business Management”) as tenant, certain carpark premises of the Guilin
Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of three years
commencing from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2022 for the operation of
carpark business.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Since Wanda Plaza Business Management is indirectly wholly-
owned by DWCM who is an indirect holding company and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, Wanda Plaza Business Management is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total amount payable to the Guilin Project
Company under the Carpark Tenancy Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2020 was RMB3,120,000, and the actual amount incurred
was approximately RMB2,594,000.

Provision of hotel management services to DWCM

Pursuant to the hotel management framework agreement (the “Hotel
Management Framework Agreement”) dated 13 November 2018 entered
into between the Company and DWCM, DWCM may from time to time
engage the Group (including Wanda Hotel Management Group) to
provide hotel management services (the “Hotel Management Services”)
which may include, among others:
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—  pre-opening support and technical advisory services regarding
specification standards required for hotels being managed
and other coordination services to facilitate the pre-opening
preparation;

—  procurement of services and products for operation of hotels;

— carrying out marketing and business development activities and
providing accounting, finance, human resources and information
technology functions;

—  setting the prices of guest rooms and other services; and
—  other relevant functions and services for the operation of hotels

for the property projects of DWCM for a term from 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2038. Members of the Group and DWCM Group
shall enter into separate agreements (“Individual Hotel Management
Agreement(s)”) in relation to the provision of Hotel Management Services
for relevant projects, which shall be subject to the terms and conditions
under the Hotel Management Framework Agreement and the applicable
annual caps. The duration of each Individual Hotel Management
Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement and the terms of the Individual Hotel
Management Agreements shall be made on normal commercial terms.
DWCM is a controlling shareholder of the Company, and DWCM Group
is a connected person of the Company and the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The service fees payable by the DWCM Group to the Group for the Hotel
Management Services for each hotel shall be fair and reasonable and
shall be charged on the following basis:

(i) management fees comprising a base management fee at a rate of
2.5% of the gross operating revenue of the relevant hotel and an
incentive management fee at a rate between 6% and 8% (inclusive)
of the gross operating profit of the relevant hotel;

(i) group service fees for the relevant financial, human resources and/
or information technology services provided by the Group charged
at a rate of 2% of the gross operating revenue of the relevant hotel;
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(iy  pre-opening fees, comprising a hotel pre-opening support fee
of RMB500,000 (or other currency equivalent) for each hotel
and a technical services fee of RMB2 million (or other currency
equivalent) for each hotel; and

(iv) 6% of the room income for each room booking made via the
official reservation systems of hotels under Wanda Hotel Brands;
5.6% of the of aggregate revenue contributed by each customer
introduced by the regional sale department of hotels of Wanda
Hotel Brands; and 5% of certain spending of any member of
Wanda Club, a club for customers of the hotels of Wanda Hotel
Brands.

The annual caps of the total amount payable by DWCM Group for each
of the three years ending 31 December 2021 for the provision of Hotel
Management Services by the Group are approximately RMB81,118,000,
RMB80,804,000 and RMB81,988,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the DWCM Group to the Group
for the Hotel Management Services under the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted
to approximately RMB37,780,000.

Leasing of property (including office, storage and parking
space) in the PRC for daily operation needs and provide
property management services for the leased properties (the
“Management Services") by DWCM Group to the Group

Pursuant to property leasing framework agreement (the “Property
Leasing Framework Agreement”) dated 13 November 2018 entered
into between the Company as lessee and the DWCM Group as lessor,
DWCM Group may from time to time (i) lease property (including office,
storage and parking space) in the PRC to Wanda Hotel Management
Group for its daily operation needs and (ii) provide Management Services
in accordance with the terms and conditions thereto.
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Management Services to be provided by the DWCM Group will be
specific to the leased property, and may include but are not limited
to the management and maintenance of shared and public facilities
(such as rooftops, corridors, flowerbeds, trees, outdoor pipes, drains,
ponds, car parks, etc.) and traffic and parking management at the
leased property. Members of the Group and DWCM Group shall enter
into separate agreements (“Individual Lease Agreement(s)”) in relation
to the lease of property by DWCM Group to Wanda Hotel Management
Group (depending on the particular property being leased, this may
include Management Services), which shall be subject to the terms
and conditions under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement
and the annual caps thereunder. The duration of each Individual Lease
Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement and the terms of the Individual Lease Agreements shall be
made on normal commercial terms.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under
the Property Leasing Framework Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2021 are approximately RMB15,438,000,
RMB16,114,000 and RMB16,824,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the Group to the DWCM Group
for the Management Services under the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately RMB14,885,000.

Provision of hotel design services to Dalian Wanda Group

On 18 October 2019, the Company entered into the hotel design
framework agreement (the “Hotel Design Framework Agreement”) with
Dalian Wanda Group, pursuant to which Dalian Wanda Group and/or its
subsidiaries may from time to time engage the Group including Wanda
Hotel Management Group to provide hotel design services (the “Hotel
Design Services”) which may include, among others:

- interior, furniture, fixtures and equipment design and consulting
services;

- back-of-house area design review services;

- outdoor direction signage and indoor lighting design consulting
services; and

- kitchen and launderette area design services
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for the hotel projects of Dalian Wanda Group for a term until
31 December 2021. Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries and the
Group shall enter into separate agreements (the “Individual Hotel Design
Agreement(s)”) in relation to the provision of Hotel Design Services for
relevant projects, which shall be subject to the terms and conditions
under the Hotel Design Framework Agreement and the annual caps
thereunder. The duration of each Individual Hotel Design Agreement shall
not exceed the term of the Hotel Design Framework Agreement and
the terms of the Individual Hotel Design Agreements shall be made on
normal commercial terms.

The service fees payable by Dalian Wanda Group to the Group for the
Hotel Design Services under each Individual Hotel Design Agreement
shall be fair and reasonable and shall be determined with reference
to the prevailing market prices by taking into account the quotations
obtained by Dalian Wanda Group from at least two independent third
party suppliers for the provision of equivalent or similar services in their
ordinary course of business and which shall not, from the Group’s
perspective, be less favourable than the rates charged and terms for
equivalent or similar services provided by the Group to independent third
party in hotels of equivalent or similar grading.

The annual caps of the total amount payable by Dalian Wanda Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2021 for the provision of
hotel design services by the Group are approximately RMB52,340,000,
RMB92,450,000 and RMB70,920,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the Dalian Wanda Group to the Group
in respect of the provision of Hotel Design Services under the Hotel
Design Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to approximately RMB39,212,000.

Dalian Wanda Group is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For details of the said transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 18 October 2019 and circular dated 28 November
2019.
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Provision of hotel construction management services to Dalian
Wanda Group

On 18 October 2019, the Company entered into the hotel construction
management framework agreement (the “Hotel Construction
Management Framework Agreement”) with Dalian Wanda Group,
pursuant to which Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries may from
time to time engage the Group including Wanda Hotel Management
Group to provide hotel construction management services (the “Hotel
Construction Management Services”). For the avoidance of doubt, such
services do not include project design, construction and supervision
work, in respect of which Dalian Wanda Group should hire relevant
professional advisory body(ies) and be responsible for such expenses.
Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries and the Group shall
enter into separate agreements (the “Individual Hotel Construction
Management Agreement(s)”) in relation to the provision of hotel
construction management services for relevant projects, which shall
be subject to the terms and conditions under the Hotel Construction
Management Framework Agreement and the annual caps thereunder.
The duration of each Individual Hotel Construction Management
Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Hotel Construction
Management Framework Agreement and the terms of the Individual
Hotel Construction Management Agreements shall be made on normal
commercial terms.

The service fees payable by Dalian Wanda Group to the pricing policy:
Group for the hotel construction management services for each hotel
shall be fair and reasonable and the consultation and hotel construction
management service fees for each project shall be charged according
to the project area and such fee shall not exceed RMB136 per square
meter.

The annual caps of the total amount payable by Dalian Wanda Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2021 for the provision of
hotel construction management services by the Group are approximately
RMB10,870,000, RMB31,690,000 and RMB25,120,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the Dalian Wanda Group to the Group
in respect of the provision of Hotel Construction Management Services
under the Hotel Construction Management Framework agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB14,797,000.
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Dalian Wanda Group is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For details of the said transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 18 October 2019 and circular dated 28 November
2019.

*

English translation is directly translated from Chinese and is for illustrative
purpose only.

Review by and Confirmation of INEDs

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected transactions
conducted during the year ended 31 December 2020, and confirmed
that such transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better to the Group; and

(8) according to the terms in the relevant transaction agreements,
which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation by the Auditors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain work on continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors of
the Company have confirmed by way of a letter to the Board that, for the
year ended 31 December 2020:

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board;

(2)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;
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(8)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in this annual report, nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that such
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap
set and disclosed by the Company.

During the year, the Group has not entered into any other significant
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which should
be disclosed pursuant to the requirement under the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the
related party transactions set out in note 33 to the financial statements
which were also connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or any entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES

Details of emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
Directors/employees of the company are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the

financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2020, the interest of Directors and their respective
associates in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either

directly or indirectly, with business of the Group:

Name of Director/
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Nature of interest in

Business of

associate Name of company the company the company
EE WMEAME NEEH REZAFPHEEZME EANCIPE S
Mr. Ning Qifeng DWCM Interested in underlying shares  Engaging in property
representing 0.13% of the development, property
issued share capital of lease, property
DWCM management and
investment holding
EHELE REEEEEER mﬁ%mﬁkéiﬁiﬁﬂ WEMERE - WE
BEEITRAZ0.13% 2 HE - -MEEER
HERm RS ER REEK
Mr. Zhang Lin DWCM Interested in underlying shares  Engaging in property
representing 0.22% of the development, property
issued share capital of lease, property
DWCM management and
investment holding
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EFEWRES

Name of Director/

Nature of interest in

REARFESZME

Business of
the company
EANCIPA +

Interested in underlying shares
representing 0.035% of the
issued share capital of

REERKEEEHEEE
BT 2 0.035% <
FERERR (0 R A

Being a shareholder
with 0.55% interest

Engaging in property
development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding

WEMERE - WX
HE  MEEER
REER

Engaging in property
development, property

associate Name of company the company
BEE MBRANSE NEERE
Mr. Han Xu DWCM

DWCM
IR AE NEBERETRE
Mr. He Zhiping DWCM
A& E NEBERMFEERE FAEREE -

As at 31 December 2020, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors or their respective associates was interested in any business
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with
business of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each INED an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
all the INEDs to be independent.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in the
information of Directors required to be disclosed is as follows:

Mr. Ding Benxi ceased to be a director of Dalian Wanda Group in
September 2020.

Mr. Zhang Lin began serving as the director of Wanda Industry
Investment Co., Ltd since January 2021. He has also been serving as
the President of Wanda Investment Group since October 2020. He
ceased to act as the chairman and a director of Wanda Film Holding Co.
Ltd (BEEZRMHEMRAF]) (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 002739.S2) since December 2020. He ceased
to be the chief executive officer and president of Wanda Culture since
July 2020. He ceased to be the chairman of the board of Infront Holding
AG since September 2020. He ceased to be the chairman of World
Triathlon Corporation since July 2020.

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng began serving as an independent non-executive
director in Litian Pictures Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 9958)
since May 2020.

The updated biographical details of the Directors of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report. Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9
to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Directors’ Report
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EFEWRES

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, subject to the relevant statutes,
every Director of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless by the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they incur in the execution of their
duty or supposed duty. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and remained in force as
of the date of this report.

In addition, the Company has taken out and maintained insurance for
the Directors against liabilities to third parties that may be incurred in the
course of performing their duties as at the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

During the year, Ernst & Young was re-appointed as the Company’s
auditors for the year ended 31 December 2020 at the Company’s
Annual General Meeting held on 27 May 2020 and to hold office until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ning Qifeng
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 17 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is
essential for the effective management, a healthy corporate culture
and balancing of business risk. Furthermore, it is also essential to the
success of the Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) during the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020 as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Except for
deviation from CG Code provision A.6.7 as explained in the relevant
paragraphs on page 62 in this report, the Company has complied with
the code provision set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2020.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, including one Executive
Director, three Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Company has maintained three Independent
Non-executive Directors which represent over one-third of the Board
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The Board’s composition
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report is set out as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Ning Qifeng

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Lin

Mr. Han Xu

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED"):
Mr. He Zhiping

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng

Dr. Chen Yan

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their respective fields of
expertise and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional
ethics and integrity. The brief biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 26 to
30. There are no financial, business, family or other material relationships
amongst the Directors.
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BOARD PRACTICE

The Board is collectively and ultimately responsible for how the Company
is managed, its strategic direction and performance. There is a formal
schedule of matters specifically reserved to and delegated by the Board.
The Board has given clear directions to the management team that
certain matters (including the following) must be reserved to the Board:

—  Publication of final and interim results of the Company;
—  Dividend distribution or other distributions;

—  Treasury, accounting and remuneration policies;

— Review on internal control system and risk management;

—  Changes to major group corporate structure or Board composition
requiring notification by announcement;

—  Notifiable transactions and non-exempted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions;

—  Proposed transactions requiring shareholders’ approval;
—  Capital re-structuring and issue of new securities;

— Joint-ventures with outside party involving capital commitment
from the Group of over 5% of the relevant size test of the
Company; and

—  Financial assistance to Directors.

Day-to-day operations of the Group and implementation of the Board’s
decisions and strategy are delegated to the Company’s management
team.

The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary, has ensured that the
Board adheres strictly to all rules and requirements for its meetings and
the maintenance of full and proper records. Procedures are established
for every Director to have access to Board papers and related
information, to have the services of the Company Secretary, and to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense upon
reasonable request.
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The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and ensures that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publications of such
financial statements.

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31 December 2020,
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s
annual and interim results. At least 14 days’ notice is given for all regular
Board meetings together with the meeting agenda such that all Directors
are given the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
In addition, two general meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2020 and attendance of each Director at these meetings is
set out as follows:

EXCHHABARREARA 2 BRE - A
FEREAN GAE BRIER 2 85T ERRmEM
X o ERERITHEAR M EMZENERE -

BE_ZT-EF+_A=+—HILFER " &
FRORTOREH  UimAEE 2 BB%
AR EERMBRE  WEMHRIEREE
LEERPEES cMEESEERREREE
R+ B R ERSHRZNBE - A
CHEESHEHENERAMATREE -
AN REBE_Z_FF+A=1T—HILF
ERNERITRARREAER SEFHRZEE
FEZBERFEINT

Number of Number of
Board meetings general meetings
attended/held attended/held
EESERLH BERAERE
HE BT HE BT
Executive Director: BITES
Mr. Ning Qifeng BHIESE 5/5 0/2
Non-executive Directors: FHITES
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman) TARBERE(EHE) 5/5 0/2
Mr. Zhang Lin SRFRSTAE 5/5 0/2
Mr. Han Xu BIEEE 5/5 0/2
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHITES .
Mr. He Zhiping AIEFELE 5/5 0/2
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng PR EEE 5/5 0/2
Dr. Chen Yan PR IE L+ 5/5 0/2

CG Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that Independent Non-executive
Directors and other Non-executive Directors should attend general
meetings. Due to other business engagements, certain Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors did not attend the
annual general meeting and special general meeting. Please refer to the
preceding table for details of attendance of the Non-executive Directors
and the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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CG Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. Due to other business
engagements, the Chairman did not attend the Company’s annual
general meeting on 27 May 2020. Please refer to the preceding table for
details of attendance of the Chairman.

General meeting is one of the channels for communication between
the Board and the Company’s shareholders. The Company’s auditors,
were available to answer questions at the annual general meeting held
on 27 May 2020. Other than the general meetings, the shareholders
may also communicate with the Company through the contact
information listed on the Company’s website. Measures for effective
communication between the Board and the shareholders are described
in the paragraphs under “Communication with Shareholders” and
“Shareholders’ Rights” in this report.

Mr. Ding Benxi was appointed as Non-executive Director and Chairman
of the Company on 3 July 2013, and Mr. Ning Qifeng was appointed
as Executive Director on 17 November 2017. Whilst the Company has
not appointed a chief executive officer, the duties of the chief executive
officer have been performed by Mr. Ning Qifeng, the Executive Director
of the Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement is
adequate in view of the size and complexity of the Group’s operations.
The Board will consider appointing chief executive officer at an
appropriate stage when the Group has increased the size of operation.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
provide the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience.
Their active participation in Board and committee meetings brings
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the interests
of all shareholders.

The Company has three Non-executive Directors, an Executive Director
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, with the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors representing over one-third of the
Board. One of the Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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According to the service contracts, terms of appointment of the Non-
executive Directors are three years, from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016 for
Mr. Ding Benxi, from 17 November 2017 to 16 November 2020 for Mr.
Zhang Lin, and from 14 March 2019 to 13 March 2022 for Mr. Han Xu.
The terms of appointment for all Non-executive Directors are renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from
the date next after the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the Non-
executive Director or the Company.

According to the service contracts, terms of appointment of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are three years, from 29 March
2018 to 28 March 2021 for Mr. He Zhiping and from 12 March 2019 to
20 March 2022 for Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan. The terms of
appointment for all Independent Non-executive Directors Mr. He Zhiping,
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan, are renewable automatically for
successive terms of one year each commencing from the date next after
the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either the Independent Non-
executive Director or the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established and adopted a written nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) specifying the process and criteria for the selection
and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company.

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee shall, based on those criteria as set out in
the Nomination Policy (such as reputation for integrity, qualifications and
experience, time commitment and contribution to diversity of the Board
according to the Board Diversity Policy, etc.), identify and recommend
the proposed candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment. In
the case of re-appointment of Director, the Nomination Committee would
take into account factors such as contribution, attendance in meetings
and level of participation from the retiring Directors. Where the candidate
is appointed for the position of independent non-executive Director,
the Nomination Committee will also assess his/her independence with
reference to the requirements set out in the Listing Rules.
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Nomination procedures

In appointing a new Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will first call a meeting of the Nomination Committee and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members for its consideration
prior to the meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by the Board. The Nomination
Committee shall then make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval. The information, including biography,
independence (for nomination of non-executive or independent non-
executive directors only), proposed remuneration and other information
as required under the applicable laws and regulations will be included in
the circular to shareholders. A shareholder may also serve to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong a notice in writing
for its intention to propose a resolution to elect a certain candidate as
Director and a notice by the nominated person of his/her willingness to
be elected according to the Articles of Association, without the Board’s
recommendation or nomination of the Nomination Committee other than
those candidates as set out in the circular. The Board shall then consider
and have the final decision on all matters relating to whether to have the
recommended candidates to stand for election at a general meeting.
The Nomination Committee shall ensure the transparency and fairness
of the selection procedure.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to give the new
Directors more detailed information on the Group’s operations, business
and activities.
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According to Clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation save any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director. The Directors to retire in every year shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last election but as
between persons who became Directors on the same day shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by lot. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at any
general meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated offices.
Further, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next general meeting and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting.

According to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code of the Listing Rules,
all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
Every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Company to
the Directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agree to
waive any remuneration during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a
Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and a Nomination
Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of reference,
which are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions
of the committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are
circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where
appropriate. The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as
mentioned on pages 61 to 63 in the section headed “Board Practice”
above, have been adopted for the committee meetings so far as
practicable.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2020 to, among other things, assess the
performance of Executive Director, review and discuss the existing policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors, and the remuneration
packages of the Directors. The members of the Remuneration
Committee and the attendance of each member at the committee
meeting are set out as follows:

A '/\-h-
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FHEES
FMEZEREFELAM—REH R_T=
ZEERIT-RREEEHE  N(HFEE)F
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Number of

Committee meetings

attended/held

ZEEERRH™

Committee member ZEBHE HIE BT
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng (Chairman) BOREE L (F/E) 11
Mr. He Zhiping A sE 11
Dr. Chen Yan PREEIE L 1/1

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company has been established
since June 2005 to comply with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee currently consists of three members, all of
them are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties
and has access to independent professional advice in accordance with
the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

(i) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board'’s corporate goals and objectives;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of individual executive directors and senior management;
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to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the group of which the Company is a member company;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management who are not Directors are within the

following band:

Total remuneration band (HK$)

FNREEsEE ()

(vii)

(viil

BE—

Bx254

REMTEEZFHRAEESREZ

%
EERAN AL ZHM - A ito0w
BMBENRARRRKBERAZEE
P BIT Z PR AT
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FHERRRERIEBIFHERE 2 ERE

E W HEREEITRKRE ME R IEX
BRI M BERH &

HRAGESFEAEFTMBRASEETE
HARG 2 % -

ETFE+_A=+—HILFE - W3k
REEBXE ZHMN FATHE

Number of individuals

AR

HK$1 million or below
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meet at least twice each year. In 2020, the Audit
Committee met two times to, among other things, consider the annual
results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2019
and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 June
2020, discuss with the auditors of the Company on internal control,
risk management, compliance with rules and regulations, auditors’
independence, auditors’ remuneration and the scope of work in relation
to the annual audit. The members of the Audit Committee and the
attendance records of each member at the committee meetings in 2020
are set out as follows:
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Number of

Committee meetings

attended/held

ZEEERRE

Committee member ZEERE HE BT

Dr. Chen Yan (Chairwoman) PREEE L (F/F) 2/2

Mr. He Zhiping fAIEFELEE 2/2

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng xR B+ 2/2
The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of RIFPEE AT

reference, which was amended and re-adopted by the Board with effect
from 1 January 2019, in accordance with the requirements of the CG
Code for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. As at the date
of this report, the Audit Committee is comprised of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Chen Yan, Mr. He Zhiping and Dr.
Teng Bing Sheng.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(i) to consider and recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors;

(i) to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

(i)  to approve the engagement of the external auditors to perform
non-audit services;
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to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication quarterly reports and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

to liaise with the Board and senior management and must meet
with the Company’s auditors;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control system with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty

to have effective internal control and risk management systems;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and management’s response to these findings;

to ensure coordination between the internal and external auditors;

to review the external auditors’ management letter;

to ensure the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’ management letter; and

to review reports on the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosures in this report.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any matter

under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain independent

professional advice. It is given full access to and assistance from

management and reasonable resources to discharge its duties properly.

The Audit Committee meets with the external auditors at least twice

every year.
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Nomination Committee REEZES
The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. One RELZESFFEELBR—REE - N=T
committee meeting was held in 2020 to, among other things, review — —ZEFEHET-REZEGEH - U (EFEHE)
the composition of the Board, consider the independence of the BEEEG AN  ZREIFATEEZE
Independent Non-executive Directors and the retirement and re-election VA RESZREREE - RBEEEEKE
of directors. The members of the Nomination Committee and the UEREKEHEZESSZ L BREINNT :
attendance of each member at the committee meeting are set out as
follows:
Number of
Committee meetings
attended/held
ZEEEELH
Committee member E3=}-§74-1 HE BT
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman) TARBILE () 1/1
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng f st BR 11
Dr. Chen Yan R U 1+ 11
The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms AARR_ZEERFENAKMNIEEZEZEES I

of reference in June 2005, which was amended and re-adopted by the
Board with effect from 1 January 2019. It currently consists of three
members, including a Non-executive Director and two Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice in accordance with the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

(i) to review the performance of the Board and ensure that the Board
and its committees consist of directors with the appropriate
balance of skills, diversity and knowledge of the Company to
enable it to discharge its duties effectively;

(i)  to assist the Board in succession planning for the Board and
senior management;
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to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy. When reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall take into consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience in accordance with the
Board diversity policy adopted by the Company from time to time
to achieve Board diversity;

to draw up, review and update, as appropriate, the diversity policy
for the Board's approval having due regard to the requirements
of the Listing Rules in place from time to time, review and update
the objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy,
and disclose the policy on diversity or a summary of the policy in
the Company's corporate governance report;

to develop, review and implement, as appropriate, the policy for the
nomination of Board members, which includes the criteria, process
and procedures for the identification, selection and nomination
of candidates for Directors for the Board's approval. Such
criteria include but are not limited to the potential contributions a
candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills,
experience, independence and gender diversity in accordance
with the Company's diversity policy. The Nomination Committee
should disclose in the Company's corporate governance report
the nomination policy and the progress made towards achieving
the objectives set in the policy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors having regard to relevant guidelines or requirements of
the Listing Rules in place from time to time and, if a proposed
director will be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, his/her ability to devote sufficient time to Board
matters;
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to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors
and senior management, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive, taking into account all factors which the Nomination
Committee considers appropriate including objective criteria and
potential contributions a candidate can bring with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board, the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and skills and expertise required
in the future and ensure that senior management succession
planning is discussed at the Board at least once annually;

to keep under review the leadership needs and leadership training
and development programmes of the Group, with a view to
ensuring the continued ability of the Group to function effectively
and compete in the market;

to evaluate the needs for, and monitor the training and
development of, directors;

to develop the procedures for the performance evaluation of the
Board committees:

(@ review and assess the skills, knowledge and experience
required to serve on various Board committees, and make
recommendations on the appointment of members of the
Board committees and the chairman of each committee;

(b) recommend candidates to the Board to fill vacancies or
new positions on the Board committees as necessary or
desirable;

(c) review the feedback in respect of the role and effectiveness
of the Board committees arising from the evaluation
of the Board and/or any Board committees and make
recommendations for any changes;

to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;
and

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board.

(viil)

(x)

(xii)

(i)
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Board Diversity

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length service.
All Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. According to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the above
Board diversity policy of the Company has been approved by the Board
and adopted by the Nomination Committee on 23 August 2013 and
amended with effect from 1 January 2019 in compliance with the Listing
Rules.

The Nomination Committee holds meeting at least once a year to
review the diversity of the Board and discuss the measurable objectives,
including knowledge, appropriate professional qualifications, relevant
business background and experience, skills, relevant management
expertise and independence of Directors, and give recommendation
to the Board. During the year, the Nomination Committee takes the
view that the measurable objectives were achieved to a large extent. It
paid particular attention on the cultural and educational background,
professional and technical experience, and skills of the members of
Board and also reviewed the composition between Executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors so as to ensure appropriate
independence within the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the Group’s finance department, the financial statements
of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements
of the Group. The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as going concern.

The report of the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, and their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report from pages 117 to 123.

External Auditors' Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to monitor the independence of the
external auditors to ensure the objectivity in the financial statements.
Members of the Committee are of the view that the Company’s external
auditors are independent. During the year, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors are set out as follows:
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Fee paid/payable

Services rendered for the Group mAE RS2 RE B EAER

HK$'000

FET

Annual audit services FEZERY 1,095
Non-audit services: L ERTS -

Review of interim report ER P EmRE 346
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Group’s system of risk management and internal control includes
a defined management structure with limited authority, and is designed
to achieve business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provisions of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations. The system is put in place to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives. The Board has conducted review
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems during the
year ended 31 December 2020 including financial, operational controls
and risk management functions and ensured the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget for
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions at least annually.
The Board has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and considered them to be effective and
adequate.

In relation to the Board’s risk management and internal control
functions, the Board fulfils its duties by determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company by reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, developing and monitoring the codes of
conduct applicable to employees and the Directors of the Company,
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report, and receiving and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management of the Company. Where any significant risks are
identified, the Board will evaluate and manage such risks by considering
the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial results,
the probability that the risk will occur and the imminence of the risk.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function, but instead shares
and benefits from the internal audit function of its parent, DWCM,
which operates an internal audit function for all of its subsidiaries,
including the Group. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal
audit function within the Group in light of the efficiency and effectiveness
of the current internal audit arrangement. The situation will be reviewed
from time to time.

The Group has adopted procedures for the handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner and in compliance with the SFO.
The procedures and their effectiveness are subject to review on a regular
basis. Unless the inside information falls within any of the safe harbors
as permitted under the SFO, the Group is required to disseminate such
information through the electronic publication system operated by the
Stock Exchange to the public in a timely manner. All Directors, officers
and relevant employees are required to take reasonable precautions
for preserving the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication. If the Group believes
that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained, the
Group will immediately disclose the information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable.

Directors' Training

Pursuant to CG Code Provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in
the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.
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The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are
also issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their awareness of
best corporate governance practices.

The Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary. Individual Directors also
participated in the courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of
a listed company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online aids or
reading relevant materials.

All the Directors (namely, Mr. Ding Benxi, Mr. Zhang Lin, Mr. Han Xu, Mr.
Ning Qifeng, Mr. He Zhiping, Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan have
participated in relevant trainings and have provided the relevant records
to the Company. The Directors developed and updated their knowledge
and skills through participation in the training programmes, which in turn
ensures that they could make suitable contribution to the Board.

Company Secretary's Training

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary
must take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided her training records to
the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending in-house briefings, attending
seminars and reading relevant guideline materials for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good and effective
communication with its shareholders. Information in relation to the Group
is disseminated to shareholders in a timely manner through a number
of formal channels, which include interim reports, annual reports,
announcements, notices and circulars, which are published to the
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s own website.
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The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a valuable forum
for the Board to communicate directly with the Company’s shareholders.
The Chairman actively seeks to participate at the AGM and personally
chair the AGM to answer any questions from the Company’s
shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM. An AGM circular is
distributed to all shareholders at least 21 days prior to the AGM, setting
out details of each propose resolution, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. The Chairman explains the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll again at the beginning of the AGM, and (except where
a poll is demanded) reveals how many proxies for and against have been
received in respect of each resolution.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Company’s
shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting and Procedures
for Putting Forward Proposals by Shareholders at General
Meeting

Shareholders may request the Company to convene a general meeting
according to the provision as set out in the Company’s Bye-Laws and
the Companies Act of Bermuda. A copy of the Company’s Bye-Laws is
available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting
rights of the Company, or not less than 100 shareholders, can put
forward a proposal at a general meeting of the Company pursuant to
and in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda. The requisition
specifying the proposal, duly signed by the requisitionists, together with
a statement with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal, must
be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's relevant expenses.
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The procedure for Shareholders to nominate a person for election as a
Director is also available on the Company’s website. Subject to the Bye-
Laws of the Company, any shareholder wishing to nominate an individual
for election as a Director of the Company at the AGM shall, no later
than 7 days prior to the relevant general meeting, submit a completed
form of nomination to the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong, and in default the form of nomination submitted shall be
treated as invalid. Any such form of nomination shall be accompanied
by a biographical profile of each proposed nominee and a written
statement from the proposed nominee consenting to be nominated
and, if nominated and elected, consenting to serve as a Director of the
Company. The biographical profile of each proposed nominee shall
include at least the following information: (i) full name, age and address
of the proposed nominee; (ii) past and present directorships (if any) and
employment of the proposed nomineeg; (i) the information as required to
be include in the announcement of the Company under Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules.

Enquiries from shareholders to the Board

In order to ensure effective communication between the Company’s
shareholders and the Board, the Company adopted the shareholders
communication procedures on 28 February 2012. According to the
shareholders communication procedures, the Board is responsible for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with the Company’s shareholders
and in particular, use AGMs or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation. The chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite
the Independent Non-executive Directors, the chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration, Nomination and any other Committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, the chairman should invite another member
of the committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
These persons should be available to answer questions at the AGM.

The chairman of the independent board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that requires independent
shareholders’ approval.
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Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing, whose contact details are as follows:

The Board of Directors

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Unit 3007, 30th Floor

Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

The Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company will
consider the enquiries and concerns raised by the shareholders and
reply as appropriate.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the CG Code but about promoting and developing an
ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and,
where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our shareholders are also welcome.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”)
highlights the Group’s environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
strategy, measures and achievements for the period from 1 January to
31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”), which is consistent with our
financial year. We strive to follow the established principles of materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency in the Report and are dedicated
to maximise the interests of our stakeholders through sustainable
development approaches.

The Report is prepared in accordance with the applicable requirements
stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. An independent consulting firm was appointed to
provide professional advice for the preparation of the Report.

Unless otherwise stated, the policy documents, statements and data
described in the Report cover the ESG performance of the Group’s hotel
services business in the PRC, property investment project in Chicago,
the USA (until completion of the disposal of such property investment
project in November 2020) and Guilin project in the PRC. The Group has
also expanded the scope of this Report to cover the two leased-and-
operated hotels, namely Wanda Moments Hotel Qingpu, Shanghai and
Wanda Moments Hotel, Nanchang West Railway Station (“the Hotels”).

The Report has been approved by the Board before publication.

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group actively manages its ESG matters to deliver a sustainable
growth. As a socially responsible corporate, the Group makes
continuous contribution and considers our environment, employees,
business partners, customers and the wider community during
operations to promote the growth of a harmonious society.
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Sustainability Governance

The Group has established sound and stable ESG governance practices.
The Board is responsible for developing ESG strategies, evaluating
and monitoring ESG-related risks, and maintaining the effectiveness
of the Group’s ESG measures. Management of regional operations is
responsible for overseeing the daily implementation of ESG measures,
reporting to the Board in due course and ensuring compliance of all
applicable ESG laws and regulations. Our ESG performance is regularly
reviewed and evaluated, and the relevant progress and achievements
are disclosed to stakeholders in our annual ESG report.

To maintain integrity at workplace, the Group has zero tolerance towards
corruption and has implemented a set of anti-corruption policies and
measures that prohibits the offer and acceptance of advantages.
Members and employees of the Group are required to comply with such
measures and policies and act in line with the requirements. During
the Reporting Period, no legal cases associated with corruption were
brought against the Group and its employees.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group actively engages with a diverse group of stakeholders,
including employees, shareholders, investors, suppliers, customers,
tenants and community partners in places where we operate. We value
long-term relationship with our stakeholders so that we are keen to
understand their views and expectations, and take their feedback into
consideration for continuous improvement in the Group. Through daily
communication, general meetings across all levels of the business and
periodic ESG-related engagements with the stakeholders, we engage
and communicate with stakeholders throughout the Reporting Period.
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During the Reporting Period, online survey and phone interviews were
facilitated to collect the expectations and recommendations of our
stakeholders, including management, general staff, shareholders and
investors, customers, suppliers and community partners. Stakeholders
were asked to rank the relevant importance of the ESG issues to the
Group and to them.

Materiality Analysis

To ensure stakeholders’ feedback is communicated effectively to our
management and the Board, an extensive engagement on ESG issues
is conducted every five years, unless fundamental changes are observed
in the Group’s business. The feedback collected from the engagement
helps us understand and evaluate the Group’s ESG strategies and
performance through identifying ESG issues that are material to the
Group’s operations and our stakeholders. During the Reporting Period,
the Group engaged an independent third party to conduct peer review
and stakeholder engagement to identify material ESG issues that should
be taken into consideration in our long-term ESG strategies and for
disclosure in the Report.

A total of 19 ESG issues are considered as relevant to the Group’s
business and certain ESG issues are renamed to sharpen the focus
of the Group during the Reporting Period. Following the peer review
and stakeholder engagement, a total of 12 ESG issues are identified
as material to the Group for prioritising in reporting and performance
management in 2020, of which 10 ESG issues are adopted from the
list of ESG issues in 2019. The newly included material ESG issues are
“Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions” and “Product and Service Quality”.
After confirmation with senior management of the Group, the results are
used as a guide in the preparation of the Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group recognises our responsibility to safeguard the environment
and minimise the environmental impacts from our operations.
Recognising the unprecedented challenges brought by climate
change, we endeavour to promote sustainable development and
manage major environmental issues in our operations, from properly
managing resources and waste to promoting green building. Apart from
incorporating resources saving and waste management initiatives into
our daily operation, we have established environmental targets in the
Hotels to demonstrate our commitment in minimising environmental
impacts. The Group complies with relevant local environmental
regulations, such as the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC
and the Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC.
The Group has also complied with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste (to the extent that any such laws
and regulations are applicable). During the Reporting Period, there
were no violations, complaints, fines or sanctions caused by breach of
environmental regulations.

Using Resources Efficiently

Use of electricity remains our major source of greenhouse gas emissions,
which contribute to climate change. In order to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions and mitigate climate change, the Group has adopted
measures to optimise energy efficiency and reduce waste generated in
our operations.
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Energy saving measures are widely adopted in our Hong Kong office,
hotel management units and the Hotels. In general, we encourage our
staff to turn off unused electrical appliances such as lighting and air-
conditioners during non-office hours to save energy. Air-conditioners are
regularly cleaned and inspected to maintain energy efficiency. In Hong
Kong office, we use energy saving appliances with Grade 1 energy
labels. Besides, smart building management systems are introduced
to monitor electricity consumption of lighting systems in most of our
leased offices to enable more efficient use of electricity. In addition,
we encourage our staff to take public transport whenever possible to
minimise carbon footprint.

Further, energy saving targets have been set in the Hotels. In order to
achieve the targets, energy saving measures were further strengthened.
With reference to seasonal change in occupancy rate, we group together
our guests to certain floors to enhance energy efficiency. We review
energy consumption of different sources on a weekly/monthly basis to
check if there is any abnormal fluctuation. Lighting and heating systems
are also controlled and adjusted according to seasonal difference to
minimise energy use. For example, hot water system was adjusted to
lower temperature in summer. The duration of hotel’s external lighting
was shortened due to longer daytime in summer. Designated time limit is
set for lighting use in both public and office areas with regular inspection
carried out to check if lighting and air-conditioning are switched off on
schedule. During the Reporting Period, with effective energy monitoring
system, the Hotels successfully achieved the targets set.

Considering the global water crisis, the Group continuously implements
water-saving initiatives across our operations. In Wanda Moments
Hotel, Nanchang West Railway Station, water saving target has been
established. To achieve this goal, smart toilets are adopted, and water
saving showers are also used to save about 8 tonnes of water per
month. A rainwater catchment system is installed to collect and store
water for irrigation. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
encounter any issue in sourcing water for daily operations.
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R - S RERRE

The Group encourages employees to reduce the use of paper and
handle documents via online systems wherever it is possible. Other
business units such as hotel management unit also advocate green
office and paper-free working environment by reusing the blank side
of single-side printed papers and encouraging double-sided printing.
We encourage our staff to bring their own cups to reduce the use of
disposable paper cups.

AEBESEIEEFAEADAE S BBHE LR
BRI - B RBEM WBEER) TNE
BEEEREEITERRNZEQ B S B SR
TED REESERAE RERETHERE -
H B 8 T B HHR IR BN AR o

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions Unit 2020 2019
and Intensity’ =i g —E—hE
BEREAEREREE"
Total greenhouse gas emissions Tonnes (carbon dioxide 5,043 8,797
BERBEHHE equivalent)

AW (ZFHmESE)
Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes (carbon dioxide 77 0
BERBRINE (FEE1) equivalent)

AW (ZE(LIREE)
Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes (carbon dioxide 4,966 8,797
BERBRENE (HBE2) equivalent)

N (ZE(tiEE
Total greenhouse gas emissions intensity
BERBASHREE
Offices and Plaza Tonnes (carbon dioxide 0.1 0.2
WAENTES equivalent)/square meter

R (Z A ER) Tk
The Hotels Tonnes (carbon dioxide 0.02 N/A
ZEWE equivalent)/room night

AE(—EIHER) Eik

" The data of 2020 include greenhouse gas emissions from five offices in Hong
Kong and the PRC, Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza and the Hotels. The data of
2019 include greenhouse gas emissions from eight offices in Hong Kong and
the PRC, Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza and commercial component of Fuzhou

Hengli City.
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m e ©
IRIE - e ENERRSE
Total Energy Consumption and Intensity? Unit 2020 2019
BRAERERRE? B —EoEE —EB—-hE
Total direct energy consumption — cubic meter 35,482 0
natural gas MK
BERREAZE — XAR
Offices and Plaza cubic meter 0 0
WAERTES AR
The Hotels cubic meter 35,482 N/A
ZERE K TER
Total indirect energy consumption — kWh 8,317,081 14,107,476
electricity TERE
HEEREKEE — 8D
Offices and Plaza kWh 5,701,346 14,107,476
WAERES TELBF
The Hotels kWh 2,615,735 N/A
ZERE FELE TEMA
Total energy consumption GJ 31,323 50,787
RERENE HE
Offices and Plaza GJ 20,525 50,787
MAERES HE
The Hotels GJ 10,798 N/A
ZEBIE aE N3 A

2 The data of 2020 include energy consumption from five offices in Hong Kong 2 ZECTEMNEEeFECNESRPEN AE
and the PRC, Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza and the Hotels. The data of 2019 MER - EMEHEERSANZEEENRE
include energy consumption from eight offices in Hong Kong and the PRC, FHEE - —T—NFHBBRBELREE LT
Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza and commercial component of Fuzhou Henglli Bl o) MBS - HEM 8RS A RAEM
City. BB EEEREE

i
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Total Energy Consumption and Intensity? Unit 2020 2019
HREAEEREE? B —E-EF —E-hF
Total energy consumption intensity

BEEREREE

Offices and Plaza GJ/square meter 0.45 1.12
WAERES =EERAK

The Hotels GJ/room night 0.12 N/A
ZEBIE =R BB TER
Total Water Consumption and Intensity?® Unit 2020 2019
BWRKERTRE? By —EoEE —E-NEF
Total water consumption Cubic meter 155,050 221,324
HWIEKE MK

Offices and Plaza Cubic meter 133,834 221,324
WAERES ST K

The Hotels Cubic meter 21,216 N/A
ZEBIE oK TER
Total water consumption intensity

BEKERE

Offices and Plaza Cubic meter/square meter 3.3 5.3
WRERES SR EHK

The Hotels Cubic meter/room night 0.2 N/A
ZEBIE SNHKSE TER

3 The data of 2020 include water consumption from one office in the PRC,
Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza and the Hotels. The data of 2019 include water
consumption from four offices in Hong Kong and the PRC, Guilin Gaoxin
Wanda Plaza and commercial component of Fuzhou Hengli City.
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Managing Waste Responsibly

We are aware of the impacts of the waste generated from our
operations. As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has adopted
a three-tiered approach across our operations, which priorities waste
avoidance over waste reduction and recycling. We consider waste
disposal at last only and have appointed qualified waste management
companies to handle such waste disposal in proper manner.

Our hotel management units have also established and implemented
the following waste management initiatives with the above three-tiered
approach adopted by the Group. We strive to minimize waste generation
while offering first-class quality services, such as replacing one-off
consumable products with more sustainable choices. For instance, we
substitute larger bottles of shampoo for small ones. We also substitute
biodegradable packing boxes for plastic boxes. In the Hotels, we have
conducted waste classification and recycling and completed the waste
oil recycling scheme initiated by the government.

During the Reporting Period, approximately 17 tonnes of non-hazardous
waste was generated, while 5,450 kg of paper, 2,226 kg of plastics
and 4,550 kg of food waste were recycled respectively. In addition, our
operations did not create significant amount of hazardous waste.

Promoting Green Buildings

We decarbonise our business by adopting green buildings features
in building design and construction. The group strives to reduce our
emission footprint as well as optimising resources efficiency in our
properties and hotel management operations.

Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza is the signature green building project of the
Group. The building is managed by an intelligent building management
system developed by our parent company, DWCM, i.e., “Huiyun
Smart Management System”. Such system combines five stand-alone
building management components, namely energy consumption, fire
alarm, security, operation and equipment management systems, into a
centralized platform. It allows the Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza to operate
in safe, green and smart ways, and improves the building’s energy
efficiency while offering quality service to our customers. Our efforts to
create outstanding green building earned the “1-star” level criteria of the
China Green Building Label.

I%i% Z‘ié& /I:l#ﬁm
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The green building features of the Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza are
summarised in the following table:

Green Building Features Functions
REERERE il

ENEHS
*:

ERZNGERERFSHANT

Energy conservation device — electric sunshade
ENRERE — BEESR

Shields ceilings and windows from direct sun rays to lower
indoor temperature in daytime, reducing energy consumption

from air-conditioners
EEEBXEFNEEANRERLER - WEREBRERR
J_g ! ?}A\éﬁlﬁ W/J\JLUﬂLﬁRE}]Hbj/ \\;'\J:_j%% ©

Natural lighting design — dome skylights

AR R — BEIERE lightings

Provide natural daylight for indoor areas to minimise the use of

RER TR B R LR AME R FRBA R o

Water saving system — rainwater catchment system

EKZR# — RKIRERSR

To pursue the Group’s vision of promoting green buildings, we have
established the Wanda Hotel Design and Research Institute to
incorporate the concept of sustainability and green elements into the
design and management of hotels operated and managed by the Group.
The Group also recognize that climate change can have significant
implications for our hotel management and operations. Therefore, we
continuously seek to assess and identify the risks of extreme weather
for the hotels located in areas vulnerable to climate changes so as
to formulate and implement appropriate mitigating and adaptation
measures. For operations in the USA, we have set green building
requirements such as obtaining Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Design (LEED) silver standards.
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Collects and reuses rainwater for landscaping
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WALK ALONG WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group recognises the importance of our employees to our business’
sustainability and success. We provide competitive remuneration
package and benefits to attract and retain talents. We remain committed
to equal career development opportunities for our employees and
prohibit discrimination in any form. Apart from providing a health and
safety working environment, we promote work-life balance and continue
to invest in people by encouraging them to participate in different
trainings, empowering them to thrive in their positions. Our employment
management practices are guided by a series of fair, open and
comprehensive employment policies of the Group to ensure compliance
with employment-related regulations and laws. The Group complies with
the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in
Hong Kong, as well as the Labour Law and Labour Contract Law of the
PRC. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any major
violations related to the labour and dismissal rule and legislation and has,
to the extent applicable, complied with all relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

Talents Acquisition and Retention

To attract and retain talents, we have established transparent and fair
recruitment procedures and the employment policy is reviewed when
necessary. We are committed to creating a diverse and inclusive working
environment, as well as supporting our employees along their career
paths with equal opportunities and care. The Group’s employment
policy, strictly prohibits employment of child and forced labour across
its business operations, which is line with the Employment of Children
Regulations (Chapter 57B of the Laws of Hong Kong), Labour Law and
Labour Contract Law of the PRC, and the Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labour. Background checks are conducted on all job
applicants and follow-up actions will be conducted by management
in the interest of the individual if any child or forced labour existence
observed.
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We offer our employees with competitive remuneration package to
ensure talents are retained, with considerations of their performance,
experience and market salary level, and distribute bonus depending
on Group’s financial performance and employees’ performance. The
Group also provides employees with a wide range of benefits including
funds, social insurance, personal accident insurance, medical insurance,
retirement plans, education subsidy, annual health check, medical
welfare, as well as free working meals or meal allowances. Besides,
we strive to create an inclusive workplace by offering maternity or
paternity leave to eligible employees in accordance with local laws and
regulations, granting housing allowance to employees with inconsistent
working places before and after employment and expatriates, as well as
providing meal subsidies and special arrangements for ethnic minority
employees.

The Group believes that offering a structured and clear promotion
ladder is one of the crucial factors to retain talents and recognise their
contributions. We conduct performance appraisal annually for our
employees to communicate feedback, and provide appeal channels to
ensure fairness of the review process. In particular, the performances of
employees and management of the Hotels are reviewed on monthly and
quarterly basis to ensure that we maintain our service quality. Apart from
external recruitment, the Group recommends staff for internal promotion
when there are job vacancies available, in order to recognise their
contributions to the Group and enhance their career mobility.
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Recognising the importance of maintaining close relationship with REESHFETEE - BOBEASEEEE
employees, we organise various team-building activities and develop VEY)  REEEEVANERRE  WE4LE
effective communication channels with employees such as birthday & - BERE S REEES) o HPIIARIRLEE
parties, team gatherings and festival celebrations. Recreational activities ELMEE RS R E BT © 1o - PSRt

were also initiated to foster heathy culture and employees’ well-being. BARBE  TRHENZERENEEEHE
In addition, we encourage open communication and arrange regular AUARRE MBS EBEREMP N ERE
meetings with employees in the Hotels and collecting feedback and EmBREHE - WEINATHERIREER

satisfaction surveys in our hotel management units. The survey results BYRAEEBRFELSHMT - UAEE
and feedback collected enable the Group to identify the areas of BT EM TIESFT ©
improvement so as to create a better working place for our employees.

Engaging with our employees in the Hotels.
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Employee Distribution

BT

As of 31 December 2020*

HE—_Z_ZF+_A=1+—R1*

Number of employees by gender

EMRE S HNEERE

Number of employees by age group

RERHEREPNESRE
Aged above 50
5070A
23
Aged 41-50 / \
41-508% % Aged 30 or below
97 (N B0BIAT
104
Aged 31-40
31-40%% Dot

240

Number of employees by geographical location

RWEE I NESHE

Hong Kong
&

8 N
The USA /2
2% The PRC
s
|4

The data includes the Group’s hotel services business in the PRC, offices in

Chicago, the USA and Hong Kong and the Hotels.
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Number of employees by employees type
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Training and Development

The Group puts emphasis on cultivating our employees with various
training and development opportunities, enhancing their job-related skills
and knowledge. During the Reporting Period, the Group has delivered a
total 7,708 hours of training to employees, with an average of 17 hours
per employee.

To facilitate our employees’ professional development, we have arranged
an array of trainings in different operations. For instance, we have
introduced “Talent Scheme” and “Quality Talent Scheme” with aim to
equip our employees and managers with skills for promotion to higher
positions. Besides, we have offered soft skills training courses on sales
negotiation to improve sales, and Group branding and marketing courses
to acquire knowledge of brand management and market promotion
in hotel management units. Hotel management related trainings with
emphasis on hotel operations and “Train-the-trainer Courses” were also
provided to sharpen the technical skills of our employees in the Hotels.
For other business units, we have also provided technical training on
topics such as accounting and architecture to nurture our talents.

oo 4137
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We regularly organised training at the Hotels.

AIE MR F B RSB PHEIIRIE o

To incentivise our employees to pursue career development, our BEHBERMNEBERBERER 6ERKNE
employees are eligible to reimburse expenses including course fees and THREFINER  BIEFEELABEER A
related expenses, and are paid during in-service training. BENERIS I EAEEETE -

Average Training Hours Completed per Employee

BHEEETHZIN T HRE

Average training hours per employee Average training hours per employee
by employee category by gender
RESERESNEREEFIZIIRE RUEBE D NEEREE T ZIEE
30 30 20 19
25 F sk 15
& o0t &
< 15 16 <
» 15F » 10F
3 ol S
T T 4l
5 -
0N O O O 0N O O
Top management  Middle management General staff Male Female
SRERAR HRERAB —RET P poq 3
AN
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RIB - B RERRE

Unit 2020 2019
By —EB-EF —E-NF
Percentage of employees trained by employee category
RESEMNBINZIETESL
Top management % 100 100
aBRERAE
Middle management % 87.9 100
FAREEAE
General staff % 93.7 99.3
—RET
Percentage of employees trained by gender
RUERBESNZIEIES
Female % 98.9 99.5
eqis
Male % 88.4 99.7
Hi
Taking Care of Employees' Health and Safety BEREIREHEZS

It is our responsibility to ensure health and safety of all people working at
our premises. The Group strictly complies with the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
legal requirements on occupational health and safety stipulated in the
Labour Law of the PRC. To mitigate the inherent occupational health
and safety risks, our hotel management units have formulated the “Safety
Mandatory Provision” to outline the responsibilities of safety personnel,
daily safety measures, and safety-related policies, which require all
employees to follow.

We enhance employees’ health and safety awareness by offering
safety programmes and trainings during induction. To further mitigate
risks associated with high potential hazard activities such as entering
construction sites and performing maintenance work, we provide
adequate personal protective equipment to avoid occupational
accidents. We also maintain regular communication with our contractors
to monitor the health and safety issues at construction sites.

BRPEEEEERAEEINRERZE - KE
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In response to the COVID-19 outbreak, we pursued proactive approach
and offered related training to provide a safe and healthy environment
for our employees. Various preventive measures were implemented
in different business units to reduce the transmission risks, including
requiring all employees to wear masks, providing different protective
equipment such as masks to employees, intensifying cleaning and
disinfection at common areas and areas that are the most frequently
touched, as well as daily checking temperature of all staff.

Our hotel management units co-edited the first COVID-19 Prevention
Guidebook for the Hotel Industry (the “Guidebook”) with the national
emergency medical team of Huashan Hospital of Fudan University in
Shanghai, the PRC, which was distributed to all hotels of the Group
and shared within the industry. The Guidebook serves as an industry
reference, demonstrating the proper procedures and measures to
protect customers and employees’ health and safety, and to support
and receive national medical teams to undergo testing for COVID-19.
The Hotels also strictly followed the Guidebook to protect health and
safety of our employees. We have also implemented flexible work
arrangement in some business units to maintain social distance and

cancelled overseas business trips to reduce the infection risks.

AT EGE IR 822 FE ¥ COVID-19 T ik i = 18
% WIRERASEY - WABTIRHEZ 2R
BIRIE o RIEEERR - TR 2K BRI
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BREEEHEBRENERRES  UEkE
REEMBEINER -
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We conducted regular disinfection to safeguard employees’ health and safety in the Hotels.

RREETNRERLE  ZFZBEETEHHES -
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Our effort made in creating a safe workplace is reflected in our
performance record. During the Reporting Period, there was no work
related fatalities and lost day due to work injuries recorded.

RESPONSIBLE OPERATIONS

Sustainability and responsible business practices have been an integral
part of the Group’s way of doing business. We believe high quality
service, strong business performance and high ethical standards go
hand in hand. Besides, several measures are adopted to safeguard
and protect our intellectual property. We review our internal policies and
procedures regularly and keep an eye on intellectual property activities
to avoid any infringement. We ensure our business follows related
regulations and rules in respect of essential issues. During the Reporting
Period, we are not aware of any non-compliance relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided by the Group.

Maintaining Ethical Conduct

High standards of ethical conduct is the cornerstone of the Group’s
value. We respect human rights, embrace diversity and inclusion and
stand firm against corruption. The Group seeks to build up and maintain
trust with our stakeholders by these core values which are essential to
our sustainable business development. Well established internal policies
are in place in particular for projects tendering to ensure that we and our
staff comply with relevant laws and regulations in relations to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. They include but are not limited
to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Anti-money Laundering Law of the PRC. Whistleblowing
procedure is established to facilitate reporting of misconduct and
investigation and resolution of malpractice. Department managers are
involved to handle any reported cases, and where necessary, the cases
will be escalated to the Group’s management.
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Our employees undergo trainings on anti-corruption to ensure they are
familiar with the Group’s expectation on ethical and professional conduct.
For Hong Kong operations in particular, we arrange regular anti-
corruption refresher training provided by the Hong Kong Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC). As for our PRC operations, we
have also arranged anti-corruption training for some of our employees
during the Reporting Period. During the Reporting Period, we are not
aware of any non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

Managing Our Supply Chain

Supplier relationships are of paramount importance of our reputation and
brand. We work closely with our suppliers to ensure they meet our high
quality and comprehensive standards. In selecting business partners,
we work with reputable suppliers who provide the best quality products
and services, and give priority to local suppliers to facilitate sustainability
in the local economy and reduce carbon footprint from transportation.
To reduce the risk of over dependence to a few suppliers, we strive to
maintain a diverse and large supplier base. During the Reporting Period,
over 1,248 suppliers were engaged to ensure the stability of our supply
chain.

A comprehensive tendering procedure has been established to
standardise the process of suppliers and subcontractors. Suppliers need
to undergo a procedure of primary selection, audit, and public tendering
processes to being included in our suppliers list. These procedures
are expected to be effective to prevent the occurrence of malpractices
such as corruption, bribery, blackmail, fraud and money laundering.
We seek to buy at competitive price with desirable quality, but not at
the expense of labour standards, human rights, health impact or the
environment. Besides, the Hotels also take suppliers’ environmental
and social performance into account when conduct monitoring
and performance evaluation, which might consider terminating our
cooperation with those suppliers who fail to meet our social and
environmental performance requirements. During the Reporting Period,
some of our hotels introduced the use of smart scales to strengthen the
purchase acceptance process with the photo taking function to avoid
the possibility of fraud.

102 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

BFONE THRZRESHEI - AREFRBA
ABAEEHERREERTOHE - K5l
EHBEENH  BAZHEHEERBIAZE
(ICAC) IRt E IR E)SHEEFIER - ZRN P
2ETH  BANBEHEATRBHEILR
PERE)SE - RREHEA - HAAILARZ
BRABE 3R - MEFRARETHYAKE
BEARFENEBERLEROTERIBEN -

EER PR HER

HEFBERERMNEERREBAEE -
PR ERERAE - ABRHERTARM
Rk R ERE - NREEERY T -
B R ESEEEM KR B EERIFAMH
ERAIE - WBSEEEMER - LMEEE
Hh A8 7 ) B] 548 B R R D 18 8 A SR D ik 2
7o BRIEE S ERBEXBARR - &K
M2 N REEZ T REEARR HLRER EAE - 3R
SHARIN - BB 1,248 R EREEZREE - LR
RILFESEIZTE 1 o

AERED 2 TBAEREMMEE CHER K
DEBERE - HERTLBINE B LAM
BRERIE - D AIERARERBE - 1R
FELEEXMO LT - HIEDS - 17/
PR - BEFMARE - RIS RARBRF NN
EBRFEBEVERNERIRSE - AHANS
T A REZEIRES/NE - It
S BREFBEENETERERBFERTEE
AHEFNRERMEERE - AEEREER
EARE RIS RRBRIAZRKOMHER
RIEAE - RIREHRA - FBE I AER
BERRIBRIIENERETT - AN iRBER
WRRFF - e R BRFEAY AT BEE o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIB - B RERRE

Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region Unit 2020
RiEREE SN HEEREE By —ECEF
The PRC Number 748
R E B
Overseas Number 500
gl A

Enhancing Services

Customers are always our priority. We endeavour to maximize our
customers’ satisfaction through different customer-based services.
Customers’ opinions are vital to the Group to make continuous
improvement. For instance, we have established a customer support
service team in Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza to handle customers’
needs and complaints. Customers’ feedback channels are provided to
solve their inquiries and to address their complaints efficiently. Formal
customer satisfaction surveys are conducted twice a year while a
customer complaint hotline has been set up at the mall’'s concierge.
Our Operation Department is responsible for reviewing all complaints.
The department will direct accepted complaint messages to relevant
departments, ensuring that they comply with internal policies before
responding to the guest. All complaints are expected to be handled
within 24 hours.

In addition, Wanda Moments Hotel Qingpu, Shanghai evaluated its
customer services performance with reference to Ctrip rating. As at the
31 December 2020, the hotel obtained an overall score of 4.5 out of a
5-point scale in Ctrip rating. As such, the hotel set an aggressive target
of 4.8 for themselves to enhance their customer experience. To achieve
this, monthly reviews were conducted to evaluate the performance
against the score obtained. If the score fell below 4.8, around 25% of the
employees’ merit pay would be penalised. Besides, Wanda Moments
Hotel, Nanchang West Railway Station tried to increase the number of
feedbacks collected by actively calling the guests after check-in and
check-out.

During the Reporting Period, we received and properly handled 41
complaints relating to our products and services, none of which were
major complaints from external parties or regulatory authorities.

R BRT

EF—HERBMNE I - AEBHIEBT
FAREEPBLHNRBREEFPMEE - &P
MERHASEEHSESEEHES - B
ME  AEEREASHEERSREIEFPX
ERBEE - AEEEPH R - WRH
BEPRERE  UHAEFEAMNAREER
P&F - BSREFETRAEARPMEE
HE - MRNESRER LT RFER - 1,
e & ERRPIa B ERMA R - WHHERER
FrESEAERAERMT - AR A AP R ER
ARTEPTAEBER o FIERFTRBER 24/
BRI

o BB RBEXERE2EEIZIRTT
WA UFEEEPRHERR - R=_F=F
FH-A=1T—8  HEERBRIRTEND
(67H) 2 BEED /AL » Bt - JBIER]
MA4BDEVERMBIR  UIRFAEFER - AKX
ER o BES RETRE - MRIBPES BGY
HRE - WMEDER487  EEBHIRL
25% MM TE - Woh - FETEERER
EERREFPAEREREEIPDREURS
BHE -

RBERRAR  RAREYZFEE4 RE
TV E m R IRF AR R R - BRI ERE
SRR TT B E B R B AIRER ©

~
Jf\(‘

BEBEERRERLA 103
“RCREER

~C

~



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - S RERRE

Safeguarding Privacy

We strive to protect customers’ data privacy. The privacy and
confidentiality requirements are clearly stated in our internal policies. For
the collection, holding and using, disclosure and transfer of personal
data, our operation adheres to relevant local regulations, in particular,
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests of the PRC.

Maintaining Health and Safety

Customers’ health and safety is the utmost issue to us. A comprehensive
hotel management policy has been developed to safeguard our guests’
health and safety during their stay in our hotels. During the design phase
of our hotels, we make sure the design and layouts fulfil the safety and
quality requirements set out in Wanda’s hotel management units’ design
guidelines, to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations
including but not limited to the Fire Protection Law of the PRC. When
the hotel comes into operation, we make sure that sufficient emergency
planning is in place with adequate fire drills, trainings, and dedicated
personnel to monitor the safety of the hotel.

Responding to COVID-19

In response to COVID-19, the Group has introduced a series of health
and safety measures to all hotels. As an industry pioneer, we recognised
the urgent need to have a standard guide for mitigation measures
for the industry. As such, we consulted professional medical advice
from the Deputy Director of Huashan Hospital of Fudan University in
Shanghai, the PRC, as well as the commander of the medical team of
Huashan Hospital in Hubei, the PRC, and published the Guidebook with
Huashan Hospital of Fudan University in Shanghai, the PRC. Apart from
recommendation on emergency plan, the Guidebook sets out a list of
guidelines for room services, food and kitchen management as well as
facility management.

We are well aware that many travel plans have been disrupted amid
COVID-19. In this regard, we introduced flexible arrangements for our
guests to ease their pressure. We also actively helped our guests to
change room bookings to our other hotels which are located in areas
with lower health and safety risks.
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CARING FOR THE COMMUNITY

Recognising the significance of giving back to society, the Group
engages with the stakeholders in local communities in regions where it
operates and supports local community development through impactful
community investment activities targeted to the underprivileged groups.

In 2020, we donated HK$350,000 to a not-for-profit organisation and
our employees contributed 1,141 volunteer hours to support the needy
through diverse activities.

Provision of Quality Accommodation and Support Amid COVID-19

The Group understands the tremendous challenges faced by medical
staff and individual under quarantine. In this regard, the Group provided
them with quality accommodation while safeguarding the health and
safety of the local communities. During the Reporting Period, our hotel
management units and the Hotels provided more than 30,000 rooms for
quarantine to reduce the chance of cross-infection and received medical
experts to undergo testing for COVID-19.

In addition to providing quality accommodation, our employees from the
Wanda Moments Hotel Qingpu, Shanghai organised voluntary activity
to send their regards to frontline medical staff in the quarantine areas
including streets, health centres and disease control and prevention
centres during the Reporting Period. The Hotel also donated anti-
epidemic supplies to support them amid the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Employees of Wanda Moments Hotel Qingpu in Shanghai sent regards to quarantining personnel.

PEERBERERENE TMERREA X F@L -
Regular Visits to Nursing Homes for the Elderly

To demonstrate our love and care to the elderly in the community,
our hotel management units visited nursing homes for the elderly in
Nanjing several times to distribute fruits, do the cleaning work and have
conversations with the elderly during the Reporting Period. In particular,
around 20 employees visited the nursing homes with mooncakes to
celebrate Mid-Autumn Festival together.
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BEXGREEMARLA
(BR5E - B REBESDR

REL

Disclosure
WEAR

Reference
2%

A. Environmental

A RE

Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : Bk
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPIA1.1
FARAE IR AL

KPIA1.2
FRRE IR A1.2

KPIA1.3
FARERIEIR AL

Information on:

BRERIORERBHN - MKK&

THEHET BERETEEDH

EEFH

(@  the policies; and

@ BE: Kk

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

b) BEBTFHETABERTZENEH
EREIROIENERL

The types of emissions and respective

emissions data.

BERUTESE S ARRE HE AU

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and,
where appropriate, intensity.
RERBAEENER(WER) =

B o

Total hazardous waste produced and,
where appropriate, intensity.
PELEEREYRE N (ER)

e -

Environmental Protection
BHIRE

Not applicable — The operations of
the Group do not cause any significant
air emissions, and no relevant data is
disclosed accordingly.

THEA — AEENEETEEAE

B SR BB HE AR - I R A B R AR
BRI -

Environmental Protection — Using

Resources Efficiently
RIGIRE — EAEIR

Not applicable — The Group did
not produce significant amount of
hazardous waste during the Reporting
Period.
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General Disclosure and KPls Disclosure Reference
—RIRERERERIEE BREAR 2%
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced Environmental Protection — Managing

RREIERAL4

KPIA1.5
BASRIARUSIRALS

KPIA1.6
BARARUIRIRALG

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: ERFER

General Disclosure

—RRIREE

KPI A2.1
B RIEIR A2.1

KPI A2.2
BB EMIEIRA2.2

KPIA2.3
RASAARIEIRA2.3

and, where appropriate, intensity.
PIELBREREEYRE N (NER)
Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.
URR BE i E B FE i R PTIE AK
2o

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HARBEEERESEEZEYNS
E ORI E £ S B RS K
2o

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.
BREAER(BIERR - KRR
FEE) BOBRER o

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and
intensity.
RERSSMER R SHEER
BEEREE -

Water consumption in total and
intensity.

BFEKERRE o

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

ot g JR 8 A Wz 5T 8 KR AT 15 B
oo
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Waste Responsibly
RIRRE — Al M EEEYEE

Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Efficiently, Promoting
Green Buildings

RERE — SAER - HBERE
e

Environmental Protection — Managing
Waste Responsibly
RIGRE — A SEHIEERYEE

The Group did not produce significant
amount of hazardous waste during
the Reporting Period.
REERBREFELBEAEESE
EEEEY -

Environmental Protection
RIBRE

Environmental Protection — Using

Resources Efficiently
RERE —ERER

Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Efficiently

RERE —ERER
Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Efficiently, Promoting
Green Buildings
RERE — EAER  HIGE
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General Disclosure and KPIs Disclosure Reference

—REEREREREZR BREAR 2Z

KPI'A2.4 Description of whether there is any Environmental Protection — Using

RREIEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5
BARARUISIRA2.5

issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

Fid it Sk ERE A 7KOR _E AT A ] B

B AR RKS ST 8 RS
PSR e

Total packaging material used for
finished products and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.
HmAABEMHNEE (|
WA BEESBLLE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EBHEAS: RERXARER
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI A3.1
RRIRAAUIEIR AS.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.

AR EIT ABRIBE RRAEREK
BERAFENHR

Description of the significant impacts
of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

R RS RBH R IR L RRE R
BEAFVERCENEREBRTEN
178 -

Resources Efficiently
RERE —ERER

The Group did not encounter any
issue in sourcing water for daily
operations during the Reporting
Period.
zlx‘ilaﬁ HELERBRESFEEL

B SKEUE R KR EIRE ©
Not applicable — The Group’s
products do not require the use of
packaging material.
NER — NEEMEMBRER
BEMEL -

Environmental Protection
BRI

Environmental Protection —
Promoting Green Buildings
IRIRE — B ERE
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General Disclosure and KPlIs Disclosure
—REERBRENIEE BEAR

Reference

2

B. Social — Employment and Labour Practices

B. & — ERERZIESR

Aspect B1: Employment

EEB1 : EfE

General Disclosure Information on:

—RRARER BRAFM e BREREAF T
ERE - RE - FERE 2T

© RRAR DA B H M A B K AR A

S

the policies; and
B K
compliance with relevant laws

e
SINCINC)

and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
(b)) ETHBITABERTZENIEH
EERARBIEEE -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment
RASR A BIBIZ BT A type, age group and geographical
region.
MR EIREDL - FRERI Kt
BEDHIESES
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age
BRAETIEIRB1.2 group and geographical region.
IR - Fheiln iR E 5 e E
BmKLLE o
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Walk Along with Employees
B8 TRTT

Walk Along with Employees — Talents
Acquisition and Retention
BB TRTT — AT RARRE

Not reported — The Group is
preparing to disclose the related data
in the future.
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RIE - S RERWRE
Disclosure Reference
BEAR 8

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2: R#EHEZE

General Disclosure

—fR IR

KPI B2.1
FRSHE IR B2.1

KPIB2.2
RARAERUIEIRB2.2

KPIB2.3
RASAERIEIR B2.3

Information on:

BERREREZE2TEREMRERE

HMRBEMEER
(@  the policies; and
@@ BE: &

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have
a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

b) BFHBETABERTENHEH
ERRBROINER -

Number and rate of work-related

fatalities.

B TEREREME T ABUR LK o

Lost days due to work injury.

EIEBEETIERS -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.
RORPTER AN B R R B2 2 4

B A SGERARIT MBI E -

Walk Along with Employees — Taking
Care of Employees’ Health and Safety
HETRIT — ERETRREY

Hp

Walk Along with Employees — Taking
Care of Employees’ Health and Safety
HETRYT — EREIRREY

&

Walk Along with Employees — Taking
Care of Employees’ Health and Safety
HETRT —EREIRRER

&

Walk Along with Employees — Taking
Care of Employees’ Health and Safety
HETRT — BB TRREY
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General Disclosure and KPlIs

—REERBREVIER

/I:l #& =

Disclosure

BEAR

Reference

2

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BmEB3 : #ERIEI
General Disclosure
—RR IR

KPI B3.1
RS AR IR B3

KPIB3.2
R NIEIRB3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : & T XA

General Disclosure

—MRBEEE

KPI B4.1
RRSAE R IRIR B4

KPIB4.2
R SIEIRB4.2

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
ERARAEERITIERENAH
NERERIBER - AR o

The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category.
R REEBERESHXIIESR
ERi

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category.
RURIREEERED  BRES
TERC R FIEYFIDRFER -

o

Information on:

BN 1L E T e sa %5 TH)

(@  the policies; and

(@ BOR: &

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

b) BFHETABEARTENHEH
ERRROIOER -

Description of measures to review

employment practices to avoid child

and forced labour.

fat i s RSB DI E e AR R E

TREHIST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate

such practices when discovered.

M EERERBARERE BB

JUPREREREY B8
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Walk Along with Employees —
Training and Development
BB TRT — B RER

Walk Along with Employees —
Training and Development
HETRT — BIIRER

Walk Along with Employees —
Training and Development
HETRT —BIRER

Walk Along with Employees — Talents
Acquisition and Retention

BB TRT — AT R RRE

Walk Along with Employees — Talents
Acquisition and Retention

BB TRIT — AA RS ARE

Walk Along with Employees — Talents
Acquisition and Retention
BB TRIT — AT RARIRE
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General Disclosure and KPlIs

—REERBREVIER

B

Disclosure

BEAR

HERERWRE

Reference
8

Operating Practices

&EE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[BEBS5 : HEHEEE
General Disclosure
—RH =

KPI B5.1
BASAABUIEIR BS. 1

KPIB5.2
BASAARUIEIRBSG.2

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

—MR IR

Policies on managing environmental

and social risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENRE RS ERK
&% o

Number of suppliers by geographical
region.

B HEERHA -

Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

G AEREERNEN  mHE
WMITEAENINHEREE UK
BRAEHNITRERTE -

Information on:

BRFMRHERNRBNRREER

2 EE BEELESEENURE

RITER

(@  the policies; and

@ BEK: &

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods
of redress.

b) BEBFHETABERZENEH
ERLIROIER

Responsible Operations — Managing
QOur Supply Chain
BEENEE — BBRRMOMHE
il

Responsible Operations — Managing
Our Supply Chain
BEENSE — BERMOMERE
il

Responsible Operations — Managing
QOur Supply Chain
BEENEE — BERMOERE

Responsible Operations
BEEMNEE
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General Disclosure and KPls Disclosure Reference
—RIRERERERIEE BREAR 2%
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or There were no recalls concerning

RS AE 512 B6.1

KPI B6.2
RS SIEIR B6.2

KPI B6.3
RRSHENIEIR B6.3

KPI B6.4
R AEIEIRB6.4

KPI B6.5
R AERUIEIR B6.5

shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
PERCDEXEREBPEL M
fRERIEmmARNME AL -

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.
RERNERMREIRFEE LA
NES L

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

it B 4 S N R P AN EE RE S Y
&1 -

Description of quality assurance
process and recall procedures.

B EEBRENERDIE
o

Description of consumer data
protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and monitored.
U B B RHRIE RBALER - A
NARRAAT R EER )% -
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the provision and use of the Group’s
products and services that have a
significant impact on our operations.
REBREHNERIRBE T EE
BHBEMEEAETEALENDOER
=

Responsible Operations — Enhancing
Services

BERENZE — BARE

Responsible Operations
BEANEE

Recall procedures are not material to
the Group’s operation.

O REFHASEE XK TBE
* o

Responsible Operations —

Safeguarding Privacy
BEENEE — RELE
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Reference

2

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : KESS
General Disclosure

—fR IR

KPI B7.1
RS E IEIZ BT .1

KPI B7.2
RABEAENIBIERT .2

Information on:

BN LB - R - I
g -

(@  the policies; and

@ BE: K

(b) compliance with relevant laws

FE R

and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.
b) BFHBEITABERTENEH
ERLIROIERS
Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERAANEHTASEESRE
WEBEENBETHFARMHNEE &
AR o
Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored.
a7 i R ER AR T - LA KA
BT RERITA -

Sustainability Governance;
Responsible Operation
AREERNER BEENE
&

Sustainability Governance
AIFEERNES

Responsible Operation — Maintaining
Ethical Conduct

BEENZE — #RERRT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HERE

B -

General Disclosure and KPlIs

—REERBREVIER

/I:l #& =

Disclosure

BEAR

Reference

2

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS : tEHE
General Disclosure

—fR IR

KPI B8.1
RAS AR IE1R B8
KPI B8.2

FASARUEIRBS.2

Policies on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

BRI B2 ER T S EMAED
EFENBREEZBEHGE BT
[@FZ Y EER o

Focus areas of contribution.
BT H RS -

Resources contributed to the focus
area.

EEIHBAPAER -
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Independent Auditor's Report

EY:

To the shareholders of
Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanda Hotel
Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 124 to 273, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR R CTES S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report
AR RS CTE:

Key audit matter

RRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BERNFNMEEFARETSR

Fair value of investment properties

REYRZ A 1BE

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
investment properties, which were stated at fair value,
was approximately HK$1,570.8 million. Management
engages an external valuer to support its determination of
the fair value of the investment properties. The valuation
of the investment properties is highly dependent on
estimates and assumptions, such as prevailing monthly
market rents, prevailing market prices, the reversionary
yield, capitalisation rates, occupancy rates and market
knowledge. The use of different estimates and assumptions
could result in significantly different fair values.

The disclosures about investment properties are included
in note 2.4 “summary of significant accounting policies”,
note 3 “significant accounting judgements and estimates”
and note 16 “investment properties” to the consolidated

financial statements.

R-ZE-ZE+-—F=1+—H  RAABEIEZREY
¥EMEE4A1,570,800,000/8 7T © B IEE L B2 — 2 4N ET
HEMBENETHREDEZ NAEE KEMEZGET

ENIN ﬁﬁﬁﬁr&ﬁj“ WRTEAMBHEE - BITM
BER - ERKEE B R  HAREMISMHE -

FATANET RBERTSHAL BEELREALR -

BRNENENRBEIENRAMBHRERME24[ T EES
BURBLE ] » Mﬁafaféﬁgé‘#ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁaﬂ AR PEE 161
=L EK

the relevance and appropriateness of the valuation basis,

Our audit procedures included, among others, assessing
the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the external
valuer; reviewing the valuation report and holding discussion
with management and the valuer to understand and assess

methodology used and underlying assumptions applied;
and obtaining and verifying the underlying data including
comparable market transactions used by the valuer. We
also involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used and
assessing the reasonableness of data used in the valuation
report, by comparing the prevailing monthly market rents,
prevailing market prices, reversionary yield, capitalisation
rates, occupancy rates with comparative cases in active
markets.

Moreover, we assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR R CTES S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR R CTES S

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor's Report

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yee Chung Man.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

17 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meEmk

Year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — L -FTF+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A& 5E884N » LB ITIIR)

2020 2019
Notes $’000 $°000
BisE Fr T
Continuing operations BHEREER
Revenue Wz 5 655,419 812,948
Cost of sales HE KA (264,237) (274,210)
Gross profit £ 391,182 538,738
Other income and gains, net HaWA RWas - 558 6 55,420 14,809
Net valuation loss WEYFEGEREFE
on investment properties 16 (34,538) (787,975)
Selling expenses HERX (27,685) (33,7693)
Administrative expenses TR (136,979) (175,587)
Finance costs BB AR 8 (111,892) (152,933)
Profit/(loss) before tax FRB A E ST 2 BRELAT
from continuing operations @ (EE1E) 7 135,508 (596,711)
Income tax (expense)/credit TR () /& 11 (39,409) 78,643
Profit/(loss) for the year from REREER 2 NFE
continuing operations @ (E1E) 96,099 (518,068)
Discontinued operations IR
Profit for the year BIEEEEB 2 RN EFE R
from discontinued operations 12 134,057 129,444
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF(BE) 230,156 (388,624)
Attributable to: DA & IR
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZZEPN 14 165,131 (150,387)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A 65,025 (238,237)
230,156 (388,624)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable &2 FZEERISTE AEML
to ordinary equity holders BRER(EE) GBW)
of the parent (HK cents) 14
Basic and diluted EXRREE
— For profit/(loss) for the year — NEREHF, (BE) 3.5 (3.2
— For profit/(loss) from continuing — FHERE T
operations smA (E1E) 1.8 (5.3)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

28 -
,%/T (== % E LI& A

Year ended 31 December 2020 H#ZE T _TF+_A=+—HItFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 28 5E8E4N - HHLABITIIR)

2020 2019
—ECRE —ZE-NEF
Notes $°000 $°000
BisE Fr T
Profit/(loss) for the year AEEEF, (EE) 230,156 (388,624)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HtZEUW A~ (EE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hig AR B3 H 4R
that may be reclassified to profit FFABRERZEMEE
or loss in subsequent periods: WA (E518) -
Exchange differences on translation B GINETS 2 TEH =58
of foreign operations 203,869 (45,892)
Reclassification adjustments for REEHEGINETS
a foreign operation disposed ZEHDLERARE
of during the year 29 5,360 (117,909)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AFEHAMEEH
for the year, net of tax WA (EE) (NBRFE) 209,229 (163,801)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AEEEME
for the year WA (E518) %8 439,385 (552,425)
Attributable to: AT RIARER
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZSPN 208,502 (298,611)
Non-controlling interests It 140,883 (253,814)
439,385 (652,425)
Y«{
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R TSR R 3R

At 31 December 2020 R=E =T F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 38 #EASN + B TIIR)

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—NF
Notes $°000 $'000
B 5T Fx Tt
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment E YN 5 149,594 99,692
Investment properties EME 16 1,570,800 1,509,238
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17(a) 409,727 289,231
Long-term receivables REAEUEIR 21 1,592,983 =
Deferred tax assets FEFITBEE 18 39,383 16,157
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 3,762,487 1,914,318
Current assets REEE
Trade and bills receivables B G eI IE K I iR 19 341,829 220,124
Contract assets BREE 20 22,469 14,500
Prepayments, other receivables TERTRE - Bt EUGRIE
and other assets MEMEE 21 65,973 26,848
Income tax recoverable AIUR B FTiSHE 696 =
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBeSEY 22 2,375,300 2,421,957
2,806,267 2,683,429
Assets of a disposal group classified DERFEHE
as held for sale ZHEERIEE 12 - 4,995,232
Total current assets REBEEHAE 2,806,267 7,678,661
Current liabilities REARE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAFERFIA 23 2,153,329 729,708
Contract liabilities aHEE 24 34,882 35,463
Receipts in advance B IR 13,529 20,940
Loans from an intermediate —fhEER AR E R
holding company 25 873,000 4,187,582
Lease liabilities HEBE 17(b) 19,948 8,281
Income tax payables FER TS TR 32,447 25,022
3,127,135 5,006,996
Liabilities directly associated with EABARENE
the assets classified as held for sale ZEEEREBZAE 12 — 1,459,703
Total current liabilities REEEAE 3,127,135 6,466,699
Net current (liabilities)/assets e (BE) EEFE (320,868) 1,211,962
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 3,441,619 3,126,280
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ra AR R ER
,%/T (= E\ /R
At 31 December 2020 R=E=ZTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 28 528840 + HHLABTIIR)

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
Notes $°000 $'000
B 5T Fx Tt
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Contract liabilities EHEE 24 57,162 26,667
Lease liabilities HEBE 17(b) 421,825 286,908
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBAE 18 176,039 169,395
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEHAE 655,026 482,970
NET ASSETS BEFE 2,786,593 2,643,310
Equity e
Equity attributable to owners BARRE AEEER
of the parent
Share capital &N 26 469,735 469,735
Retained earnings REB RN 367,688 205,279
Other reserves HAubfE e 27 1,382,558 1,246,465
2,219,981 1,921,479
Non-controlling interests IR 566,612 721,831
TOTAL EQUITY e 2,786,593 2,643,310
Ning Qifeng Han Xu
B -y |
Executive Director Non-executive Director
HITEE FEMITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2020 #iZE —E - FF+-_HA=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 38 #EASN + B TIIR)

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATERARE
Non-
Share Share Specia Exchange Statutory Merger Retained controling Total
capial premium Teserve Teserve resere resene eamings Total interests equity

kx  KBEE  RRIRE  ERRE  ieRE  olEBR REEA & kR s
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
* ®w o ®w " B B W® w W T
(note 26) (note 27) (note 27) (note 27) (note 27) (note 27)
(W) (hakor)  (Wakor)  (Wkor) (W) (WE2D)

As at 1 January 2019 RZE-7E-B-A 469,73 1,947,082 53,544 180,217 108,901 (799,947) 290498 2,220,090 987,301 3,207,391
Loss o theyear REEES - - - - - - % (503 BB BReY
Other comprefensive loss FEREMARER:
for the year:
Exchange diferences BERNEH
on translation LERE
of foreign operations - - - (30315) - - - (30315) (16,577) (45,89)
Reclassifcation adjustments ~ AEE S5 £1
for aforeign operation LENHERE
disposed of during the year - - 165,269 (283,174) - - - (117,909 - (117,909

Total comprehensive loss ~ XEE2ARHELEE

for the year - - 166,265 (313,489) - - (150,387) (298,611) (263814) (552,429)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT = - - - (68,726) - 68,726 - (11,656) (11,656)
Appropriaton to stafutory BRDiRRRES

resenve fund - - - - 3,558 - (3,558) - - -

As at 31 December 2019 RZE-1E
1=B=t-H 469,735 1,947,082 218,800° (163,212 43,738 799,947y 205,279 1,921,479 721,831 2,643,310
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SEREREE
melREs
Year ended 31 December 2020 H#ZE T _TF+_A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 28 5E8E4N - HHLABITIIR)
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRARAARE
Non-
Share Share Special ~ Exchange  Statutory Merger Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
Rk REEE  BARE  ENBE iR OB REEA Bt FBRER s
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000
fn T n fn T Tn n T Tn Tn
(note 26) (note 27) (note 27) (note 27) (note 27) (note 27)
(Wioe)  (W&on) (Water)  (WaEon) (W&o (W&2n)
Asat 1 January 2020 R-B-8%5-F-8 469,735 1,047,082 218,809 (163,212) 43733 (799,947) 05219 1,921,479 1831 2643310
Proft for the year KEFEH - - - - - - 165,131 165,131 65,025 230,156
Other comprehensiveincome~~ AFFEHZERA -
for the year:
Exchange diferences BERNEH
on translafion LERE
of foreign operations - - - 128,011 - - - 128,011 75,858 203,869
Reclassifcation adjustments ~ AEE &R0 £
for aforeign operation LENHERE
disposed of during the year - - - 5,360 - - - 5,360 - 5,360
Total comprehensive income  XEE2AHALEE
for the year - - - 133,371 - - 165,131 298,502 140,883 439,385
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-TEHEAA - - - - - - - - 67 (216730)
Appropriaton to statutory BRDiRRRES
reserve fund - - - - 212 - (2,729) - - -
Dividends paid toa BRFEERRRRS
non-controling shareholder - - - - - - - - (79,365) (79,365)
As at 31 December 2020 W-5-8%
+ZB=1-A 469,735 1,047,082 218,809* (29,841)* 46,455°  (199,47) 367,688 2,219,981 506,612 2,786,593
N These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of ” RERERPRESEA VMBI RRAAYRE
$1,382,558,000 (2019: $1,246,465,000) in the consolidated statement of 4R A H b 1,382,558,000 T ( —E— N.F :
financial position. 1,246,465,0007T) °
\/
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—T T F+—_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A& 5E884N » LB ITIIR)

2020 2019
—ECEF —ET-NEF
Notes $’000 $'000
B sE Fr Fr
Cash flows from operating activities K& TEBELECZESHE
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ATLRF] (E51E)
From continuing operations R EFFEEE 135,508 (596,711)
From discontinued operations PRI 3 134,057 166,181
Adjustments for: BT SIEFE
Finance costs BERA 8,12 111,910 190,424
Interest income from financial assets BARnEEFAERE
at fair value through profit or loss B EEE 2 FIBIA 6 (13,133) (7,395)
Interest income on long-term R B GRIE 2 FI B IR A
receivables 6 (10,690) —
Bank interest income RITA B HA 6 (16,691) (6,152)
Depreciation of property, plant Y% - RE MRS
and equipment 15 8,946 15,437
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEENE 17(a) 29,283 20,767
Covid-19-related rent concession KA HHAZ COVID-19
from lessor EEHEE % 17(b) (183) —
Impairment of trade receivables B S EUWGRIA K
and other receivables ﬁﬁtﬁiﬂﬁl KIERE 19,21 22,589 43,596
Impairment of contract assets HEERE 20 1,302 54
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HjEBﬁ% NIl & 29 (149,776) (136,793)
Net valuation loss of investment WEYFHEBEFE
properties 16 34,538 787,975
Impairment of goodwill EESEAE - 3,079
287,660 480,462
Increase in properties under VERELES il
development (776,216) (843,004)
Decrease in completed properties BIEREZERTYERD
held for sale - 116,532
(Increase)/decrease in trade B 5 EWRIE R EW R E
receivables and bills receivables (#m) ,/md (66,463) 96,999
Increase in prepayments, other TERTRIE - B EEIE
receivables and other assets N E b & EELE 0 (14,722) 714,605
Increase in contract assets BB ELE N (9,271) =
Increase in contract incremental cost B HIEERCAIE N (148) =
Decrease in receipts in advance TEEIER A (7,820) (23,873)
Decrease in trade payables and S NI R
other payables HAth - FRIER (214,054) (1,214,333)
Increase/(decrease) in contract BHEEEN (L)
liabilities 25,703 (54,727)
Cash used in operations RETEBFAZES (775,331) (727,339)
Taxes paid BHE (63,955) (90,711)
Net cash flows used KETHFAZ
in operating activities HERETFHE (839,286) (818,050)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
= Ao~ —1

mEHESRER

Year ended 31 December 2020 2 — T T F+-A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 28 5E8E4N - HHLABITIIR)

2020 2019
—2-%F —TNF
Notes $°000 $°000
B EE T T
Net cash flows used in operating ReEEE A
activities ZEERETRE (839,286) (818,050)
Cash flows from investing activities BREFEELEZESHRE
Purchase of items of property, plant BEVE BER
and equipment &i@ER (238,431) (343,508)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE  BEMEEEE
property, plant and equipment Z SRR 57 =
Bank interest received BUSRITH B 6 16,691 6,152
Interest income from financial assets BARnEEFABRER
at fair value through profit or loss B EVEE 2 FIBIA 6 13,133 7,395
Increase in time deposits with maturity ~ REEIHBBE=1EF 2
of more than three months TE HATF SR 00 - (223,260)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted PR HISRITIF 3K
bank deposits B (1) 3,434 (5,458)
Decrease in other current assets HEMmsh&EEmL - 2,488
Proceeds received on debt HEMBARELE 2 &
from disposal of a subsidiary 2 BT RIA 621,628 740,495
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEB AT 29 2,090,964 (8,104)
Net cash flows from investing RETEEB2REREFE
activities 2,507,476 176,200
Cash flows from financing activities BEEFEELECELSRE
Proceeds from new loans SR EE RS RIE
from financial institutions — 225,760
Repayment of loans from financial EESREEER
institutions 30(b) (971,213) (99,088)
New loans from an intermediate —fAREIER AR ZHE R
holding company 33(c) 849,330 1,034,097
Repayment of loans to an intermediate A — BB A GEEER
holding company 33(c) (2,719,640) (905,254)
New loans from other borrowings HEMERZTER 30(b) 1,162,549 —
Proceeds from other borrowings HAb & RFTIS IR - 9,500
Dividend paid to a non-controlling B — & FEE AR AR R AR B
shareholder (79,365) —
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZ RS (17,116) (14,286)
Interest paid ENFE (35,913) (105,777)
Net cash flows (used in)/from BLEEE (FTA) Figz
financing activities RERETEHE (1,811,368) 144,952
Net decrease in cash BERBELEEY
and cash equivalents WA REE (143,178) (496,898)
Cash and cash equivalents FU B MREEEY
at beginning of year 2,198,697 2,741,296
Cash and cash equivalents FTAREREEEY
included in assets held for sale ReRRSEBEY 12()(b) - (28,489)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ R & #) 2 /£ 82,141 (17,212
Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year FRZASREASEEY 2,137,660 2,198,697
g "
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-ﬁ/\iﬁzﬁlﬂb%%

Year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — L -FTF+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A& 5E884N » LB ITIIR)

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—NF
Notes $°000 $'000
BisE Fr T
Analysis of balances of cash ReRESEENEHRIN
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTHS 22 2,137,660 2,198,697
Time deposits EHER 22 237,640 223,260
Cash and cash equivalents as stated PR R G AR R 2
in the consolidated statement ReMREEED
of financial position 2,375,300 2,421,957
Less: time deposits with maturity T BB AR REHH
of more than three months HEA =18 A 2 E BT
when acquired (237,640) (223,260)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated JIRRGEHEFTERZ
in the consolidated statement REeERRLEEY
of cash flows 2,137,660 2,198,697
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1.

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEER
Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited (the “Company”) is a BEOERRAERARI ARG A
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered REREFMRIZBERAR - AR
office of the Company is located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 7] 2 7E 3% = BR iz 7 Victoria Place, 5th
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda. Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda -
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred FAR - ARARENB AR (AT
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in investment property [AEE]) ETERFEARLFME([F
leasing, hotel operation and management, hotel design and Bl D WEREYERE  BIEEENE
construction management services in the People’s Republic of B OBERG RIEREER o
China (the “PRC”) during the year.
In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”), ARRAEE(EF]RE - ARalzH
the immediate holding company of the Company is Wanda MIERAR ABEBEMEFINGRA
Commercial Properties Overseas Limited (“Wanda Overseas”), a A((BEa])) —HAREABRELZHE
company established in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate M2 AT RRRZEEERAR B
holding company of the Company is Dalian Hexing Investment RNERERERRARF » —FERFEK
Company Limited, a company established in the PRC. S 2] e
Information about principal subsidiaries FEMBLRER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KRR EEMBARZFEEWT ¢
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AT EAE
and business share capital EREDL Principal
Name MR ERTEER Direct Indirect activities
£ BRREEME EE311T0 N HE i TEHEK
Wanda Commercial Hong Kong $1 — 51% Investment
Properties Investment holding
Limited
EEREME N 17T TEER
KEBRAA
v
~ -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

NAREEER @)

(Bf=ED
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Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows ARREBWBARZFBUOT (&)
(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered RN T EAE
and business share capital EREDL Principal

Name ML, ERTZER Direct  Indirect activities

=18 B REEME = AR AR HiE B FTEER

Guilin Gaoxin Wanda PRC US$180,000,000 — 51% Property
Plaza Co., Ltd.* (note i) development

ENEHEERS a3 180,000,000 37T MEER
BRAR (D

Wanda Americas Real Hong Kong $1 60% = Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Wanda
Americas RE”)

BRI E B 17T KA
BREAR LT
(IEEEMHE])

Wanda Australia Real Hong Kong $1 60% = Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Wanda
Australia RE”)

SERNEERERRAR S 17T KA
(EERMHE])

Wanda Hotel Management Hong Kong US$1 100% — Investment
(Hong Kong) Co. Limited holding

BEREER (BB)BRAA N 1370 WA

Wanda Hotel Management PRC US$10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (note i) management

BEAEERE (L8 ARAR Y 10,000,000 7T BEE R



1.

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REIR&EEER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows ARREBWBARZFBUOT (&)
(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AT EAE
and business share capital EREIL Principal
Name AL BRTLER Direct Indirect activities
£ BRREEMD Ef AR AR HiE S FTEEK
Horgos Wanda Engineering PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Construction
Construction Management consulting
Consulting Company Limited*
ERRTBEIRERER t AR #10,000,000 7T AR
EEE] NG
Wanda Engineering Management PRC RMB50,000,000 — 100%  Construction
Consulting Co. Limited* consulting
BETREEREERERAA H AE# 50,000,000 7T IR EERAR
Wanda Moment Shanghai PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* operation
EXNERSEREEE B A 10,000,000 7T B8
AR AT
Wanda Moment Nanchang PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* operation
MEREXEREEEFGRAT H AE# 10,000,000 7T BE 8
Wanda Moment Ningbo PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* operation
ERENERSEREERE 1 AR#10,000,000 7T BEEE
BRATA
Wanda Jin Wuxi International Hotel PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
Co., Ltd. * Operation
B ERERRBEBERAR ] AF% 10,000,000 7T BE &
v
~ -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2EAREEER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BARIER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows REEEMBREZFIBWT (&)
(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered NN
and business share capital ERESL Principal
Name MR DRITEER Direct Indirect activities
=L BRREEME AR A Hiz A FTEEK
Wanda Moment Changzhi PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Hotel
Hotel Management Co., Ltd. * Operation
RABEZEREEEFRAF H AR #10,000,000 7T IS S
Shanghai Wantao PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Sale of
Trading Co., Ltd.* goods
EEEARmERR AR A A% 10,000,000 7T EmiHE
Xiamen Wandefu PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Sale of
Catering Management goods
Co., Ltd.*
EFEEEERERERAR H AR ¥ 10,000,000 7T EmiHE
Baise Wandefu Catering PRC RMB5,000,000 — 100% Sale of
Management Co., Ltd. * Goods
BESEREREEERAR A AR 5,000,000 7T EmiHE
Taizhou Jingdefu Catering PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100% Sale of
Management Co., Ltd. * Goods
FMREEREREBBRAA A AR ¥ 5,000,000 7T EmiHE

* For identification purpose only
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Note:

These entities are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established in
the PRC.

The above table lists of the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (“$’000") except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + HLAETIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Group reported net current liabilities of $320,868,000
as at 31 December 2020. Notwithstanding the net current
liabilities position of the Company, the financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis as Wanda
Commercial Properties (Hong Kong) Co. Limited (“Wanda
HK”), an intermediate holding company of the Company, has
confirmed that it will not demand for payment of its advances
and loans to the Group of $2,522,799,000 within the next
twelve months.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + HLAETIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(@ Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting
and standard setting, and provides guidance for
preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities,
and updated definitions and recognition criteria
for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of
stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty
in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is
not a standard, and none of the concepts contained
therein override the concepts or requirements in any
standard. The Conceptual Framework did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

()

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions
or other events that occurred on or after 1 January
2020. The amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(©

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the period
before the replacement of an existing interest rate
benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”).
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which
enable hedge accounting to continue during the period
of uncertainty before the introduction of the alternative
RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies
to provide additional information to investors about
their hedging relationships which are directly affected
by these uncertainties. The amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group as the Group does not have any interest
rate hedging relationships.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

©)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as
a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The
practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change; (ii) any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii)
there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
with earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain
monthly lease payments for the leases of the Group’s
office place have been reduced by the lessors as
a result of the pandemic and there are no other
changes to the terms of the leases. The Group has
early adopted the amendment on 1 January 2020 and
elected not to apply lease modification accounting for
all rent concessions granted by the lessors as a result
of the pandemic during the year ended 31 December
2020. Accordingly, a reduction in the lease payments
arising from the rent concessions of $183,000 has
been accounted for as a variable lease payment by
derecognising part of the lease liabilities and crediting
to profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(e)  Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. The amendments did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 BEMEERER2EBH
T = 2 A

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

AR ER BRI 7% 5 B T Rk o e
AT B AR B R AR AE R FTRT S &
(BRI BB BRG] -

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual BAMBRELER HaELEL?

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Framework?
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2"

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts®
Insurance Contracts® ©

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 412
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October
2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before
1 January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REEERSITER 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EEMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or
a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively
to business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

BABTTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with
specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement
of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies
with those conditions at that date. Classification of a liability
is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments
also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items,
in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)
C FEMR{B [ AR R 2 BB A

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfiling the contract
as well as contract management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly
to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at the
date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on
or after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FESHERHPE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBERME®)
(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued) AREEE(E
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured B AR BERRNIBRKRTEX
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised BENEERBEDNEREARE
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based BitEEEmMs BEANRIEER
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value ABEIRATARBESRSE

measurement as a whole:

Level1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) F—H — ERHBEREEX
in active markets for identical assets or BERERTIS
liabilities (B (R &

)

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which EFH — ERHAREE
the lowest level input that is significant to AEMEBEX
the fair value measurement is observable, B R ER S (BB sk
either directly or indirectly i) ZEERA

S2EMEERE

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which EF=H — ERHAREE
the lowest level input that is significant to AEMEBEX
the fair value measurement is unobservable CORNEIR: RS g

BWAZ2HME
(EDap7A

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial PR T M R AERN AR TR R

statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines MWEERBEMS @ AEEZBR

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the SMEHAREHTEDE(ERY
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest AREBEETEEEME BEANX
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as BEEGALE) BERETRETR

a whole) at the end of each reporting period. ERER o
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
contract assets, income tax recoverable, deferred tax
assets, financial assets, investment properties and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting

period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(

) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(v  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vl a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + HLAETIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
residual values and useful lives for this purpose are as

ME-- BERKRBURITE
(&
FEDREMFT A ERFHNER
EMHEYE - BEAREEEZ
RAEHREFE - RUMEBZ
ETRERAERFRMT

follows:

Useful lives Residual values

T {5 FA F HA E{E

Leasehold improvements HEYHERE Over the Nil
lease terms

FHHEIR i3

Furniture, fixtures and equipment L - B RS 3-10 years 0-10%
3E10EF

Motor vehicles RE 5 years 0-10%
54

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

BABTTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents renovation works in

progress and is stated at cost less any impairment losses,

and is not depreciated. Cost mainly comprises the direct

costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on

related borrowed funds during the period of construction.

Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate

category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held

to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather

than for use in the production or supply of goods or services

or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary

course of business. Such properties are measured initially

at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial

recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,

which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of

investment properties are included in the statement of profit

or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an

investment property are recognised in the statement of profit

or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

158 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

2.

RREERS

TR (&)

24 FEETHRBE#)

M- BEKE
(%&)

RE AR ITE

FERTRIEETTHNRETR %

AR DR E R R 25 A Nt

FE - AT R BREEENANE

BRERKAREACRRRE A

fEFRA - FERTIZR T B A

R BERSEEDE  BEK
RENREER -

REWF

BREMERFERRA S KA
R/ REAREE (AR EES
HEERMIRBELITHEN) - X
ERBEHBREPHEZ L RE
F 2 o ZFWEEAKAK
(BRERXSHKA)TE - fRER
% REMERAAREBERY R
BR ¥R & HAR AR ©

AR BEZESMEL L

BYER
G4 AAARMELEFEZE

AT e
%O

Bk E:J X5

HeEsl SR E YE T8RS
NFEH L EFEE 2 BRERPFIA
TR °



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal
group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its
sale must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary classified as a disposal group are reclassified as
held for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant
and equipment and Freehold land classified as held for sale
are not depreciated or amortised.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE#E)

Group as a lessee REEERATNA

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains
a lease component and non-lease component(s), the Group
adopts the practical expedient not to separate non-lease
component(s) and to account for the lease component
and the associated non-lease component(s) (e.g., property
management services for leases of properties) as a single

$‘il?¢iﬁﬁﬁ4‘ﬂf’ff%—1§$—6§
REFETA - R HEE R EE
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EIEEREREEE &R
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lease component.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Office 2 to 6 years
Hotel buildings 15 to 20 years
Warehouses 1to 2 years
Machinery 1to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are presented separately
from other liabilities in the statement of financial
position.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of offices and
warehouses (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment and plant
that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease

inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTHBRBE )

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as

subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss.
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B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBERME®)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + HLAETIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,

modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or

loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but

has transferred control of the assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + HLAETIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + HLAETIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBEB)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that
do not contain a significant financing component or when
the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing loans from an
intermediate holding company.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REEERSITER 2
POLICIES (Continued)
24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + HLAETIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of:
(i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the
policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

2. REHERSTTHER @)
2.4 FESTTHREE (&)

FRGHL (&)

BERIA BB TR AR E
MEERT DARER, - A MBSERSD

o RETKETEBRERAGH
2R 55 H B RS HER
BEBEAEH SN
ok FE SR At A SR BB AR
EMELZREHARRE
54

. BRERHBAARAZLE
ZRA A 2 FER Bt
2RTE - i RE TR
2R EMATRS BE
BMERTETENT R
A EAER I -

Y
~_~

A memrzmamAd 177
B yare

Y

~



Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a joint
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

BABTTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until
it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@

Hotel management services

Hotel management services mainly include the
following:

The day-to-day management services, and the
different kinds of management service fees are
generally calculated as certain percentages of the total
revenues, room revenue or operation profit of those
hotels under management. Such management service
fees are due and payable on a monthly basis as
services are provided and revenue is recognised over
time as services are rendered.

Central reservation system usage fees, other system
maintenance and other support fees are typically
billed and collected monthly along with the base
management service fees mentioned above, and
revenue is generally recognised as services are
provided.

Pre-opening services, which include providing services
(e.g., installing IT information systems, providing
standardisation hotel management system and central
reservation system, providing access to purchase
platform, helping to obtain operational qualification,
and helping to recruit and train employees) to the hotel
owners to assist in preparing for the hotel opening.
These fees are typically collected upfront and are
recognised as revenue over the whole management
contract period.

2. REHERSTTHER @)

24 FEETHRBE#)

W s HERT (48

(@

B JE B IR AR

BEEEREETEBETI
KIH :

BEEERBUARSEERE
RSB A —RIZMERBE
2 FERAHEE
w2 ETAEDLFAER
He ZEEERBEREARE
MRS A - A
o 78 B 1A AR 705 B O By e e

2 o

il

PREWEGERER - H
EREENEBIEER
— AR R bt B AN E IR R A
ERRABZBERWE - B
3R AR R HERR,

FERRY - BREAEEE
BARERS (Plan R TE
MRS REBELCEEE
BRGRTRENRS - 12
HEBEFamah HER - 1%
BEGEEERALIEEM
RS ) LA BNEIE R
ZEEMRIVFASLWE -
WREEEESHOHRRER
AR

Y
~_~

A memrzmamad 18l

—B-BEER

Y

~



Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@

Hotel management services (Continued)

Revenue from the loyalty program management service
fee is generated from the services provided in relation
to the loyalty program. The program reward members
with points for each stay at the hotels or certain other
consumption at the hotels, which are then redeemable
for free hotel nights and other goods and services.
The Group defers the cash amount received from
participating hotels as the future redemption obligation,
and such points that will eventually be redeemed as
revenue when they are used or on the expiry date.

Hotel design and construction management services

Revenue is recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Hotel operation income

Revenue from room sales and other ancillary guest
services is recognised over time on a daily basis, and
revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the goods is transferred
to customers.

182 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

BABTTIIR)

2. REEERS

TR (&)

24 FEETHRBE#)

WS HERR (&)
@ HLREERY(E)

BB EERBER W
73 )92k B 5B AT B PR £
Z IR - ET B BRAE
B E RS R T E A
HERKBIRHERED -
HZEEDHERALBALEA
EEEM&EW&“ T &HE

c AEEERILERSR
EW@ZEi%*XRﬁf
T EREESEEEAS
I ZEBRORRETH
T AME -

BIE R KR EBRE

% P [R] B WER OB B R
SERFZME  BkEn
REIRSG 2 25t HIRERER -

BEEBWA

ERHEREMRERER
T2 Wess S A RERS RARERR -
T 5 E3 7 2 4 8 2 W AU
BB ERBE R

=7
a ©



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + HLAETIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
pension schemes operated by the respective governments.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the pension
schemes is to pay the required ongoing contributions.
Contributions under the schemes are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the pension schemes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, that is, assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

BABTTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

2.

188

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas companies which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the
economic life of the commercial property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all the
fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all
the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of

contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the
lease (e.g. construction of significant leasehold impairments to the
leased asset).

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below:

3. ERGRHEKMAE @

F & (&)

MIFHEDE - AEEFESHEA
AEBREREMEEALBEDE
B - AEERS  REHBEATHL
BRG0P G - S HR TR
BRAMEZRESHIEND MK
BERENFRETEE L TEREARY
RZBRAREE AEEREHHEL
EMEMBREENZMBERER KM
H - UKENARSKEHES -

BEMEEERSN 2 HERKZ
ERHE

AEEHEETEEEHIR ILEER
ZHEEH - ARERFHEEEITER
BB SR IFTHERAEL HI -
RS EZE BT A S ETENLL L
HEELREFRAZBBERE - RFHKA
AHR  WELEAKERGHEERZ
EXEMHRBERES AR EAITEX
PTEEEREENRIEHE (FlnE
BEEEETEAMEMERERE) 28
N ARERERFEHEHED

st TR

RS MR FEERRRE T EM K F
BEEMBBZREAEAEERNFAEM
BURRA B E B R MG T HEE
ZEMEZHRMTE

Y
~_~

A memrzmemAT 189
B yare

Y

~



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar

properties, the Group consider information from a variety of

sources, including:

(@)

current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties
in the same location and condition, and using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2020 was $1,570,800,000 (2019: $1,509,238,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement,

are stated in note 16 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and

contract assets

Management evaluate the credit risk characteristics of individual
trade receivables and contract assets when its credit risk identified
deteriorated significantly, otherwise the Group uses a provision
matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets
collectively. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in note
19 and note 20 to the financial statements, respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. BREFHE R @

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates
(such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to CIT in Mainland China. As a result of the
fact that certain matters relating to CIT have not been confirmed
by the local tax bureau, objective estimates and judgement based
on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related
policies are required in determining the CIT provision to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will have an impact
on the CIT expense and CIT provisions in the period in which the
differences are realised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. Further details are given in note 18
to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

4.

194

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group’s operating businesses
are structured and managed separately according to the nature
of their operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are subject
to risks and returns different from those of the other operating
segments. The Group has three reportable operating segments
and particulars of the Group’s reportable operating segments are
summarised as follows:

(@) leasing of investment properties held by the Group for long-
term investment;

(b)  hotel operation and management services; and
(c) hotel design and construction management services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is measured by adjusted profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations except that non-
lease-related finance costs, other income and gains, net as well as
corporate and other unallocated expense are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, income tax
recoverable, cash and cash equivalents, assets classified as held
for sale and corporate and other unallocated assets as these

assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, loans from an
intermediate holding company, income tax payables, liabilities
directly associated with the assets classified as held for sale and
corporate and other unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

Notes to Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 55 s£RA1 +

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4 A== AN

II‘ZIZ'E| J]

B RS R AR AL

BB TTHIR)

HER @)

BE_T_THF+-A=+—H

LEFE
Hotel
Hotel design and
Investment  operation and construction
property ~ management  management
leasing services services Total
EER
RENME BEEER RER
e EERY EERE @it
$000 $'000 $'000 $000
i T T T
Segment revenue: (note 5) AHUE : (KEES5)
Sales to external customers HETINPEP 103,653 378,044 173,722 655,419
Intersegment sales DHREE - - 7,346 7,346
103,653 378,044 181,068 662,765
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment sales HiEH HEHE (7,346)
Revenue from continuing operations FELLEBYA 655,419
Segment profit pak il 53,062 92,958 51,102 197,122
Reconciliation: i -
Other income and gains, net (note 6) EiA Rz - 558 (fizEe) 55,420
Finance costs (other than interest REMAK (BEREFISHRM)
on lease liabilties) (note 8) (Kss) (92,243)
Corporate and other unallocated expense RAREMADEES (24,791)
Profit before tax from continuing operations FELEEE ZBHANRR 135,508
Segment assets PHEE 1,592,978 697,939 260,812 2,551,729
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and other unallocated assets ARREMAPEREE 4,017,025
Total assets BEE 6,568,754
Segment liabilities FHEE 87,585 869,783 84,671 1,042,039
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ARAREMADEERE 2,740,122
Total liabilities HBafE 3,782,161
Y ‘
<> 4
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B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Other segment information

BABTTIIR)

4, BEDEER )

Hitbp ZRE

Year ended 31 December 2020 222+ -A=+—H
LtFE
Hotel
Hotel design and
Investment  operation and construction
property  management  management
leasing services services Total
EERE
RENE BEEER RER
g EERY EERF @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Fr Fr T T
Impairment loss recognised in the statement ERBREERZ
of profit or loss, net: (note 6) HESE 38 (MiEe)
— Segment assets —HHEE (914) 30,872 (6,067) 23,801
— Unallocated assets — KHEEE -
23,891
Depreciation (note 7) e (i)
— Segment assets —NHEE 91 36,015 339 36,445
— Unallocated assets — KR EE 1,784
38,229
Capital expenditure® BAY
— Segment assets —ABEE 8 52,348 195 52,551
— Unallocated assets — KHEEE 7
52,558
: Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and - BALH &%%E\E:}@% BB R -

equipment, construction in progress and leasehold improvements.
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

29 N\ ]
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEDHER @)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_ZF-NF+=-A=t+—H
IR
Hotel
Hotel design and
Investment operation and construction
property management management
leasing services services Total
BIERG
BEME BEEER RiER
ik EERE EERE @zt
$000 $000 $'000 $000
T T T T
Segment revenue: (note 5) AUz : (KEES)
Sales to external customers HETIHER 149,118 471,229 192,601 812,948
Intersegment sales DEREE - - 556 556
149,118 471,229 193,157 813,504
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment sales A HEEE (656)
Revenue from continuing operations HELE XA 812,948
Segment loss AHEE (666,196) 176,162 57,037 (432,997)
Reconciliation: i -
Other income and gains, net (note 6) Hip A Rz - 558 (136) 14,809
Finance costs (other than interest BERA(RERENSRIN)
on lease liabilities) (note 8) (KiEs) (143,821)
Corporate and other unallocated expense ARREMAIRAZ (34,702)
Loss before tax from continuing operations FECEER RS (696,711)
Segment assets PBEE 1,516,057 493,613 158,791 2,168,461
Reconciliation: -
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale AR EHE 2 HEARIEE 4,995,232
Corporate and other unallocated assets AAREMADREE 2,429,286
Total assets BEE 9,592,979
Segment liabilities FHEE 144,663 676,385 87,710 908,748
Reconciliation: i -
Liabilties directly associated with the assets BARARENEEERR
classified as held for sale BHz8E 1,459,703
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities RAREMADIREE 4,581,218
Total liabilities BafE B 949 669
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B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

TRAE A SR
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., BEDEER @)
(Continued)
Other segment information Hith &R
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-—ZF-NF+=-A=t+—H
IR
Hotel
Hotel design and
Investment operation and construction
property management management
leasing services services Total
BIERG
BEME BEEER RiER
ik ERRE EBRG 5t
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
Impairment loss recognised in the statement ERBREERZ
of profit or loss, net: (note 6) HESE 38 (MiEe)
— Segment assets —NHEE - 1,298 26,941 28,239
— Unallocated assets — KHEEE 8,758
36,997
Depreciation (note 7) e (i)
— Segment assets —HHEE 383 17,807 614 18,804
— Unallocated assets — APREE 2,751
21,555
Capital expenditure® BAZ
— Segment assets — PHEE 13 91,370 266 91,649
— Unallocated assets — KHEEE 66
91,715

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and

equipment, investment properties, construction in progress and

leasehold improvements.
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4,

(Continued)
Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
locations of (i) the Group’s revenue of continuing operations from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s non-current assets of
continuing operations (excluding deferred tax assets) (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of revenue from
external customers is based on the locations at which the services
were provided or the properties were leased. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the
physical locations of the assets, in the case of fixed assets, and
the locations of the operations to which they are allocated.

KEEER @)

h & B R

TREJNEBOAKRERBINSELZ
FEKEEBREN () A EEFELE
EBZERDEE(TEERELEHAE
E) ([BEFRBEE]) 2HBUEER
£ REIMBER 2 et 2 IR E T
RIFFTIR RS HAE YR Z AT
e HEFRBEEMEME TIIRE
EZERNE (GEEEEMS ) LED
iz BB BT E °

Segment revenue Specified
from external customers non-current assets
RENBEFZ
Al E EEFRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—F-BF —TNF ZBSEF TR
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Fr Tt Frx Tt
The PRC HE(BEED)
(including Hong Kong) 655,419 809,663 3,723,104 1,898,161
Overseas N - 3,285 - —
655,419 812,948 3,723,104 1,898,161
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B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

WK LR kv [ 2=~ IN o
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEDHER @)
(Continued)
Information about major customers BREFEREFZEHR
During the year, the Group made sales to certain groups of major FA - AEBERETEEEFAR (B
customers, which are known to be under common control, the SEEPES]) EITHE  REZERPH
revenue from which individually contributed to more than 10% of WK ERIE AL BB ZE B 10% « DT
the Group’s total revenue. The analysis is as follows: LU
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
$°000 $000
Ft Tt
Customer A ZFEA 204,338 305,160
Customer B %FB 113,240 94,182
Customer C ZFC 71,829 150,064
Others At 266,012 263,542
655,419 812,948
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

5. REVENUE 5. &
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WD HTAT
2020 2019
—EDEF —E-hEF
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Revenue from contracts KEFEFEHZ Wi
with customers
Hotel management services B IS B IR RS 304,658 460,344
Hotel design and construction BERFT KRR EIERY
management services 173,722 192,601
Hotel operation income BB A 73,386 10,885
551,766 663,830
Revenue from other sources B Rz W
Gross rental income REREMEKLEHE
from investment properties Z S WA LR
operating leases:
Variable rent FEEE 2,712 4,719
Base rent HAME 100,941 144,399
103,653 149,118
655,419 812,948
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B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

5. REVENUE (Continued)

5.

(i) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from

202 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited

contract with customers

WK% )

() REFFEHNzWEZE WS

DIFER

2020 2019
—EDEF —E-hEF
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Recognised at a point in time RERERGREIER
Hotel operation income IS S EWA 37,944 4,919
Recognised over time R—BEBAER
Hotel operation income JBTEZEW A 35,442 5,966
Hotel management services BIE B IRARTS 304,658 460,344
Hotel design and construction BE R RERE RS
management services 173,722 192,601
Revenue from contracts REEFEFEHZWE
with customers 551,766 663,830

The following table shows the amounts of revenue

recognised in the current reporting period that were included

in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting

period and recognised from performance obligations satisfied

in previous periods:

TREIRAHEREFTARERNAE
HeaBErkaBRTHREKEBENE EHE

RZOBARESH

2020 2019
—BIEF —T-NF
$°000 $000
Ft T
Revenue recognised that was FTARSHUIZENAEY
included in contract liabilities BERERKEERE
at the beginning of the
reporting period:
Sale of goods EmiEE 9,983 =
Loyalty programme management AHEETEIE R
services 12,297 11,845
Hotel management services BIEEIBRG 6,154 4,693
Hotel design and construction B E G R B RS
management services 201 16,577
Others HAtb 57 —
28,692 33,115
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. Y& )

(ii) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

(i)

BHEE

BRAKERORME 2 ERBLAL
e

Hotel management services, hotel design and construction BIEEERE  BIERTTRE
management services REEIRE

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 90 days
from the date of billing.

Hotel operation income
The performance obligation is satisfied as services are

rendered or goods are delivered and payment is generally
received in advance.

I BRI B — R B R B
s+ BRNEIBNE - HiE
B (E1 — B T PO -

ST E

R ERURERE XA ERE

RIESIEOR - BB (R

R -

Loyalty programme managements services BHETEIEE R

The performance obligation is satisfied as members’ points HREeEESEFEHA %QHH&EMZ
are used or expired, and the payment from hotels who B2 EAHEEE 2BIE 2B
participated in the loyalty program is received in advance. BB FEEN o

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
of hotel design and construction management services as at
31 December are as follows:

WtZRA=+—H " SEEEER
AAREREBRE B TEOEE
(REER LA D RIEEK) 2 X5
EBRSRBRIT

2020 2019
—E-%F —TNF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Amounts expected to be recognised  TEH#EHER AW =
as revenue: dsox- I
Within one year —FR 193,949 154,225
After one year Bl —F 157,486 137,061
351,435 291,286
Y 3
e )Ql
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B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. HWARWE @ F5E
An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains, net from AEBRARFELEEB 2 EMPAR
continuing operations is as follows: Was - FESTAT

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Bank interest income RITHABUA 16,691 6,152
Other interest income from BRARBEFABRR
financial assets at fair value LB EVEEE 2 EA R WA
through profit or loss 13,133 7,395
Interest income on RHAFEWGRIE 2 F B A
long-term receivables 10,690 —
Exchange gain, net RS B 20,999 3,805
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment & &M A #EE OBE)
of financial and contract ERE - 558
assets, net
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 RWFIE R E (23,389) (27,292)
Reversal of impairment/ H Ath FEUGRIRR(E
(impairment) of #&E ORE)
other receivables 800 (9,651)
Impairment of contract assets BREERE (1,302) (54)
Other income due to breach of BRI EAE 2 AU A
contracts 14,409 33,190
Others Hth 3,389 1,264
55,420 14,809
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM 7. FEKEEB 2BRHAR
CONTINUING OPERATIONS A, (E18)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations is AEERECEEB 2B, (85
arrived at after charging/(crediting): 1B) ThEH0kk,/ (T A) T3 B R R
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
Notes $°000 $'000
Bt e Fr FI
Cost of goods sold EEmmAA 30,408 9,819
Cost of services provided Frig AR 2 BZS 221,998 244,950
Direct operating expenses RS 2 IREME
(including repairs and EEZEELERY
maintenance) arising on (BERERRE)
rental-earning investment
properties 11,831 19,441
264,237 274,210
Depreciation of property, plant M - BERREITE
and equipment 8,946 4,083
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ BEEENTE 29,283 17,472
Lease payments not included in TEREaERTEA
the measurement of ZMERK
lease liabilities 17(c) 7,835 7,094
Decrease in fair value of KEMERRBERD
investment properties 16 34,538 787,975
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A &
— Annual audit services — FEZBRSS 1,095 1,061
— Non-audit services — FERZERT 1,164 900
Employee benefit expense EERAMMZ (TR
(excluding directors’ EEEHMH)
remuneration)
— Salaries, wages and — ¥ TEREMER
other benefits 93,915 105,645
— Contributions to defined — [AIE SE R RET &
contribution retirement plans {E Z (3R 932 3,993
94,847 109,638

Y
~_~
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RE R
An analysis of the Group’s finance costs from continuing REBRFEL LXK 2BERAD T
operations is as follows: N
2020 2019
. —T-NF
$°000 $000
Fx Tt
Interest on loans from financial S RIMIEE T B
institutions - 10,779
Interest on loans from an —fREERATERF A
intermediate holding company 92,243 133,042
Interest on leases liabilities HESEF B (HE170))
(note 17(0)) 19,649 9,112
111,892 152,933
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

9. EEHAN

FRRE LR EEERRED S
383(1)@) ~ (b) * ) XMk a (#E
BEEMRER ROIFE 2 BB ESH
BMa0T -

2020 2019

—E-EE —E-AF

$°000 $°000

Fx Tt

Fees we 759 741

Other emoluments: HEE

Salaries, allowances and e EBREYRE

benefits in kind 9,519 9,499

Discretionary bonuses BETEAL 3,503 3,635

Pension scheme contributions BRIREGET IR 926 173

13,877 14,048

Y
“{»r
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

9.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EZFHM )
Directors’ remuneration is as follows: EZEHMOT
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
& RBER Eife
Foks ENRER (SR BE a3 Azt
$'000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
2020 —T-FE
Chairman and IRRIFANTES
non-executive director:
Mr. Ding Benxi TABESE - - - - -
Executive director: HIES:
Mr. Ning Qifeng BHELE - 9,519 3,503 96 13,118
Independent non-executive B IFHITEE :
directors:
Mr. He Zhiping AEELEE 253 - - - 253
Dr. Chen Yan BReiE T 253 - - - 253
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng BOREEL 253 - - - 253
Non-executive directors: FHRITESE:
Mr. Zhang Lin RARLE - - - - -
Mr. Han Xu BEREE - - - - -
759 9,519 3,503 96 13,877

208 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited

Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEHM

Directors’ remuneration is as follows (Continued): BEEHFHT (&) -
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e RER RiKE
e EMEN HIETEAL e st
$000 $:000 $:000 $000 $000
T T T T T
2019 —TNE
Chairman and FRFEEPTES:
non-executive director:
Mr. Ding Benxi TABHESE - = = = =
Executive director: HITES
Mr. Ning Qifeng EFERE - 9,499 3,635 173 13,307
Independent non-executive B IFHITES :
directors:
Mr. Liu Jipeng ekl
(resigned on (RZZ-NE
21 March 2019) =ZAZT—REHE) 56 - - - 56
Dr. Xue Yunkui BESEL
(resigned on (RZE—NE
21 March 2019) ZA=+—HE&F) 56 - - - 56
Mr. He Zhiping WEFEE 245 - - - 245
Dr. Chen Yan BReE L
(appointed on (RZZ-NE 192 - - - 192
21 March 2019) ZA-t+-BEZ)
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng xR EE L 192 - - - 192
(appointed on (R=Z-NEF
21 March 2019) ZAZt+—HEZH)
Non-executive directors; FRITES
Mr. Zhang Lin RARTLHE = = - - -
Mr. Han Xu BBEAE
(appointed on (RZB—h%F
14 March 2019) = AT mBEREZT) = = - - -
741 9,499 3,635 173 14,048
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Among the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one of

them is a director (2019: one director), whose emoluments are

disclosed in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year

of the remaining four non-director highest paid employees (2019:

four highest paid non-director employees) are as follows:

. EEBSHEE

hEREHER  Hbh—2RE% (=%
—NEF: —REF)  HFEHMFBEIR L
X9 - £ NN ERSHIFES
BE(CZ-NF: ORRSFFEZER
8) ZHBFRBET

2020 2019
—E-EE —E-NF
$°000 $°000
Fx SETE

Salaries, allowances and e M RBYET
benefits in kind 13,610 15,173
Performance related bonuses FRIREEHTEAL 4,164 5,702
Pension scheme contributions IRREET AR 271 664
18,045 21,539

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

as follows:

ReFEENFTETRASREZ
BN T TEE

Number of employees

BEAR
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000 3,000,001 JLZ 3,500,000 7T 1 =
$3,500,001 to $4,000,000 3,500,001 7L 4,000,000 7T 1 -
$4,000,001 to $4,500,000 4,000,001 7T & 4,500,000 7T 1 1
$4,500,001 to $5,000,000 4,500,001 L 5,000,000 7T - 1
$5,000,001 to $5,500,000 5,000,001 7L 5,500,000 7T - 1
$6,000,001 to $6,500,000 6,000,001 JLE 6,500,000 7T 1 =
$6,500,001 to $7,000,000 6,500,001 7L 7,000,000 7T - 1
4 4
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

7 (v}
11. INCOME TAX 1. PS8
2020 2019
—ECBE —ZE-NEF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Current tax B EATR IE
Corporate Income Tax (note (iii)) RS (BYEE (i)
— Charge for the year — RNFERX 65,039 84,464
— Underprovision in prior years — REFERETR — 269
65,039 84,733
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of ERMER 2 EE RREE
temporary differences:
— Revaluation of properties — MRS (2,639) (153,639)
— Effect of adoption HKFRS 16~ — ERAAE B IS %R
F16R B (5,858) (989)
— Others — Efth (17,133) (8,748)
(25,630) (163,376)
Total tax expense/(credit) for the B EEB 2 RNEFEHIA
year from continuing M (%) B8
operations 39,409 (78,643)
Total tax expense for the year RIS EEB 2 N FEDIR
from discontinued operations X 4a%E — 36,737
Total income tax expense/ AEEMBEHAY
(credit) for the year (%) #58 39,409 (41,908)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Notes:

BABTTIIR)

U

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to any income tax in
Bermuda and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax or overseas corporate
income tax has been made in the consolidated financial statements
as the Group did not have assessable profits in Hong Kong or
overseas for the year (2019: Nil).

Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The provision for the PRC CIT has been made at the applicable
income tax rate of 25% on the assessable profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China (2019: 25%), except for the
subsidiaries of the Company established in Horgos, Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous region, which enjoy PRC corporate income tax
exemptions in accordance with the relevant tax rules. Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rate of tax
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before

tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company

and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense

at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable

rates (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rates, is as

follows:

212 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

1. P58 &)

G

)

(i)

(i)

BARRREEEZWERRFEMKLZ

REBRERKBRELEES ((HBE
BB DRUKER  AEERER
ENRBRAEESBABMNEFMSG
o

BRASENAREE AL BERELE
SNELERRTOEH - B BN R A B
BT IRBEBN SRS EMS
B(ZB—NF &) -

RS ([REMEH])

PR EAMER 2 BEDREAEER
FREI A 2 M B A Bl 2 FERR B A Rl iE
TSR & 25% ( —F — L4 : 25%)
B - HERFIEBR TR AR ERRT
B2 AN R B A RIRRSN - EAR AR
AR ZEPECEMSHAR
Hthbh R 2 FERBREFI TR AN E L
EBFERR 2 ERFHRTE -

BEE 2R TE W R EE AR BR AR
R,/ (B5R) 2 BB B B EIR B R aT
BHBERZHRIERBRE (BUAE
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

1. INCOME TAX (Gontinued) 1. PS8
2020 2019
—ECEF —Z=hF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Profit/(loss) before tax from SEICEETS 2
continuing operations BT%RHIJ wmAl (E1E) 135,508 (596,711)
Profit before tax from 1A T 2 BRA AT T
discontinued operations 134,057 166,181
269,565 (430,530)
National tax calculated at rates RERAREHANBEER
applicable to profit in the B HEGTE 2
tax jurisdictions concerned H?Efé 52,018 9,520
Adjustments in respect of @1 BAFEI R EATH IR 2 F B
current tax of previous
periods - 269
Income not subject to tax AT 2 WA (36,014) (158,771)
Expenses not deductible for tax R 53 23,521 73,977
Tax losses not recognised RIERZ BIBEBE 4,512 12,481
Deductible temporary differences KR Z AR E R IEER
not recognised - 16,179
Tax losses utilised from BT HFE SRR IBEE
previous periods (4,628) (11,670)
PRC Land Appreciation rh B + i 3 (B T
Tax(“LAT”) (Mg ER 1) - 21,478
CIT effect of LAT THIIER(ER 2 SEMS R E - (5,369)
Tax expense/(credit) at the BEARSEERHEGE 2 B8
Group's effective rate M (E%) 39,409 (41,906)
Tax expense/(credit) from BRERVERAE 2 FHEEEER
continuing operations at ZFERY, (Ee)
the effective rate 39,409 (78,643)
Tax expense from discontinued RERT R E 2 R I ETE
operations at the effective rate ZRHIERY - 36,737
Tax expense/(credit) at the Group’s IEAREBEEFRAE
effective rate ZBiERX, (%) 39,409 (41,906)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

(i) Parcel C

BABTTIIR)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, management

was in active discussions with potential buyers for the

disposal of the Company’s interest in Parcel C LLC (“Parcel

C”), a subsidiary of the Company which held a property

under construction in Chicago, USA. Since then, Parcel C

has been classified as a disposal company held for sale and

as a discontinued operation. The disposal of Parcel C was

completed on 24 November 2020.

(i) Ceased business of the development and sale of

properties in the PRC

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
decided to cease the business of development and sale

of properties in the PRC. Therefore, the segment of the

development and sale of properties was classified as a

discontinued operation.
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Parcel C
BE_T—NAF+-_A=+—8It
FE EREEERHEARARFR

Parcel C LLC ([Parcel C| * AR 7]
ZHWEBAR  EERZMEHEE—
BEERYE) 2 EREEBEEER
BB o Bt - Parcel CE D48
RFERE 2 HE AR R IEEE
%#7% o Parcel CZHERR T
SF+—A=-F+MHBEZEK -
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12. RIEREERK @)
(i) Parcel C: (i) ParcelC:
(@)  The results for the period up to the date of disposal are @ EHEEHEBHZHREZES
presented below: E=2 I (N
2020 2019
—BECEF —Z=—hEF
$°000 $'000
F Tt
Other revenue E b Uas 18 103
Other income and gains, net  EMUg A Rz - F58 6,075 5,952
Selling expenses HEMX (17,319) (27,6898)
Administrative expenses THRAX (4,475) (133)
Finance costs BhE KA (18) (140)
Gain on disposal of HEHRB ARz W
a subsidiary (note 29) (fizE29) 149,776 —

Profit/(loss) before tax from 4% IFAC & 575 2 BR AR AT

the discontinued wm, (E18)

operation 134,057 (21,906)
Income tax expense iR - =
Profit/(loss) for the year BRI R EE 2 AFE

from the discontinued smA, (E518)

operation 134,057 (21,906)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + HLAETIIR)

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 12. &
(i) Parcel C: (Continued) ()

(b)  The major classes of assets and liabilities of Parcel C
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2019 are

z«( A

l|\:l:

—E390))

Parcel C : (#&)

(b)

R

—hETZA=t—

HParcel CREAFIELE

as follows: ZEIBEERBERMNM
T
2019
—E-NEF
$000
Fx
Property, plant and equipment ¥12 - BiE K% 2,985
Construction in progress TR 864,108
Freehold land IKAZERE T M 158,203
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,369
Properties under development fEZ¥5 3,878,764
Contract incremental costs BHPIEE AR 57,880
Restricted bank deposits SRR BISRITIERR 3,434
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 28,489
Assets classified as held DEAREHECEE
for sale 4,995,232
Trade and other payables B NEMENFRIA (484,822)
Lease liabilities HEBE (1,406)
Loan from a financial institution —J24 FIEE (973,475)
Liabilities directly associated — EEHEAIFIEHEZEE
with the assets BEE#E8E
classified as held for sale (1,459,703)
Net assets directly associated & Parcel C HZHRE 2 E&E FE
with Parcel C 3,535,529
Exchange reserve on MEBIINET 2 BB A
translation of foreign
operations (4,202)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

o
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12. RIEREERK @)
(i) Parcel C: (Continued) (i) Parcel C: (&)
(©) The net cash flows for the period up to the date of © EEHEBHZHBHEZzZR:
disposal are presented below: MEFREZYT
2020 2019
$’ooo $'000
F T
Operating activities TR (851,479) (807,388)
Investing activities TEEE (179,358) (260,368)
Financing activities BEEHY 1,004,388 1,026,062
Effect of foreign exchange ~— JMNEEREE) » £
rate changes (72) (241)
Net cash flow WEmEF (26,521) (41,939)
(d)  Certain assets of Parcel C were pledged to secure the (d) Parcel CEIFIER—TEE R
loan from a financial institution and bank facilities as HEERRIRITEE 2 R
follows: ZETEERT :
2019
—ZE-NEF
$000
Tt
Construction in progress EETRE 864,108
Freehold land KA 158,203
Properties under development fEZ#5 3,878,764
4,901,075
The loan from a financial institution as at 31 December RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H ' —Es
2019 was guaranteed by an intermediate holding BB R H — B EIER A ERE
company, Dalian Wanda Commercial Management BENETEERRN AR ATELE
Group Co., Ltd, and this loan and the relevant R+ Mt E 3K &8 R E 7 Parcel C
guarantee had been released before completion of the 2 B TR BT ARRR o

disposal of Parcel C.
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JsJ\
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12 BRI REEK )
(i) Ceased business of development and sale of (iy BRIEMEERMIEEE
properties: % -
(@)  The results for the year ended 31 December 2019 are @ BEZZFT—-—NLF+A
presented below: = t+t—HIEFEHEZ W
T
2019
—ET-NF
$'000
Fi
Revenue Was 178,332
Cost of sales SHEM A (130,670)
Other revenue H bz 19,928
Other income and gains, net  E AU A R UES - 558 48,737
Selling expenses HEMY (11,235)
Administrative expenses THAX (16,447)
Finance cost BhE P A (37,351)
Gain on disposal of HERB ATz W

subsidiaries 136,793

Profit before tax from the R REETE 2 R AR F
discontinued operation 188,087
Income tax expense FriS iR (36,737)

Profit for the year from the R E RS 2 N FEm
discontinued operation 151,350
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

(ii) Ceased business of development and sale of

properties: (Continued)

12.

RIPEHETRE )

(iy BRIEMEERMIEEE
G -))

(b)  The net cash flows incurred by the ceased business of b)) ERIEMFEZEERKRIEEED
development and sale of properties are as follows: EEZREMEFELT
2019
—E-NEF
$'000
T
Operating activities RS (190,899)
Investing activities HEEY 7,268
Financing activities BMEEH 124,503
Effect of foreign exchange N RS =2
rate changes 597
Net cash flow ReERBFHE (68,531)
(iii) Earnings per share (HK cents) (i) BRER (GBAL)
2020 2019
—BIEF —T-NF
Basic and diluted, from BEARREE - REKLIEEEETR
discontinued operations 1.7 2.1
Y«{

~
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

JsJ\
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12. RIEREERK @)
(iii) Earnings per share (HK cents) (#) (i) BRER OB #)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from BRUEREFEG 2 BRERREER
discontinued operations are based on: FTHRE NP S B E
2020 2019
$’ooo $000
F T
Profit attributable to BRIEREER 2 B ARIE B
ordinary equity holders HHE AEEEF (Bﬁ i 14(a)
of the parent from
the discontinued operations
(note 14(a)) 80,377 97,705
2020 2019
’000 ‘000
TR T
Weighted average number REFENARGTE SR
of ordinary shares in issue EAREERF 2
during the year used in BT EBARINRE
the basic and diluted earnings S E(KI5E26)
per share calculation (note 26) 4,697,347 4,697,347
13. DIVIDEND 13. KRS
The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of RAREETEBREEE_ST_ZTF
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). TZA=T—RILEFEZRERE(ZE
—NE |
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 4,697,347,000 (2019: 4,697,347,000) in
issue during the year.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share are based on:

14. R AIEBEREE ABS
BREF, (EE)

() SREXREF(FE)

FREAZER(BER) HRFNE
NAEBRIFE ABRERF, (&
1B) RFERNB BT AR Z NEF
15 8 4,697,347,000f% ( —Z & — h
4 1 4,697,347,000 %) 5T & -

BRERREERN,(FR) IR
BTIRIERE

2020 2019
—EBF —T-NF
$°000 $'000
Ft Tt
Profit/(loss) attributable to MR R TR E ARG
ordinary equity holders of the wmH, (E18) - ARETE
parent, used in the basic and BREXRREE
diluted earnings/(loss) per share & F|,/ (E#E) :
calculation:
From continuing operations REFELEE 84,754 (248,092)
From discontinued operations 2R B AR AR s (BRE 12)
(note 12i) 80,377 97,705
165,131 (150,387)
~ R
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 14. B AR EBERIEE AEL

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT (Continued)

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (Continued)

BRER, ()@

() BREAERN(BE)#)

Number of shares

R B E
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NEF
’000 ‘000
TR FhR
Weighted average number of RNEFANARFESRERK

ordinary shares in issue during BERT,(E8)

the year used in the basic and Z B EITE AR

diluted earnings/(loss) L (FI5E26)

per share calculations (note 26) 4,697,347 4,697,347

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y13 - BENZME
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor Leasehold Construction
equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
B #£8 fE
Rt RE VS EBIR it
$000 $/000 $000 $000 $/000
i i i i i
31 December 2020 ZEZEEtCA=T-R
At 1 January 2020: RZZ-F5-A-R:
Cost A 29,087 2,716 81,280 7,513 120,596
Accumulated depreciation  ZHrERFE
and impairment (9,360) (2,716) (8,828) - (20,904)
Net carrying amount BEEE 19,727 - 72,452 7,513 99,692

At1 January 2020, netof  RZZ-FE-F-H
accumulated depreciation IR ZSHTERAE)

and impairment 19,727 - 72,452 1,513 99,692
Additions NE 9,747 - 6,228 36,864 52,839
Disposals HE (58) - - - (58)
Transfers EE - - 25,711 (25,171) -
Depreciation provided ERERCNE

during the year (3,852) - (5,094) - (8,946)
Exchange realignment IE R 1,146 - 4,437 484 6,067
At 31 December 2020, RZEZBET-A=T-H

net of accumulated (MBZFAERAE)

depreciation

and impairment 26,710 - 103,794 19,090 149,504
At 31 December 2020: R-BRET-A=T-0:

Cost AR 40,622 2,716 118,327 19,090 180,755
Accumulated depreciation  ZHrERE

and impairment (13,912) (2,716) (14,533) - (31,161)

Net carrying amount BEEE 26,710 - 103,794 19,090 149,504
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + HLAETIIR)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (contives) ~ 15. ¥)2 ~ RE KR35 @)

Furniture,
fixtures, and Motor Leasehold  Construction
equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
Buildings fih - RE HE
BT e AE VEL ERIR szt
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i 1% 1% 17 i 1%
31 December 2019 “E-NETZAZT-H
A1 January 2019: R-E-NE-A-B:
Cost A 7,839 24029 3879 32,983 608,095 676,825
Accumulated depreciation ZRERAE:
and impairment (2,376) (12,179) (3,324) (18,132) = (36,611)
Net carrying amount EHE 5463 11,050 555 14,851 608,09 640,214
At 1 January 2019, net of RZE2-n5-A-A
accumulated depreciation (B Z5HERAE)
and impalrment 5,463 1,250 555 14,851 608,095 640,214
Addtions AE - 11,792 - 73,443 267,866 353,101
Disposals e = (226) @) - - (229)
Disposal of subsidlaries HEHBAR (4,761) (9) (75) - - (4,939)
Tianslertoassetsheld forsdle ~ EZR{EHEEE - - - (2,985) (864,108) (867,093
Depreciation provided ERHREINE
during the year (381) (2,593 (460) (12,003) - (15,437)
Exchange realignment iR (321) 400) (17 (854) (4,340 (5,932
At31 December 2019, netof  RZE-NETZA=1-H
accumulated depreciation (MB2HRERAE)
and impairment - 19,727 - 72,452 7513 99,692
At 31 December 2019: RZE-NETZA=1-8:
Cost A - 29,087 2,716 81,280 7513 120,596
Accurulated depreciation ZHTERRE
and impairment - (9,360) (2,716) (8,828) - (20.904)
Net carrying amount FHFE = 19,727 = 72,452 7513 99,692
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

16. REY=

$000
Tt
At 1 January 2019 R-—ZE—hF—HA—H 3,345,150
Net loss from a fair value adjustment AR EBEAREEFRE (M)
(note 7) (787,975)
Reversal of over-accrued development — EAXEFE T3 A AR 2 # [0
costs (615)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR (980,936)
Exchange realignment b H (66,386)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE-—NF+_A=+—8H
1 January 2020 ;=T =FF—H—H 1,509,238
Net loss from a fair value adjustment AR EEAZRBEFE(MHE7)
(note 7) (34,538)
Reversal of over-accrued development — #A%EFESH 3 Ak AR 2 (0]
costs (32)
Exchange realignment M H 96,132
At 31 December 2020 R-_Z_ZEF+_A=+—H 1,570,800
Y«{

~
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REWIZ )

All the completed investment properties, including both land and
building elements held by the Group, were revalued at the end
of the year based on valuations performed by an independent
qualified valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Shenzhen Valuation
Co., Ltd. (“Cushman & Wakefield”). Cushman & Wakefield is an
industry specialist in investment property valuation, which has the
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation for the
completed investment properties was arrived at by considering
the capitalised income to be derived from the existing tenancies
and the reversionary potential of the properties, where appropriate,
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the same locations and conditions. There were no
changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Certain items of the completed investment properties are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 17 to the financial statements.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. IREY = &)
Fair value hierarchy NAREBEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy TREINAEEREDNEZ AR EEET
of the Group’s investment properties: BER

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 using
R=B=FF+=-A=1-H
ZAREBEFERER

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WERME EATER EBEATATHER
ZiRE BWAZH BWASHY

(B—4R) (B=#) (B=%) #st
$000 $000 $000 $'000
Tr T T Tr
Recurring fair value measurement for; & EEALEBEHE :
Commercial properties EAmE - - 1,570,800 1,570,800

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2019 using
RZZE-NE+=R=+—H
ZARBEGERHA

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

WEEME  BAUER EATIEER
ZH(E BAZH BAZH

(B—%) (B=#) (B=#) st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr T T
Recurring fair value measurement for. & DL BEFE ¢
Commercial properties PERME = - 1,500,238 1,509,238
During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level FR - BREAF R oHEWmER -
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil). The Group’s policy MEEE=FEANEL(ZE—NF
is to recognise transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy ) o REBE R RN Ry s
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur. Eﬁiﬁﬁ%’&fﬂ%ﬁ%&ﬁaﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁif /
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16.

228

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

The Group’s management has discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each reporting date.

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

6. REWZE »

NEHmE BMETHER  AREEE
Ee R EmTmbERR R GES

ATHARBEYMEGEMER 2GBER
ARTEBASE B :

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
ERFABE
EERR BAZH gE
2020 2019
it St 22 —TNF
Shopping mall Investment approach Prevailing monthly
market rent RMB69 RMB70
per square metre —RMB301 —RMB299
% REE BRABFAK AR¥69TE ARB70LE
BimsHe ARH®301 7T AR#2997T
Reversionary yield Mall: 7.0% Mall: 7.0%
Store: 6.0% Store: 6.0%
EHEKEE &% 7.0% % 0 7.0%
JEH © 6.0% JEH : 6.0%
Car parks Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB395 RMB395
market rent
per lot
FES REE g HEEE ARH#395 T ARH3957T
RiTm5HEE
Reversionary yield 5.0% 5.0%
EEKEX

Prevailing market rents are estimated based on the independent
valuer’s view of recent letting transactions within the subject
properties and other comparable properties. The higher the rent,
the higher the fair value is. The reversionary yield is estimated by
the independent valuer based on the risk profile of the properties
being valued. The higher the yield, the lower the fair value is.
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17. LEASES 17. &

The Group as a lessee AEBEREMEA
AEBMERANEEBEEZHAE
BIERET BEREBCHESL - #F
REZHPBREA_ENTF  BIEEF
ZHPREATRAE_+4 - gEZH
AT R—E_FmMlscHEaER
—E=F o AthAEEHNERHE 2 E
HBEEAST @A T R, SER B
KEE -

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office, hotel
buildings, warehouses and machinery used in its operations.
Leases of offices generally have lease terms between 2 and 6
years, and leases of hotel buildings generally have lease terms
between 15 and 20 years, while warehouses generally have lease
terms between 1 and 2 years and machinery generally has lease
terms between 1 and 3 years. Other office space or equipment
generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually
of low value.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FREEE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and AEEFAEEECEEEREA

the movements during the year are as follows: BEIMT
Prepaid
Hotel land lease
Office  buildings Warehouses  payments Machinery Total
Bftti
BAE  EEET 2E  HEXRE Ha a5
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T Tr T Tr
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 10,240 - 375 16,737 - 27,352
Additions AE 40290 259,301 - - - 299,591
Depreciation charge HERY (12,287) (7,852) (215) (469) - 20,767)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - - (15,888) = (15,888)
Transfer to assets classiied ~ BEHBAR{ELE
as held for sale EE (1,369 = = = = (1,369)
Exchange realignment AR 639 87 (28) (386) — 312
As at 31 December 2019and H=E—-NF+-A=1-H
1 January 2020 R=5-%5-8-H 37,563 251,536 132 - - 289,231
Additions AE 820 126,874 - - 486 128,180
Depreciation charge NERY (0352 (19,600) (136) - (195 (29,289
Exchange realignment EREE 1,920 19,665 4 - 10 21,599
Asat31 Decomber2020  WZE=TFET-A=1-H 3091 378475 - - 301 409727
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17. LEASES (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

17. HE &

(b) HEERE

— ==

HERBEZRAENRFAZE L

during the year are as follows: s &
2020 2019
—ECEF =
$°000 $'000
F T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEmE 295,189 10,517
New leases EIMHE 128,180 299,591
Accretion of interest recognised ~ FAMER Z RIEF L (FFE8)
during the year (note 8) 19,649 9,112
Payments (BN (24,227) (23,398)
Transfer to liabilities directly HEEESHEARELE Y
associated with the assets BEEREH AE
classified as held for sale - (1,4006)
Covid-19-related rent concessions 2K & HF8 A 2 COVID-19 #873
from lessors e Rz (183) —
Exchange realignment b 34 SR B 23,165 773
Carrying amount at 31 December W+ - A=+—HZKEE 441,773 295,189
Analysed into: DA
Current portion BNHA 19,948 8,281
Non-current portion JEBNER 421,825 286,908
441,773 295,189

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

36 to the financial statements.
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17. LEASES (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

17.

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

HE

() MIBmERZEERESRNT

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-AF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) & & &F| & (F:E8) 19,649 9,112
Depreciation charge of TREEENERX
right-of-use assets 29,283 20,767
Expense relating to short-term H350 HAFA EARRE 2 F s (i 7)
leases (note 7) 7,747 6,984
Expense relating to leases of MEEEEEMEMRBE MY
low-value assets (included in GGTATTBAS) (Ki5E7)
administrative expenses) (note 7) 88 110
Covid-19-related rent concessions 2K & HFE A 2 COVID-19 #873
from lessors HeRe (183) =
Total amount recognised in RIER R 2 A5
profit or loss 56,584 36,973

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases in disclosed in note 30(c) to

the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties in Guilin under

operating lease arrangements. Another commercial property in

Fuzhou was leased under operating lease arrangements during

the year ended 31 December 2019, which was disposed of on 27

December 2019 upon the completion of the disposal of Amazing

Wise Limited and its subsidiaries. The terms of the lease generally

require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for

periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market

conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was $103,653,000 (2019: $149,118,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.

(d THERSRLEFENTBRKRMT
30(c) 5 °

REEFERHBEA

AEERELCEHETHFLAEMR
HERZEEDE - REE-_T—LF
TZA=+—HLFE  S—REM
ZEEMEDBBECEHELTHLA -
ME 5% ) 3% B 7E T AR I & Amazing Wise
Limited 2 &M B R Al &R T — NF
TZAZHERAEH c ZEEZ KRR —
MRERPIMNRBFCUBBERTR
TEHARES AEEFARERZES
A A103,653,000C( = F — L& ¢
149,118,0007T) * B BFI5E N B 73R
RMIEES ©

Y
~_~
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17. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments
receivables by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

17. HE &

REBE/HEA @)

RZE-_TF+-_A=1+—H £AEEH
RIFEM PRI 2 TR BGEEEHER
R 2 BRI ES T -

2020 2019

—E-FF —TNF

$°000 $'000

Fr Tt

Within one year —FNRN 80,921 85,945
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 56,523 57,138
After two years but within three years MERBREBE=FNK 40,094 37,016
After three years but within four years —FERENFR 29,641 32,371
After four years but within five years MFEZRERFA 23,331 26,428
After five years hF& 103,370 133,549
333,880 372,447

232 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 18. B IBEERERE

REBRERE MBI MER BT
HEE/ (AR RFEREEHMT

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and
the movements during the year are as follows:

Revaluation Lease
of properties LAT liability Others Total
MEER  LHIEES HEEE Hit -
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-NE—F—A (480,657) 7,781 - 8,678 (464,198)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ~ AEEE A/ (1K)
to the statement of profit or Bk JBEERE :
loss during the year:
— included in continuing —FABELEER
operations (note 11) (K1) 153,639 - 989 8,748 163,376
— included in discontinued —FAREEER
operations = (7,781) = (1,972) (9,753)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 141,704 = = = 141,704
Exchange differences EHESR 15,919 - (11) (275) 15,633
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=1-H
and 1 January 2020 RZFZFF5-A—H (169,395) = 978 15,179 (153,238)
Deferred tax credited TEEFAERRL
to the statement of profit or ERERIR -
loss during the year:
— included in continuing —HARBLEER
operations (note 11) (B3E11) 2,639 = 5,858 17,133 25,630
Exchange differences EHZESR (8,179 - 252 (1,127) (9,048)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-TF+-A=1-A (174,929) — 7,088 31,185 (136,656)
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AY N ; E .
18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 18. BEMIEEERAG @
(Continued)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: RAE IR TR 2 HER
2020 2019
—B-FF —TNEF
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Deferred tax assets EREFIBE & 39,383 16,157
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE (176,039) (169,395)
(136,656) (153,238)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the RARWAFATIEE ERIELEFIEE
following items: E:
2020 2019
—E-FF —FNF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Unused tax credits REAIBEE R 54,434 70,345
Deductible temporary differences AR SR ER - 33,693
54,434 104,038
The above tax losses mainly arose in the USA. Deferred tax assets FARMBEBBETENEBEEL - ARR
have not been recognised in respect of the above items as it is not RORAIBE B ERTU NPT B A Fat1E
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against B8 - A RBL L aiIE B ERIRIER
which the above items can be utilised. THEEE o
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18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in PRC. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. As
at 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC. In the opinion of the directors,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
earnings associated with investments in subsidiaries in the PRC
was approximately $1,732,509,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: $1,513,837,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

18. BIEHIBEENREE ®)

BEPECEMRETE  RRANELE
BEETRRANFPEN L 2INERZE
B A% BB 10% TE L o 4 & B B Hh
Bl EEMEREEE 2HAEEHBEE
B RIARBRETENH R R AT - K
ETFFZA=FT—RH AEELK
BMEEREK T 2K B A RAEMZIEH
TR E R E L B AR A A TR B A
BERTE - BEERE ' ZEWBRAR
ARERDIREBRFOEE TR - B
—EEF+-A=+—H BRF
BEffE AR ERBEN AR R
RE#)51,732,509,000 70 ( = F — L4 ¢
1,513,837,0007T) °

AR ) [A) E B RO A< AL B 3 R B A PR S
BEE -

9. BESBWFAR EWEE

2020 2019
—EF-FF —TNEF

$°000 $°000

T Tt

Trade receivables =) e e 340,257 231,696
Impairment A (54,702) (28,493)
285,555 203,203

Bills receivables EW =% 56,274 16,921
341,829 220,124

Receivables form leasing properties are normally settled on an
advance receipt basis, where the lessees are required to pay in
advance for several months’ rental payment and pay a security
deposit as well. However, in the case of long-standing customers
with good repayment history, the Group may offer these customers
credit terms.

KB E Y A BRI — AR CATRIRTT
AEE  ARARREINEAESY
SARER © A - LA RIFERCE
ZEHEPME  AREXERAZFE
PRREEEBR -

Y“{,q-
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continueq)

For the business of hotel operations, receivables are normally
settled in advance. However, the Group may offer credit terms to
certain corporate clients.

For the business of hotel management services, hotel design and
construction management services, the Group’s trading terms
with its customers are mainly on credit. The Group has set out
policies to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. The Group also reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivable balance to ensure that adequate
provision for impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over such trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

19. B 5 BUIGRIA REWRE

(%)

LB EEXRBME - BUGKIE—KM
SRLGEE - AWM AREXAETA
AEPRHEERNR

FUB S B IRRTS  BE R MERE R
RIBME  AEREEETPZE S HK
FR2UEERET - AEEEFIER
RIARERERERBRAETT BN W O B R (B 7S -
AEE TR E NE B SR E R B 5 UK
BREHBZATREI SRR - AR AT
CeREL TR ZMEBEREE - A&
B EZFE B RYGIRESRT AT
AR RS EL M EE R L &
SRR FS

RIFZERBH - RIS BRI B 18 5
BB RUGIRZ REDITIAT -

2020 2019
—EZHF —ET-NF

$°000 $°000

Fx Tt

Within 3 months =@EAR 111,859 73,183
Over 3 months but within 6 months HBBE=EAENEANAN 59,315 31,669
Over 6 months but within 12 months BBEAEAE+T—@EAR 56,853 47,351
Over 12 months Bid+—EA 57,528 51,000
285,555 203,203
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continueq)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

19.

B RS R AR AL

BB TTHIR)

B 5 B
(%)

BREWEE

B 5 & WK
™

A2 BEBREGZE M

2020 2019

—ECEF —T-NF

$°000 $'000

Fr T

At beginning of year REH] 28,493 1,595
Impairment during the year, net FRRE - FRE

— continuing operations (note 6) — FELEER (H3Ee) 23,389 27,292

— discontinued operations — R TS - 6)

Exchange realignment M 54, 38 B 2,820 (3898)

At end of year RER 54,702 28,493

The increase in the loss allowance was due to certain outstanding
contractual amounts which were considered in default and the
Group is unlikely to receive such outstanding contractual amounts
in full.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
reference to the credit risk characteristics of receivables, either
individually or collectively. For receivables with credit risk identified
deteriorated significantly, Management made provision on the
individual basis, otherwise, Management use a provision matrix
to measure expected credit losses for the rest receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

As at 31 December 2020, the trade receivables amounting to
$48,037,000 (2019: $25,664,000) was assessed individually and
considered to be unlikely for the Group to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts and was fully impaired. There are no credit
enhancements held by the Group on such outstanding amounts.

WEBREMNTHERE TEREGRE
BEIAR VEAE 40 B 78 5 B R BE 2B BUCEAR
PAAREBARTHE -

REHREAM2EREFRZEERR
FECETRED T (TR ERHILR) -
SLEERBRBEE R BEFENS -
EEECRENEEFELEE HES
TTE MR AR 8 R UGIRZ 8
HEEER - BEXIIREBERANER SR
UEBEBERA 2 ZEEF HEETHEM
Bz BBGTE - Lt ERBREAEN
BER ERRERNBEAHAIEZ
BRBESE - BRI RRRE B IR

Iz S B R AT E R o

RZEZZEF+=A :‘f’— H &5
JfE U 2X 78 48,037,000 7L ( — T — L4 -

25,664,000 7T ) T3 #% &l 51| & /ﬂ%ﬁ i
WAEBER /T EKRERESRESEE

BEEFERE AEBTERZSAES
EREEEERLHE - S
“{hr
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= =+
19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. EZ ERFIE R EWEE
(%)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on REB B FERREBEMTEE S UK
the rest portion of the Group’s trade receivables using a provision Bz E#BHHMER 2 EERBRERH
matrix: BT :
As at 31 December 2020 R=ZB-ZBF+=-H=+—H
Past due
Bl
Less than 3t06 61012 Over
Current 3 months months months 12 months* Total
Bk PR=EA ZEXNER AETZEA BBT-fEA* @it
Expected credit loss rate BHEERER 0.236% 0.882% 1.768% 2.226% 8.741% 2.281%
Gross carrying amount BEEE(TL)
($°000) 112,132 59,725 24,723 44,880 50,760 292,220
Expected credit losses EHEERE(Tr)
($'000) 265 527 437 999 4,437 6,665
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z—h&E+—-_FA=+—H
Past due
Less than 3t06 61012 QOver
Current 3 months months months 12 months™ Total
8 OR=EA  =ESEA AETZEA #BBT-fER" Bzt
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEFREE 0.292% 0.846% 1.032% 2.125% 9.361% 1.373%
Gross carrying amount BEEE(TL)
($'000) 86,290 32,615 21,808 55,806 9,518 206,032
Expected credit losses EHEERE(Tr)
($'000) 251 276 225 1,186 891 2,829

238 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

20. CONTRACT ASSETS

20. BHEE

2020 2019
$’000 $°000
Fr FT
Contract assets arising from: IATNIBEEACERNEE :
Hotel design services B I R ET AR 23,811 14,554
Impairment DERIE] (1,342) (54)
22,469 14,500
Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from BREECVIRERRBE R RS R
hotel design services and the provision of related design services ST IR AE B 3% 5T AR 75 18 4 P R B 2 U s

as the receipt of consideration is conditioned on having reached
certain milestones of the design and customers confirming the
design results. Upon completion of certain milestones of the
design and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised
as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, $1,302,000 (2019:
$54,000) was recognised as an allowance for excepted credit
losses on contract assets. The Group’s trading terms and credit
policy with customers are disclosed in note 19 to the financial
statements.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets
as at 31 December 2020 is within one year.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

LM’E%HSZHXZKF AR 2 ERE

RETBRBI AT FHERRER -
EEX%:F AAERBYREPEME
ERAEEREECSREETIRS
B Z IR -

BHE-_T-_TF+_A=+—HLHF
E'Eﬁﬁ 21,302,000C (= F — N5 -
54,000 ) IEREHNEEZTBIEES
BEE AKEHERF 2B ERRE
BEHRREHRMGE 10 ERE

R-ZT_ZTEF-_A=1t—HKEHE
BAMNBEZERRER—FA -

BREEZREREREZZMT

2020 2019

—E-EF —Z=—hHEF

$°000 $000

Fr T

At beginning of year F] 54 —

Impairment losses (note 6) REEE (F3Ee) 1,302 54

Exchange realignment P& W FEEE (14) —

At end of year FR 1,342 ol 54
e
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20. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) ENEE @

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
reference to the credit risk characteristics of contract assets,
either individually or collectively. For contract assets with credit risk
identified deteriorated significantly, Management made provision
on the individual basis, otherwise, Management use a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses for the rest portion. The
provision rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses
on the contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables
as the contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same
customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are based
on days past due of trade receivables for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

As at 31 December 2020, the contract assets amounting to
$1,182,000 (2019: Nil) was assessed individually and considered
to be unlikely for the Group to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts and was fully impaired. There are no credit enhancements
held by the Group on such outstanding amounts.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the rest portion of the Group’s contract assets using a provision

matrix:

As at 31 December 2020

REREAHABESNEEZEER
*i/%lﬁ;ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ(T\EMI/E':'JEE/\E) g
HREERRBRERLCZENEEMS -
EREEREMNEEEHEE e
TEREEEREAEEGRE D < TRHE
EER - ARG EERE HRWFIA
TREBEREFE  ANUGFEEHNEE
TﬁﬁﬂﬁEEﬁEZﬁfﬁzE*ETF%%TWSZ
HIAZRBREEBRFERFL -
FZ%&%I‘E*ETFTRT?E%*EMFEETE@Et
Dz ZEBF D2 E S EKFKIAR
HﬂZEl%T‘l‘E Zat RS AR R N
- BEBERNREESHAISZE

Eai@ff$£\ C B RIE AR AR R BB
TRl BB RAISEER

RZEBEZTF+A=1+—H0 GHE&
1,182,000t (ZF—NF : &) Jhi%
BRI B2 - WHRAKER ST
BREARSEAC2ERE A£H
WERZERESBREEEERTH -

$’§l@)ﬂﬁé‘1ﬁﬁﬁ$;ﬁr§ KBEHR
DZIEERBREREIMT -

R-Z2-_2H+-A=+—H

Total
#Et
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEBL X 0.707%
Gross carrying amount ($’000) EREE (FT) 22,629
Expected credit losses ($’000) FEHEEEE (Fi) 160
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—hNFE+=ZH=+—8H
Total
5T
Expected credit loss rate TEREEE B = 0.371%
Gross carrying amount ($’000) #@ERmE (T 14,554
Expected credit losses ($’000) TEREERE (Fr) 54
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

21. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. T FIE « EfuEUIREE

S
OTHER ASSETS REMERE
2020 2019
—EDEF —E-hEF
Notes $°000 $'000
BT T Tt
Current portion BB 55
Prepayments TEfRUR 7,209 5,810
Deposits and other receivables e R E b EREE 62,572 25,859
Amounts due from related parties ~ FEURF3iE A L FUE 263 1,004
Amounts due from an intermediate &Y — /R EEA A FIF0E
holding company 11,457 10,712
81,501 43,385
Impairment allowance BB a (15,528) (16,537)
65,973 26,848
Non-current portion FERTEGES 75
Long-term receivables REAE IR b 1,592,983 =

A memrzmamad 241
“ERCRERH e



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITIIIR)

21. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

The amounts due from related parties and an intermediate holding
company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(@ The movements in provision for impairment of other
receivables during the year are as follows:

21. T FIE « EfuEUIREE
MEMERE 2

FEM B E A+ R — R IR A R 2 K
REER - 2R NREREER -

(@)

U

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
$°000 $'000
Fr T
At 1 January ®n—H—H 16,537 353
Impairment during the year FRREL (BRE),/
(reversed)/recognised R ZBE - FE
in profit or loss, net
— continuing operations (note 6) — FELEER (H5Ee) (800) 9,651
— discontinued operations — R TS - 6,659
Exchange realignment b 5 SR (209) (126)
At 31 December wn+=-—A=+—H 15,528 16,537

The above provision for impairment of other receivables is a
provision for individually impaired other receivables.

(o) The long-term receivables amounting to $1,592,983,000
(equivalent to approximately US$205,469,000) represented
the Deferred Amount arising from the disposal of Parcel C
(note 29). The Deferred Amount is secured by a mortgage on
certain condominium units under development of Parcel C.
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22. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22. ZRFIBITEFURIEE

RREEEY

2020 2019
—EF-FF —TNEF

$°000 $°000

T Tt

Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHER 2,137,660 2,198,697
Time deposits TEHATE R 237,640 223,260
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 2,375,300 2,421,957

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to $2,262,851,000
(2019: $2,104,820,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The time deposit is made for a period of three years,
but could be withdrawn at any time during the period depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group. The bank
balances and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

RREHR - NEBUARBEZE
& RBEEEYAE2,262,851,0007T (=
T — FL4F 1 2,104,820,0007C) © AR#E
T ERLRAEHMER - A - RIB
R BR (A 3t 2 INFE B 3R (15 I A T - ST
RHAEEERTE  ~AEEEETEBE
ERRIINEEE ZRITHARB LA
HiE -

RITEFFIREE BRITEARAERIUE
BHE - EREFERRA=F - ERFA
5 B2 BB 3R & 5 SR 1 AT I ER A {A B
BRER - RITEHRIRHRSFAL
A IR M RO ek < BEBIRTT

Y
~_~
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] +
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. E5 N HMENFRIE
An analysis of trade payables and other payables as at the end of RIREEIR 2 B 5 e 508 R fE
the reporting period is as follows: FIBZ DU -
2020 2019
—F-FF —TNF
Notes $°000 $'000
BiteE T T
Trade payables B ST FRIE a 52,745 84,874
Other payables and accruals Hub et sa R EsT & R 238,106 215,365
Interest payable to an intermediate & — & I A &) F) &
holding company b 221,291 129,523
Amounts due to intermediate JE A5 R PR AR A B R IE
holding companies o] 1,430,424 94,852
Amounts due to related parties JEREE A L7 c 210,763 205,094
2,153,329 729,708
Notes: BiE -
a.  None of the Group’s trade payables are expected to be settled after a. BIEASEESEMNREEBNBER
more than one year (2019: Nil). —FREE(ZT-NF  8\) -
The ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the BIRERAH  RIREBRRZEHEN
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HIBZBREDMTIAT
2020 2019
—E-BF —T-hEF
$°000 $000
Fr FT
Within 3 months =EAA 10,017 3,404
Over 3 months but within 6 months Bm={EAENEARN 250 2,265
Over 6 months but within 12 months BEANEAE+—@EAR 6,238 143
Over 12 months HBidmt+—1EA 36,240 79,062
52,745 84,874
b.  The amount of $221,291,000 in interest payable to an intermediate b EfN-—MBEHPHEZERR2EMNE
holding company is repayable on demand (2019: $129,523,000). 221,291,000t HIZEKEE(ZZ
The interest payable is unsecured and not subject to compound — L : 129,523,000 7T ) ° % F& - FI
interests. BREEAKRBAZNETR -
c.  The amounts due to intermediate holding companies and related c.  EFTRREERA R REEEALZ FIEY
parties are repayable on demand and all these balances are BRENRER  MZFEHKREIREE
unsecured and interest-free. BRER -
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24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

Details of contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

24.

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

2020 2019
$’ooo $'000
F Tt
Sale of goods HERm 301 9,985
Loyalty programme management BT 8B R RS
services 42,134 37,798
Hotel management services B B 2R A 38,511 9,989
Hotel design and hotel construction BE S w BB R
management services B8RS 10,745 4,308
Other services HAtb AR 353 50
Total contract liabilities BB EER 92,044 62,130
Analysed into: R
Current portion BNHEAER 17 34,882 35,463
Non-current portion JEBNERER 15 57,162 26,667
92,044 62,130
Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver goods, EHNABERERRNES  BHEEE
loyalty programme management services, hotel management BART  BEEBRE  BER KB

services, hotel design and hotel construction management

services and other services.

JE R RR B TR AR 7 LA K% L th AR 75 7 U ER 2
K -
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25. LOANS FROM AN INTERMEDIATE HOLDING

25. —EREZER X RER

COMPANY

Loans from an intermediate holding company were repayable as —REFEERARER BRI T

follows:

2020 2019
—E-EF —TNEF
Notes $°000 $'000
B 5T F T+
Current: BIAR
Loans from an intermediate —HFREERARER
holding company a 873,000 4,187,582

Notes: Btk -

a.  The carrying amounts of all the Group’s loans from an intermediate a.  FAR AEE-HPEERAFZEE
holding company during the year were denominated in the BERzEEBEHUET(ERT]) BE
United States Dollar (“US$”) and Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$”). The (BT EHE - RERZEEEE
denominated amounts at the year end are as follows: SRR ¢

2020 2019
—E-EE —T-NF
Notes $’000 $°000
k=2 Fr Fx
US$ loans and borrowings ETERRER 0] - 674,416
US$ loans and borrowings ETERRER (i) - 2,640,166
HK$ loan and borrowing BITERRER (iil 873,000 873,000
873,000 4,187,582
0] These loans were interest-free. 0] ZEERRRE
(i)  These loans bore interest at a rate of the 3-month USD iy ZEEFZ=-[EAMBIRITRZE
Libor+1%. FEM1%ETE ©
@iy  This loan bears interest at a rate of 4% per annum. @iy ZEETIRTFI%ZNERTE
b.  Interest incurred during the year ended 31 December 2020 and b. BE_Z_TES+_A=+-—HLF

interest payable to an intermediate holding company as at 31

December 2020 are set out in notes 8 and 23, respectively.
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26. SHARE CAPITAL

26. RN

2020 2019
—ECBE —ZE-NF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAT -
4,697,346,488 (2019: 4,697,346,488) 4,697,346,488 (—Z— L4 :
ordinary shares 4,697,346,488) I I @ A% 469,735 469,735

27. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 128
to 129 of the financial statements.

Nature and purpose of reserves
Share premium

The application of the share premium is governed by the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the respective articles of association of the PRC group
companies, each of the subsidiaries of the Group that is
domiciled in the PRC is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve
until such reserve reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital.

Exchange reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and foreign operations
whose functional currencies are different from the Group’s
presentation currency.

27. 1B

(a)

(b)

RAFENBEFE - NEBZFH
BRESHEENMBEHRRE 128
E10AZRABREEHRAZ
5] o

RBEER AR
Rt ME

BiaBzERTARE—NN\—
FREVERE -

EE#E

REFERRDERTFEEE QR
TERBABAE AR - AN SR R B A
ZEMBREARERDE10%
B RR B 1&0a A (IR 15 B & 5t Il /=
BE)ZEEAERHFHE  BEEXT
EFEEESEBEMEARNE0% °

B 7

SNEMB RBIEREARE I
ERBRIRAEEZ5IEE 285
X BBRREEL ZELE
B o
b
RV
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27. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference
between the aggregate nominal value of the share capital of
the Company’s subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in connection with
the Group’s reorganisation; and (i) adjustments made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
the change in the relative interests as a result of changes in
the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a
loss of control.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
fair value of the consideration paid to Wanda HK for the
acquisition of the entire interest in Wanda Hotel Management
Group which are under common control of Wanda HK,
and the carrying amounts of the net assets of Wanda Hotel
Management Group acquired.

Distributable reserves

The Company’s share premium, special reserve and retained
earning as at 31 December 2020 may be distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances prescribed by Section
54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity holders of the Company
was $1,174,194,000 (2019: $1,101,521,000).
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(RIEEPNCIPAF ENER =R EE 2NN
IEBEBEAMBEITZRMNEEZE
B R (i) SRR R IR A i s R
TR 2 F% - AR BR (R A &= B R B
BRAZESEE (WEEHKE
YEbRE) PREE 2 RS R -

B

AR EREESERESRES
s (RBEFRBHFAZES) MM
BEREXNREZARBESEMN
WEESEREEREEEEFEL
AREERZSE

Ak

RZFZFF+ZA=+—HB &
RAEZ B EE R RRE
BHRBERE-NAN-—FRAEH
SAIEFIRE 2B TIHER T A5
TRTRR ©
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28. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following tables list out the information relating to subsidiaries

of the Group which have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).

The summarised financial information presented below represents

the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

%

28. R E AFFERERAIED
DHEEWB LA

TRE A E WA B A S R 2
(FEZRRiEas ) B ARER - TX
FORES RS Bk B A T
M -

B

Wanda
Wanda Americas
Properties Real Estate
Investment Investment
Limited Limited
Group Group
BEBERE BEINHMERE
BRATEE BRAREE
$°000 $'000
TP F
2020 —ECEF
Percentage of equity interest IR RS
held by NCI MEZB DL 49% 40%
Profit for the year AT IR A
allocated to NCI REF R 30,335 30,111
Dividends declared to NCI IRk T I RER AR S - -
Accumulated balances/(deficit) RERE BB IEERR
of NClI at the reporting date = RETAEE (B54l) 647,259 (88,520)
2019 —T-NEF
Percentage of equity interest IR ERISA
held by NCI MR A D 49% 40%
Profit/(loss) for the year DT IR RS B
allocated to NCI NEDHEF, (E8) 47,676 (47,722)
Dividends declared to NCI TR T IEEREE AR S — —
Accumulated balances/(deficit) RERE B B IEE AR
of NCI at the reporting date T 2rerEE (B4 537,600 (117,612)
v o
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28. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

28. BREAFERERAIS
DHEENB LR =

(Continued)
Wanda
Wanda Americas
Properties Real Estate
Investment Investment
Limited Limited
Group Group
BEEBERE BEIMNEERE
BRAREE BRAAEE
$°000 $’000
Fr Fr
2020 —EBCEF
Revenue from continuing operations FRECEFETS 2 W 103,653 -
Total expense and RECEER
other net loss from RS R H At
continuing operations 51855 (41,745) (58,925)
Profit/(loss) for the year FBICE 2
from continuing operations AEEHF, (BE) 61,908 (58,925)
Profit for the year BIEEEEB AN FE
from discontinued operations il - 136,559
Profit for the year REE A 61,908 77,634
Total comprehensive income REFEEWALEE
for the year 223,794 72,730
Current assets mEEE 1,406,175 8,275
Non-current assets FEMBEE 1,571,043 1,592,995
Current liabilities nE}BE (1,481,353) (1,822,570)
Non-current liabilities ERBAG (174,929) —
Net cash flows from/(used in) EE/ (A 2BeREFHE
— operating activities — K TRED 105,373 (764,523)
— investing activities — REEE (230,468) 2,565,704
— financing activities — REEE - (1,814,887)
Effect of foreign exchange rate R E) o B
changes 1,492 61
Net decrease in B& KR e SEYR D
cash and cash equivalents (123,603) (13,645)
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28. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

28. R E AFFERERAIED
DHEENB LR =

A memrzmamad 251
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(Continued)
Wanda
Wanda Americas
Properties Real Estate
Investment Investment
Limited Limited
Group Group
BEB¥RNE BEIMNOERE
BRAREER ARARER
$000 $000
T T
2019 —E-NEF
Revenue from continuing operations B EFETS 2 W 98,719 =
Total expense and FELEHE 2
other net loss B R EAMEEF R
from continuing operations (25,926) (97,399)
Profit/(loss) for the year FECEE 2
from continuing operations REHEF, (EE) 72,793 (97,399)
Profit/(loss) for the year BRIMHEEER 2
from discontinued operations REHEF, (EE) 24,504 (21,906)
Profit/(loss) for the year RNEHEF, () 97,297 (119,305)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) REEZ2EWRA(EE) 258
for the year 48,455 (134,494)
Current assets MEEE 1,286,107 5,022,395
Non-current assets ERBNVE E 1,611,988 22
Current liabilities mENEE (1,531,558) (5,097,262)
Non-current liabilities ERBAGE (169,395) -
NCI eI — (219,185)
Net cash flows from/(used in) EE/ (A 2BeREFHE
— operating activities — EETRED (451,222) (807,784)
— investing activities — BEEE 1,398 (260,365)
— financing activities — REEED — 1,026,062
Effect of foreign exchange [EREE) s 8
rate changes 9,029 239
Net decrease in ReEFREEEY
cash and cash equivalents BAERR (440,795) (41,848)
Y ‘
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29. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 29. HE—RIMTE A 7]

On 24 November 2020, the Group completed the disposal of
its equity interest in Parcel C. Further details of the Disposal
have been set out in the Company’s announcements dated
30 July 2020, 17 August 2020 and 25 November 2020, the
Company’s circular dated 29 September 2020.

On 24 July 2020, Wanda Chicago Real Estate LLC (“Wanda
Chicago”), a subsidiary of the Company, as seller, and Magellan
Parcel C/D LLC (“Magellan”), as purchaser, entered into a
membership interest purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) in
relation to the disposal of 90% of the issued and outstanding
membership interests of Parcel C (the “Disposal”) at the
consideration of US$270,000,000 and repayment of the debt in
the amount of US$281,370,000, among which US$200,000,000
has been deferred in payment (the “Deferred Amount”). The
Deferred Amount was increased by US$3,500,001 according
to the Agreement since Magellan extended the initial scheduled
closing date from 22 October 2020 to the final completion date on
24 November 2020.
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29. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

The net assets of Parcel C at the date of disposal were as follows:

29. HE— BB AR @

Parcel CREE R Z EEFEMT ¢

2020
—ECEF
$°000
Fr
Net assets disposed of: EHEZEEFE
Construction in progress TR 1,049,332
Freehold land KAFRELH 157,467
Properties under development e 4,638,288
Contract incremental costs BHPE BRI 57,761
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTFRIE - Bt EWGRIE R Bt & &=
other assets 40,933
Cash and cash equivalents R RReFED 1,968
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A ERTRRIE (438,636)
Other borrowings HAER (3,340,910)
Non-controlling interests IR i R (216,737)
1,949,466
Exchange fluctuation reserve RN e ] 5,360
Transaction expenses R M= 20,136
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 12() & — B 2 8z Yz (FHEE 12()) 149,776
2,124,738
Satisfied by: & RS -
Cash R 2,092,932
Increase in the Deferred Amount IRIE S FEIE N 27,194
Fair value gain on the Deferred Amount B2 AR BERE 4,612
2,124,738

Y
~_~
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29. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 29. HE—RIfEB AT =)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FALE—HMBAR R RREE
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: EMRNFEZDMMIT -
2020
—ECEF
$'000
Fr
Cash consideration ReHE 2,092,932
Cash and bank balances disposed of BHEZRE RRITA (1,968)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ~BELE—FHMBARZEE R
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ~ REFEWRAFER 2,090,964

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30. RE R ERERMEE

OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of $128,180,000 (2019:
$299,591,000) and $128,180,000 (2019: $299,591,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for office, hotel
buildings and machinery.

During the year, the Group derecognised certain loans from
an intermediate holding company of $1,329,461,000(2019:
Nil) on the due dates and transferred them to amounts due
to intermediate holding companies which is stated in note 23
to the financial statements.
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30. ZFEREREBRMT @

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

negative under this note while the accounts of liabilities are
presented in positive to be consistent with the comparative

information.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METHREENEEEH
activities
2020 —EBEHE
Loan form
Loans Amounts financial
from an due to institution Interest
anintermediate  an intermediate included payables for
Lease holding holding in liabilities Other Long-term  bank loans and
liabilities company company asheldforsale  borrowings receivable*  other loans
Bff-B  ABELE BERR
L] TEER  2REZSR AfpE3
HEEE EROFER DR BREER HfbfeR  REBWGET RS
$1000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $1000 $1000
i in i i1 in fn i
At1 January 2020 R-E-%5-8-A 295,189 4,187,562 94,852 973,745 - - 129,523
Inter-group balances between  BHENBLARERT
disposed subsidaryand the BN -F-%5%
femaining group -R-RZ5ERES
asat 1 January 2020 - - - - 1,347,445 (1,347,445) -
Changes from financing BARSRES
cash fows 24221 (1870310) - o721 1162549 - (28802)
New leases (note 17(5) MTRE (W17l 128,180 - - - - - -
Interest expenses R 19,649 - - - - - 92,261
Capitalized nterest B{RIS - - - - - - 28,802
Covic-19 related rent COVD-10FE %
concessions (note 17(c) (M 170) (183) - - - - - -
Eimination between disposed B X ENBAAE
subsiciary and the BIEE bR
remaining group - - - - 841,923 (841,923) -
Poceedsrecebed oncept REERENBATE
collecton from buyer n EFREBNEIEL
behalf of the disposed Fig5g
subsidlaries - - - - - 621,628 -
Increase n the Deferred ERSEAN
Amounts (nofe 29) (Kt 29) - - - - - (27,194) -
Fair value gain on the B AnERNG
Deferred Amounts (rote 29~ (Ff3£ 29) - - - - - 4612) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 29) i EMBAR (Hiz29) - - - - (3,340910) - -
Derecogniton of loans B RN
due to an intermedlate hEERAEZER
holding company - (1,329,461) 1,329,461 - - - -
Foreign exchange movement S ESE) 2,165 (114:811) 6,111 (25%) (11,007 6,563 (493)
At 31 December 2020 R-BoEf
1-A=1-A 441773 813000 1430424 - - (1592083 21,91
- Notwithstanding the account is an asset, it's presented in . BEZRBR—BEE B

BT DIABEZS] - mMAER
BRAINIESZS - BLERERR

8o

YJ

~
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

BABTTIIR)

30. FE R EREBRMETT @

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) BETBRELENEEEH
activities (Continued) (#&)
2019 —T-NF
Loans and
amounts Interest
Loans from dueto payables for
Lease financial  an intermediate Other  bank loans and
liabilities institutions  holding company borrowings other loans
—FRER
RAERR BIERR
Jef—FimE HibER
HEER  SEEEET  BRATRE Eftfas MRS,
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T S
t 1 January 2019 RZZ-nF-HA-H 10,517 1,192,857 5,078,130 385,592 139,904
Changes from financing BERERERY
cash flows (14,286) 126,672 128,843 9,500 (105,777)
New leases g 299,591 - - - -
Interest expenses fIgRx 9,112 - - — 236,936
Interest paid classified as ~ HEEEEEEREEMHTIE
operating cash flows 9,112 - - - -
Transfer to liabities directly ~ EZEABARIENEEE
associated with the assets E% E‘EZEE
classified as held for sale (1,406 (973,479) - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - (333,852) - (394,793) (136,496)
Assignments of receivables &z AR - - (798,165) = =
Derecognition of loan BN - FEER A
due to an intermediate LER
holding company - - (65,339) — —
Foreign exchange movement  SEZE) 773 (12,202) (61,035) (299) (5,044)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-R 295,189 - 4,280,434 - 129,523
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30. FE R EREBRMETT @
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

() Total cash outflow for leases () HERSARBHAZ
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of FAReRERCHERSRLE
cash flows is as follows: REIAR
2020 2019
—EF-FF —TNF
$°000 $'000
F T+t
Within operating activities KETEBN 7,835 16,206
Within financing activities BEREA 24,227 14,286
(d) Total taxes paid (d) BEfIBIEAZE
The total taxes paid during the year were: FARNHIBAER -
2020 2019
. —TNF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Operating activities: LTS -
PRC CIT paid B BEIEE 63,955 76,678
PRC LAT paid BB LI ER - 14,033
63,955 90,711
31. COMMITMENTS 31. &IE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of (@) MW|MEMR  NEEFEE 2 EARK
the reporting period: T
2020 2019
—EDEF —E-NEF
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Contracted, but not provided for BEETA B R 18,995 2,735,773
The commitments at 31 December 2020 mainly represent REZEZEFTA=+—HzZEEE
leasehold improvement related costs to be incurred in respect of ZHRBEAEEM R BN AETE
the Group’s leased hotel buildings situated in Mainland China. @—‘?ﬁ’ﬁ?‘fiZ%ﬂ%%%i@f&?ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ o /
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32.

258

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. IAREE
2020 2019
—ECBE —ZE-NEF
$’000 $'000
F5 F7t
Guarantees given to banks for: BB EIEMA TRITZELR -
Mortgage facilities granted to BTAREEYEER
purchasers of the Group’s ZIRBRIE
properties 1,465 25,849

The Group has provided guarantees in respect of the mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements,
in case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers,
the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group is then entitled
to take over the legal titles of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee periods commence from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and end after the execution of individual
purchasers’ collateral agreements.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of
the ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less the
cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL allowance is
measured by estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on
the expected payments to reimburse the holders for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the purchasers. The amount initially recognised representing
the fair value at initial recognition of the financial guarantees was
not significant. The Group did not incur any material losses during
the financial period in respect of the guarantees provided for
mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties.
The directors consider that in case of default on payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties can cover the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued
interest and penalty, and therefore, no ECL allowance has been
made in connection with the guarantees.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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33. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 3. BERBAEALRS

TRANSACTIONS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the (a) HHBHEEMIPHFFRAIRS
financial statements, the Group had the following significant AN - REENF R EEEA LT
transactions with related parties during the year: LATERRS :
2020 2019
—EB-EF —=-hF
Notes $’000 $’000
BieE Fr Tt
Companies controlled by the B4 IERRAGERIZH| 2 A A
ultimate controlling
shareholder:
Sale of goods HEMm () 2,876 812
Purchase of goods AR (i) 33 =
Financial shared service MBS HZ R
expense (i) 382 229
Property management MEEERBEHZ
service expense (i) 2,351 1,604
Hotel service received BEEXBE RS () 785 273
Hotel design service income /& 28 5T ARTEULA () 45,184 22,075
Hotel construction B E B ERIE WA
management service
income (i) 17,050 532
Hotel management B E B IR AR IS A
service income (i) 43,533 67,465
Rental income WA (i) 5,456 7,631
Rental expense HEM (i) 14,801 14,060
Advertising expense BEY () 159 240
Training expense =l (i) - 209
Maintenance cost SRR () 232 —
Assignments of receivables B FIIA - 798,165

The above transactions were made according to the

published prices and conditions offered to the major

customers of the Group.

FRRBTIREAEELTE
BEPERRHEZEAMERK
fERIFHETT -

Y
b S

A memrmmemAT 259

—B-BEER



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

33. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

BABTTIIR)

3BEBRBEEALIRS @

Transactions with key management personnel (b) EHIEEBAEZRNS
The remuneration of key management personnel of the AEBEEEBASHM(BEE
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors, BENARBESZFIE)RAT :
is as follows:
2020 2019
$’ooo $'000
Frx Fi
Short-term employee benefits HEEERA 18,649 19,588
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s EENFETHRAEMS 2E—F
emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial BN SRR -
statements.
Loans from an intermediate holding company () —EFBEERABTER
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the addition REBEZZ-FTF+-HA= ‘f‘ S|
loans from an intermediate holding company amounted to IEFE - ke —EPEIERAF
$849,330,000 and the total amount of $2,719,640,000 was 2 FEHNE 849,330,000 7T M 4258

repaid during the year.

Please refer to note 25 for the loans from an intermediate
holding company to the Company. Interest incurred during
the year and interest payable to an intermediate holding
company as at 31 December 2020 are set out in notes 8
and 23, respectively.
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33. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Guarantees provided by an intermediate holding

(e)

company

There were no guarantees provided or accepted during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: $973,475,000)
as further detailed disclosed in note 12(j)(d) to the financial
statements.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of rental income,
rental expense, property management service expense,
hotel construction management service income, hotel
design service income, hotel management service income,
and assignments of receivables disclosed above constitute
continuing connected transactions or connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of loans from
an intermediate holding company, other related party
transactions and guarantees provided by an intermediate
holding company disclosed above constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, they are
exempt from the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

3BEBRBEEALIRS @

(d)

(e)

—EPEERARREZE
=

FANEA S TR IR T 5 12()(d) Pt — 25
IR NEEZT IR+
A=1+—BIEFE @ #meftsis
SRR (ZZE— 14 : 973,475,000
JT) °

BEEXZEMz LHRA

P EABAEAS KA EHEH
X MEEERBHEX  BERER
EIERBUA -~ HE R IR W
A BEEERE A KB EEK
FIAZFEAL RSB ETRA
FTOAEMER ZFHERERS

B LR R EERARE
A HMBEAEALR SR —EH
AR ARRRZER 2 BEAL
RPERETHRANETHAERE
BB GIEMERS - R
- AR ZEHRRET ETHHRR
FTHAERFZWERE

Y
~_~
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

34. RERIE D2 BT A

RBERR - SEREBRTAZEEE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: YT -
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
RBERAIIRSRMEE
2020 2019
—B-FF —TNF
$°000 $°000
F T+
Long-term receivables REAE W GRIE 1,592,983 —
Trade and bills receivables H Z EWGRIE K EWE B 341,829 220,124
Financial assets included ST ATE FRIE M B A FEUR IR
in prepayments ZERMEE
and other receivables 45,865 21,038
Cash and cash equivalents HWe MBS EY 2,375,300 2,421,957
4,355,977 2,663,119
Financial liabilities tmas
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
RBERAIECCREE
2020 2019
== —E-hEF
$°000 $'000
¥ ¥
Lease liabilities HEBE 441,773 295,189
Financial liabilities included FTAE S R EAFE FRIE
in trade and other payables Zemas 2,015,855 729,708
Loans from an intermediate —RREIER AR ER
holding company 873,000 4,187,582
3,330,628 5,212,479
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
reasonably approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments and other receivables, financial liabilities included in
trade and other payables and loans from an intermediate holding
companies approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

The Group did not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents and loans from an intermediate holding company.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

35.

36.

B RS R AR AL

BB TTHIR)

S@mTA
Jbﬁﬁ—rn

ZAREBERR

AEEBeRTAZEAERE QA EE
BIEMRE -

BEECHERERRNEFEY BEH
FEWRIA SR BRI - FT ATBN TR R
HEKHIBEZERMEE  fTABS R
ﬁMEH%EZ%@E%&—ﬁ$%

T BRRER AR BEREREEN
EEEE“Z?IEE&H;H HE o

TREENABZAABEEIANA
ERGHRRHEIT 2 —ER S (W IEEH
FEEHE) WAl FRE‘Z SR o

RZE_EFR_ZF—-—NLF+=A
== ¢ K%lﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁf@
AEveRmEERSRAE -

TREREEERRBR

AEBETE %ﬂlﬂa%ﬁi&ﬁ
BY R EZER AR ER - 522\,
ﬂlﬂ{%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%l%é%ﬁ%
S8 AEBEEBERELZEA
heERBEENRARE  MEZREFEAR
L ESEINEE AP/

$%E$@Iﬁ?$ZI§H@%ﬂ%
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36.

264

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held

BABTTIIR)

36. ERLEMRE

SIEEERBER

(%)

eSS
REBEER 2 TISHEEE) 2 B
HAREE VT EFIEG B Zﬁﬁ’”ﬁ‘?ﬁ

TRETEMERMEERITTE 215
AT - AEBEZBRE AR, (B51E) (B

constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax (through the impact FEBRZTE)HRNESEEER
on floating rate borrowings). BRIZE -
Increase/
Increase (decrease)
in basis in loss
points before tax
BB ARSI N,
HEEH OmA)
$°000
T
31 December 2020 —E-TF+=ZRA=+—H 100 -
31 December 2019 —h&E+=-A=+—8H 100 (26,402)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the year
and had applied the exposure to interest rate risk to those bank
and other borrowings in existence at that date. The estimated
percentage increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the year until the end of the next reporting period.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business are principally conducted in RMB and
US$. The functional currencies of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC and the USA are RMB and USS$, respectively, and
these subsidiaries do not have significant monetary assets or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than their respective
functional currencies. The functional currency of the Group’s other
subsidiaries is the Hong Kong dollar.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through cash
and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, trade and other
payables and loans from an intermediate holding company that are
denominated in US$ and RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the exchange
rates on the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax and the Group’s equity.

36.

TRIEREE B EREER

(#)
N e )

AEEBXTEFBUAETLRARESEZ
BekReEEY  BHERZERE
WEE - B REMERMNKER—HF
MR A R ERRIEE B ER

THRIIRAEEZ RBARFL (F8)
RASE BN BERRYEE 2 A
IR BB 7 B -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
exchange in profit/(loss) (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
BRELAT
= wH(EE) xR
EH(TH) G g, R *
% $’000 $°000
Fr T
2020 —EEF
If the Hong Kong dollar fiw P& 7T H = TR B
weakens against US$ 1 1,997 1,997
If the Hong Kong dollar i P8 T H T E
strengthens against US$ (1) (1,997) (1,997)
If the Hong Kong dollar /BT ARERE
weakens against RMB 1 21,925 21,925
If the Hong Kong dollar i P& T H AR IEE
strengthens against RMB (1) (21,925) (21,925)
2019 —E-NEF
If the Hong Kong dollar BT W ETTH A
weakens against US$ 1 (32,953) (32,953)
If the Hong Kong dollar fin 78 T 7 T E
strengthens against US$ (1) 32,953 32,953
If the Hong Kong dollar /BT ARERE
weakens against RMB 1 16,253 16,253
If the Hong Kong dollar BT ARBIZE
strengthens against RMB (1) (16,253) (16,253)
- Excluding retained earnings * NERERE T \/4
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BABTTIIR)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk. The extent of the
Group’s credit exposure is represented by the aggregate balance
of cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, contract
assets, prepayments and other receivables, and long-term
receivables.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to

36. ERLEMRE

credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

As at 31 December 2020

SIEEERBER

(%)
EERER

AEBYEEMEREERR - NEE
ZEERRSERESNESEZEY B

SERBFEREREE  6HEE B
1T TR IR B EL th B WO SRIE LA I = B FE R
I8 o

=X|_%_E‘: EA&QEIIEI: tb

TREIBRBEAEECEERRY T EER

REBER (BRIEEMER AT EHAN

THBRASLE N2 BN T AER

Rt-A=t—BNFEEERERIERH

ZEEEREERERERR - 252

A%ﬂ%i‘«%%%ﬂﬁé%@ﬂ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%%
BHEER

R-B-ZEF+-H=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8 A
BHEE
BB RERNGEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1ER H2MER HEIWER i % @it
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr Tr Tr T
Long-term receivables* REEMGE 1,592,983 - - - 1,592,983
Trade and bills receivables” B RREUGIEREKEE - - 48,037 348,494 396,531
Financial assets included FATERAFER
in prepayments and Hip e IR
other receivables LERBE
— Normal*™ — FE* 45,865 - - - 45,865
— Doubtful* — Al - - 15,528 - 15,528
Contract assets” BNEE" - - 1,182 22,629 23,811
Cashand cash equivalents 34 KIEEEEY)
— Not yet past due — HARBE 2,375,300 - - - 2,375,300
4,014,148 - 64,747 371,123 4,450,018
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AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

(%)

36. e REMEIE B ERBUR

ZERE &)

R BN FERERE)

R-F-hF+-_HA=1+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12187
BHEE
BB FERHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1EER FOMEE FIMER kA et
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T
Trade and bills receivables” & ZEKFUE R EKEE - - - - 248,617 248,617
Financial assets included FAERFTER
in prepayments and Hin U IE
other receivables JERBE
— Normal*™ —FE™ 37,575 - - — 37,575
Contract assets* BHBE" - - = 14,554 14,554
Cash and cash equivalents & KRS EEY
— Not yet past due — WRBE 2,421,957 = = = 2,421,957
2,459,532 — — 263,171 2,722,703

applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 19 and note 20 to the

financial statements.

ok

receivables, prepayments and other receivables is considered to
be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the

For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group

The credit quality of the financial assets included in long-term

financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables and bills receivables,
contract assets and prepayments and other receivables are
disclosed in notes 19, 20 and 21 to the financial statements,

respectively.

ok

: HAEBERABURETNEZE SRR
FERAHNEENE - EREERERZ
BRRI TSR 19 R FE20H R -

st AREIEAGRIR - TR IR R E M
FEUGFIR 2 & BB B AR B S B EE
HErZEeREEZFERRE V%
TERLAZRARE AN -
RIEFR] BAREEREEZER

HRWEAR AR

EBASBERAE S ERFIERERSE
B AHEENRIENZRIE R EMER
HESI B2 EERR  FHELEIES
IR TS MR FE19 20 R 21 HHFE -

Y
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. 2 miEMREEEENREGR

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both
its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade and bills
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through trade payables and other
payables, use of loans from an intermediate holding company and
lease liabilities.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

(%)
MENE Rk

AEBEAKEERDE B TAE
REEGHERZEAR - ZTAERA
SEZERMTAREREE (PINEHE
Weskoa MBI R iR 2 B B A R IR

EEBHDRE

AEBZERRBEBEIRNFARE
SR - ER—RERREERARE
RAREEREERFE SRR E R
a2z A2 T o

RBERR - AEBEREFTHARFTER
MRz emBEIHBERET

2020
e i
Less than
1 year or 1t02 2to5 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
—FRH
REXR —EWE MZERF BBRF st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T Tr T Fr Tr
Lease liabilities HERE 40,741 44,187 129,199 469,626 683,753
Loans from an intermediate — & # FEE A% A 7]
holding company &N 907,920 - - - 907,920
Trade payables and B IRENFIER
other payables Hofth JE 1T B 2,015,855 - - - 2,015,855
2,964,516 44,187 129,199 469,626 3,607,528
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AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

Notes to Financial Statements

36. ERLEMRE

B RS R AR AL

BB TTHIR)

SIEEERBER

(%)

MEBE SRS (4

2019
“E-NE
Less than
1 year or 1t02 2t05 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
—FA%K
RER —EMF MEDF ik cRake= st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
T T T T T
Lease liabilities HEEE 12,500 34,183 98,637 337,277 482,597
Loans from an — P REERAF
intermediate =5
holding company 4,300,298 — — — 4,300,298
Trade payables and BIRNRIER
other payables H i 3RIR 729,708 - - — 729,708
5,042,506 34,183 98,637 337,277 5,512,603
Capital management BERER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and

to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the

capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for

managing capital during the year.

AEEARER Y T ERIEAREAR
BT R b R B
BELE  UEHHEEBRBRERER
2 RA(BE -

AEEEREEARE  WREHEBR

EPLEAEECRRSBIELRE -
REFLAFBERRE  AEEXREH

ERABRRIKE - MBRERE AR E
TTH D - RFEEXEREARNEERE
1= BERIIEFIELE

Y
~_~
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio and a debt-to-

asset ratio. The gearing ratio is defined as net debt divided by

total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprise loans from financial

institutions, including current and non-current portions, other

borrowings and loans from an intermediate holding company,

less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. The debt-

to-asset ratio is total liabilities net of advances from customers

divided by total assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the

reporting period were as follows:

BABTTIIR)

36. TRLE R EIE B L

Z RBUER
(#&)

BEREE (&)

Zﬁﬁ@iﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁtt%&ﬁf%ﬁﬁé

LRERERN - EARBLHLRERBIA
féfé/%%ﬁﬁ%bx BRESMAEFEE - A
FHEEFCHBBEER(BERB LI
mEE D) HMER - —RPEERA
REFRRE LREFEY REERT
R BEBHEELXRUBBERETR
BRRAREE - RBERARZELRR
B =WT :

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—NF
+=ZA=+—-HA +=—A=+—H
$°000 $'000
F Tt
Loans from financial institutions DEABEREZ
classified as held for sale —IHeMEEER - 973,475
Loans from an intermediate —HREERATER
holding company 873,000* 4,187,582
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BeRREEEY (2,375,300) (2,421,957)
Cash and cash equivalents DEAFELEZ
classified as held for sale ReMREEED - (28,489)
Pledged deposits classified S AFIED EZ
as held for sale BT - (3,434)
Net (cash)/debts (Re)  aEFHE (1,502,300) 2,707,177
Total equity B 2,786,593 2,643,310
Total equity plus net debt BERINAETE 1,284,293 5,350,487
Gearing ratio BRAGHE N/A 50.6%

N During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group derecognised
certain loans from an intermediate holding company of $1,329
million on the due dates and transferred them to amounts due to
intermediate holding company, which were not settled as at 31

December 2020.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. 2 miEMREEEENREGR

AND POLICIES (continueq) (#%&)
o e e =
Capital management (Continued) EREE#E)
The debt-to-asset ratio as at the end of the reporting period was RERER 2 EBHEELRNT -
as follows:
2020 2019
—F-FF —TNEF
$°000 $000
Frx FIT
Total liabilities maE 3,782,161 6,949,669
Less: Advances from customers B BPER (13,529) (20,940)
3,768,632 6,928,729
Total assets BEE 6,568,754 9,592,979
Debt-to-asset ratio BB EEL X 57.4% 72.2%
=+ VA
37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. REHIESIE
There are no events after the reporting period which should be BEEZSUBHEEIEZR - HEH
disclosed till the date these financial statements were approved. fth ¥ 5 HA 1% BIRZAEIRER -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + HLAETIIR)

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  38. KA BB AR R R
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

RBERR - ARBHBARKEF L0

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: s 8
2020 2019
—g-=F —NE
$°000 $'000
T Tz
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B LRE 33 47
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,630 4,384
Investments in subsidiaries REBRRZIEE 878,000 878,000
Total non-current assets EmENEEME 880,663 882,431
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables E@%Hﬁzmlﬁ 4,116 3,463
Loans to subsidiaries BTHEBA TZE%& - 2,830,502
Interest receivable from a subsidiary FEW—R B AR FLE - 62,202
Amounts due from an intermediate JrE i — il P T “’“ NRIZE
holding company 1,871 1,871
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGO 1,805,656 34
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 102,560 105,344
Total current assets M EELE 1,914,203 3,003,416
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Other payables EHahpe H,TA 4,052 6,022
Amounts due to subsidiaries B A 21,600 19,758
Amounts due to an intermediate A AR 4 “” TW\IE
holding company 99,047 93,065
Loans from an intermediate —RREIER AR ER
holding company 873,000 2,103,054
Interest payable to an intermediate FERT AR R EERR 2 R AR
holding company 150,371 88,055
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,882 1,770
Total current liabilities BB ERE 1,149,952 2,311,724
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 764,251 691,692
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBEMR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,644,914 1,574,123
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 985 2,867
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERE 985 2,867
Net assets AEFE 1,643,929 1,571,256
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners BARBEEAELER
of the parent
Share capital (LN ) 469,735 469,735
Reserves (note) e (P EE) 1,174,194 1,101,521
Total equity B 1,643,929 1,571,256

Ning Qifeng Han Xu
BHIE EE
Executive Director Non-executive Director
HITER FENTTEE
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBESN - HLABITIIR)

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  38. RA BB FEAR R R ()

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: st -
) INTE nr :
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARRIRERENT
Share Special Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BRAD R 1E RIS ZitEE et
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000
Fx Fr T Fr
At 1 January 2019 W_ZE—NF—A—H 1,935,266 127,961 (8,569) 2,054,658
Loss for the year and total AEEBER
comprehensive loss for AEE2EEBRE
the year = = (953,137) (953,137)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—H
and 1 January 2020 ;k=ZF=-TF—H—H 1,935,266 127,961 (961,706) 1,101,521
Profit for the year and total REE RN R
comprehensive income AEEEEKEREE
for the year — — 72,673 72,673
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZTF+=—A=+—H 1,935,266 127,961 (889,033) 1,174,194

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39, #it/ BB 73R %

PEFRER—_E-_—F=A+-HEE
FEHE NIRRT -

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 17 March 2021.
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Financial Summary

ITEREE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—T-RE ZE—tF TN\ ET-NEFE ZBIEF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FHET FHET T BT FHx
RESULTS £
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue Wezs 428,512 656,380 812,320 812,948 655,419
Profit/(loss) before tax from — FHERE ¥R 2
continuing operations BREATE A, (E518) 182,980 (88,244) (91,034) (596,711) 135,508
Income tax credit/(expenses) IHEEEER 2
from continuing operations  Fr{3&{i&%,/ (Fi%) (134,957) (186,326) (301) 78,643 (39,409)
Profit/(loss) for the year from  #HERE ¥R 2
continuing operations AEERF/ (EE) 48,023 (274,570) (91,335) (518,068) 96,099
Discontinued operations  #& 1F & & 7%
Profit/(loss) for the year from  #& |FE& ¥R 2
discontinued operations AEERF, (BE) 59,087 (379,669) 923,677 129,444 134,057
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF/ (E1R) 107,110 (654,239) 832,342 (388,624) 230,156
Profit/(loss) attributable to & ARI#EHB A
owners of the parent FEIEEH, (E518) (29,622) (285,438) 766,716 (150,387) 165,131
Non-controlling interests IR R 136,732 (368,801) 65,626 (238,237) 65,025
Profit/(loss) for the year AERHR/ (E18) 107,110 (654,239) 832,342 (388,624) 230,156
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Financial Summary

LRSS

At 31 December

R+=B=+—-H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—ERNF ZFtF ZE\F —F-NF CZR°EF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS and LIABILITIES ¥ERAE

Total assets BEE 16,871,801 19,725,222 12,333,431 9,592,979 6,568,754
Total liabilities waE 13,028,608 16,369,499 9,126,040 6,949,669 3,782,161
Net assets BESFE 2,943,193 3,355,723 3,207,391 2,643,310 2,786,593

Equity attributable to owners  &FARIEA A
of the parent FE(h iR 2,009,382 2,420,504 2,220,090 1,921,479 2,219,981
Non-controlling interests i 933,811 935,219 987,301 721,831 566,612
Total equity HrEZS 2,943,193 3,355,723 3,207,391 2,643,310 2,786,593
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Property Portfolio
MBS

1. PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

1. BHEREWE

Gross Group’s Term of
Location Existing use floor area interest lease
rEH
vE B AR EEME K g HE
(sq.m.) (%)
(FHK)
The Shopping Mall of Commercial 152,440 51% Medium
Site P05, north to (e i HR

Huan Cheng Nan Road

No. 1, Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, the PRC
B ERLEBRE
TR R — B

LAdL PO5 i 3587535
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